Louisville Gas and Electric Company
Case No. 2025-00114
Forecasted Test Period Filing Requirements
(Forecasted Test Period 12ME 12/31/26; Base Period 12ME 8/31/25)

Filing Requirement
Tab 41 - 807 KAR 5:001 Section 16(7)(k)
Sponsoring Witness: Drew T. McCombs

Description of Filing Requirement:

The most recent Federal Energy Regulatory Commission Form 1 (electric), Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission Form 2 (gas), or Public Service Commission Form T (telephone).

Response:

LG&E’s most recent FERC Form 1 and KPSC Annual Report for Major Natural Gas
Companies for the year ended December 31, 2024 are attached. Please note that by a FERC
Order dated July 12, 2007 in FERC Docket No. CP07-232-000, LG&E was granted a Section
(7) exemption by the FERC under the Natural Gas Act, and as a part of that exemption LG&E
was granted "a waiver of reporting and accounting requirements,” which includes the filing of
Form 2 with the FERC. In addition, on February 15, 2008, the Public Service Commission
issued an order granting LG&E’s request to cease the annual filing of the FERC Form 2. In
lieu of filing a FERC Form 2 with the Public Service Commission, LG&E was ordered to file
a paper copy of the annual report information that it files with the Public Service Commission
electronically.
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THIS FILING IS

Item 1:

An Initial (Original) Submission
OR

[ Resubmission No.

FERC FINANCIAL REPORT
FERC FORM No. 1: Annual Report of
Major Electric Utilities, Licensees
and Others and Supplemental
Form 3-Q: Quarterly Financial Report

[These reports are mandatory under the Federal Power Act, Sections 3, 4(a),
304 and 309, and 18 CFR 141.1 and 141.400. Failure to report may result in
criminal fines, civil penalties and other sanctions as provided by law. The
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission does not consider these reports to be
of confidential nature

https://app.wdesk.com/s/fs-viewer/a/QWNjb3VudB8xMDA3N;Y4MTg1Ng/xbrl/report/56e9dc4a-e0f0-4400-a7dd-70ebc754 2ac9/generation/f9c62ed2-1a28-4f7c-83c5-70eea1c23efa/artifact/bf6b4568-9. ..
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Exact Legal Name of Respondent (Company) Year/Period of Report

End of: 2024/ Q4

Louisville Gas and Electric Company

FERC FORM NO. 1 (REV. 02-04)
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FERC Form

INSTRUCTIONS FOR FILING FERC FORM NOS. 1 and 3-Q

GENERAL INFORMATION

I. Purpose

FERC Form No. 1 (FERC Form 1) is an annual regulatory requirement for Major electric utilities, licensees and
others (18 C.F.R. § 141.1). FERC Form No. 3-Q ( FERC Form 3-Q) is a quarterly regulatory requirement which
supplements the annual financial reporting requirement (18 C.F.R. § 141.400). These reports are designed to
collect financial and operational information from electric utilities, licensees and others subject to the
jurisdiction of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. These reports are also considered to be non-
confidential public use forms.

- Who Must Submit

Each Major electric utility, licensee, or other, as classified in the Commission’s Uniform System of Accounts
Prescribed for Public Utilities, Licensees, and Others Subject To the Provisions of The Federal Power Act (18
C.F.R. Part 101), must submit FERC Form 1 (18 C.F.R. § 141.1), and FERC Form 3-Q (18 C.F.R. § 141.400).

Note: Major means having, in each of the three previous calendar years, sales or transmission service that
exceeds one of the following:

1. one million megawatt hours of total annual sales,

2. 100 megawatt hours of annual sales for resale,

3. 500 megawatt hours of annual power exchanges delivered, or
4

. 500 megawatt hours of annual wheeling for others (deliveries plus losses).

ll. What and Where to Submit

©

Submit FERC Form Nos. 1 and 3-Q electronically through the eCollection portal at
https://eCollection.ferc.gov, and according to the specifications in the Form 1 and 3-Q taxonomies.

c

The Corporate Officer Certification must be submitted electronically as part of the FERC Forms 1 and 3-
Q filings.

o

Submit immediately upon publication, by either eFiling or mail, two (2) copies to the Secretary of the
Commission, the latest Annual Report to Stockholders. Unless eFiling the Annual Report to Stockholders,
mail the stockholders report to the Secretary of the Commission at:

Secretary

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 888 First Street, NE

Washington, DC 20426

. For the CPA Certification Statement, submit within 30 days after filing the FERC Form 1, a letter or report
(not applicable to filers classified as Class C or Class D prior to January 1, 1984). The CPA Certification
Statement can be either eFiled or mailed to the Secretary of the Commission at the address above.

o

The CPA Certification Statement should:

a. Attest to the conformity, in all material aspects, of the below listed (schedules and pages) with the
Commission's applicable Uniform System of Accounts (including applicable notes relating thereto
and the Chief Accountant's published accounting releases), and

I3

Be signed by independent certified public accountants or an independent licensed public
accountant certified or licensed by a regulatory authority of a State or other political subdivision of
the U. S. (See 18 C.F.R. §§ 41.10-41.12 for specific qualifications.)

Schedules Pages
Comparative Balance Sheet ~ 110-113
Statement of Income 114-117

Statement of Retained Earnings 118-119
Statement of Cash Flows 120-121
Notes to Financial Statements  122-123

e. The following format must be used for the CPA Certification Statement unless unusual circumstances or
conditions, explained in the letter or report, demand that it be varied. Insert parenthetical phrases only
when exceptions are reported.

“In connection with our regular examination of the financial statements of [COMPANY NAME] for the year
ended on which we have reported separately under date of [DATE], we have also reviewed schedules
[NAME OF SCHEDULES] of FERC Form No. 1 for the year filed with the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission, for conformity in all material respects with the requirements of the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission as set forth in its applicable Uniform System of Accounts and published
accounting releases. Our review for this purpose included such tests of the accounting records and such
other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

Based on our review, in our opinion the accompanying schedules identified in the preceding paragraph
(except as noted below) conform in all material respects with the accounting requirements of the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission as set forth in its applicable Uniform System of Accounts and published
accounting releases.” The letter or report must state which, if any, of the pages above do not conform to
the Commission’s requirements. Describe the discrepancies that exist.

. Filers are encouraged to file their Annual Report to Stockholders, and the CPA Certification Statement
using eFiling. Further instructions are found on the Commission’s website at https:/www.ferc.gov/ferc-

. Federal, State, and Local Governments and other authorized users may obtain additional blank copies of
FERC Form 1 and 3-Q free of charge from https://www.ferc.gov/general-information-O/electric-industry-
forms.

«

IV. When to Submit

FERC Forms 1 and 3-Q must be filed by the following schedule:

a. FERC Form 1 for each year ending December 31 must be filed by April 18th of the following year (18
CFR § 141.1), and

b. FERC Form 3-Q for each calendar quarter must be filed within 60 days after the reporting quarter (18
C.FR. § 141.400).

Where to Send Comments on Public Reporting Burden.

The public reporting burden for the FERC Form 1 collection of information is estimated to average 1,168 hours
per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and
maintaining the data-needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. The public reporting
burden for the FERC Form 3-Q collection of information is estimated to average 168 hours per response.

Send comments regarding these burden estimates or any aspect of these collections of information, including
suggestions for reducing burden, to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, 888 First Street NE,
Washington, DC 20426 (Attention: Information Clearance Officer); and to the Office of Information and
Regulatory Affairs, Office of Management and Budget, Washington, DC 20503 (Attention: Desk Officer for the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission). No person shall be subject to any penalty if any collection of
information does not display a valid control number (44 U.S.C. § 3512 (a)).

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

https://app.wdesk.com/s/fs-viewer/a/QWNjb3VudB8xMDA3N;Y4MTg1Ng/xbrl/report/56e9dc4a-e0f0-4400-a7dd-70ebc754 2ac9/generation/f9c62ed2-1a28-4f7c-83c5-70eea1c23efa/artifact/bf6b4568-9. ..

I. Prepare this report in conformity with the Uniform System of Accounts (18 CFR Part 101) (USofA). Interpret all
accounting words and phrases in accordance with the USofA.

. Enter in whole numbers (dollars or MWH) only, except where otherwise noted. (Enter cents for averages and
figures per unit where cents are important. The truncating of cents is allowed except on the four basic financial
statements where rounding is required.) The amounts shown on all supporting pages must agree with the
amounts entered on the statements that they support. When applying thresholds to determine significance for
reporting purposes, use for balance sheet accounts the balances at the end of the current reporting period,
and use for statement of income accounts the current year's year to date amounts.

Complete each question fully and accurately, even if it has been answered in a previous report. Enter the word
"None" where it truly and completely states the fact.
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IV. For any page(s) that is not applicable to the respondent, omit the page(s) and enter "NA," "NONE," or "Not
Applicable" in column (d) on the List of Schedules, pages 2 and 3.

V. Enter the month, day, and year for all dates. Use customary abbreviations. The "Date of Report" included in the
header of each page is to be completed only for resubmissions (see VII. below).

VI. Generally, except for certain schedules, all numbers, whether they are expected to be debits or credits, must
be reported as positive. Numbers having a sign that is different from the expected sign must be reported by
enclosing the numbers in parentheses.

VII. For any resubmissions, please explain the reason for the resubmission in a footnote to the data field.

VIII. Do not make references to reports of previous periods/years or to other reports in lieu of required entries,
except as specifically authorized.

IX. Wherever (schedule) pages refer to figures from a previous period/year, the figures reported must be based
upon those shown by the report of the previous period/year, or an appropriate explanation given as to why the
different figures were used.

X. Schedule specific instructions are found in the applicable taxonomy and on the applicable blank rendered form.

Definitions for statistical classifications used for completing schedules for transmission system reporting are as
follows:

FNS - Firm Network Transmission Service for Self. "Firm" means service that can not be interrupted for economic
reasons and is intended to remain reliable even under adverse conditions. "Network Service" is Network
Transmission Service as described in Order No. 888 and the Open Access Transmission Tariff. "Self* means the
respondent.

FNO - Firm Network Service for Others. "Firm" means that service cannot be interrupted for economic reasons and
is intended to remain reliable even under adverse conditions. "Network Service" is Network Transmission Service as
described in Order No. 888 and the Open Access Transmission Tariff.

LFP - for Long-Term Firm Point-to-Point Transmission Reservations. "Long-Term" means one year or longer and”
firm" means that service cannot be interrupted for economic reasons and is intended to remain reliable even under
adverse conditions. "Point-to-Point Transmission Reservations" are described in Order No. 888 and the Open
Access Transmission Tariff. For all transactions identified as LFP, provide in a footnote the termination date of the
contract defined as the earliest date either buyer or seller can unilaterally cancel the contract.

OLF - Other Long-Term Firm Transmission Service. Report service provided under contracts which do not conform
to the terms of the Open Access Transmission Tariff. "Long-Term" means one year or longer and “firm” means that
service cannot be interrupted for economic reasons and is intended to remain reliable even under adverse
conditions. For all transactions identified as OLF, provide in a footnote the termination date of the contract defined as
the earliest date either buyer or seller can unilaterally get out of the contract.

SFP - Short-Term Firm Point-to-Point Transmission Reservations. Use this classification for all firm point-to-point
transmission reservations, where the duration of each period of reservation is less than one-year.

NF - Non-Firm Transmission Service, where firm means that service cannot be interrupted for economic reasons
and is intended to remain reliable even under adverse conditions.

OS - Other Transmission Service. Use this classification only for those services which can not be placed in the
above-mentioned classifications, such as all other service regardless of the length of the contract and service FERC
Form. Describe the type of service in a footnote for each entry.

AD - Out-of-Period Adjustments. Use this code for any accounting adjustments or "true-ups" for service provided in
prior reporting periods. Provide an explanation in a footnote for each adjustment.

DEFINITIONS

1. Commission Authorization (Comm. Auth.) -- The authorization of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission,
or any other Commission. Name the commission whose authorization was obtained and give date of the
authorization.

Il. Respondent -- The person, corporation, licensee, agency, authority, or other Legal entity or instrumentality in
whose behalf the report is made.

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 03-07)

Case No. 2025-00114

Attachment to Filing Requirement

Tab 41 - 807 KAR 5:001 Section 16(7)(k)
Page 4 of 274

McCombs

FERC Form
EXCERPTS FROM THE LAW

Federal Power Act, 16 U.S.C. § 791a-825r
Sec. 3. The words defined in this section shall have the following meanings for purposes of this Act, to with:

3. 'Corporation' means any corporation, joint-stock company, partnership, association, business trust, organized
group of persons, whether incorporated or not, or a receiver or receivers, trustee or trustees of any of the
foregoing. It shall not include 'municipalities, as hereinafter defined;

4. 'Person' means an individual or a corporation;

5. 'Licensee, means any person, State, or municipality Licensed under the provisions of section 4 of this Act, and
any assignee or successor in interest thereof;

7. 'municipality means a city, county, irrigation district, drainage district, or other political subdivision or agency of
a State competent under the Laws thereof to carry and the business of developing, transmitting, unitizing, or
distributing power; .....

11. "project’ means. a complete unit of improvement or development, consisting of a power house, all water
conduits, all dams and appurtenant works and structures (including navigation structures) which are a part of
said unit, and all storage, diverting, or fore bay reservoirs directly connected therewith, the primary line or lines
transmitting power there from to the point of junction with the distribution system or with the interconnected
primary transmission system, all miscellaneous structures used and useful in connection with said unit or any
part thereof, and all water rights, rights-of-way, ditches, dams, reservoirs, Lands, or interest in Lands the use
and occupancy of which are necessary or appropriate in the maintenance and operation of such unit;

"Sec. 4. The Commission is hereby authorized and empowered

a. 'To make investigations and to collect and record data concerning the utilization of the water 'resources of any
region to be developed, the water-power industry and its relation to other industries and to interstate or foreign
commerce, and concerning the location, capacity, development costs, and relation to markets of power sites;
... to the extent the Commission may deem necessary or useful for the purposes of this Act."

"Sec. 304.

a. Every Licensee and every public utility shall file with the Commission such annual and other periodic or
special* reports as the Commission may by rules and regulations or other prescribe as necessary or
appropriate to assist the Commission in the proper administration of this Act. The Commission may prescribe
the manner and FERC Form in which such reports shall be made, and require from such persons specific
answers to all questions upon which the Commission may need information. The Commission may require that
such reports shall include, among other things, full information as to assets and Liabilities, capitalization, net
investment, and reduction thereof, gross receipts, interest due and paid, depreciation, and other reserves, cost
of project and other facilities, cost of maintenance and operation of the project and other facilities, cost of
renewals and replacement of the project works and other facilities, depreciation, generation, transmission,
distribution, delivery, use, and sale of electric energy. The Commission may require any such person to make
adequate provision for currently determining such costs and other facts. Such reports shall be made under
oath unless the Commission otherwise specifies*.10

"Sec. 309.

The Commission shall have power to perform any and all acts, and to prescribe, issue, make, and rescind
such orders, rules and regulations as it may find necessary or appropriate to carry out the provisions of this
Act. Among other things, such rules and regulations may define accounting, technical, and trade terms used in
this Act; and may prescribe the FERC Form or FERC Forms of all statements, declarations, applications, and
reports to be filed with the Commission, the information which they shall contain, and the time within which
they shall be field..."

GENERAL PENALTIES

The Commission may assess up to $1 million per day per violation of its rules and regulations. See FPA § 316(a)
(2005), 16 U.S.C. § 8250(a).

https://app.wdesk.com/s/fs-viewer/a/QWNjb3VudB8xMDA3N;Y4MTg1Ng/xbrl/report/56e9dc4a-e0f0-4400-a7dd-70ebc754 2ac9/generation/f9c62ed2-1a28-4f7c-83c5-70eealc23efa/artifact/bf6b4568-9...  4/274



Case No. 2025-00114

Attachment to Filing Requirement

Tab 41 - 807 KAR 5:001 Section 16(7)(k)
Page 5 of 274

McCombs

4/9/25, 5:49 PM FERC Form

FERC FORM NO. 1
REPORT OF MAJOR ELECTRIC UTILITIES, LICENSEES AND OTHER

IDENTIFICATION
01 Exact Legal Name of Respondent 02 Year/ Period of Report
Louisville Gas and Electric Company End of: 2024/ Q4
03 Previous Name and Date of Change (If name changed during year)
!
04 Address of Principal Office at End of Period (Street, City, State, Zip Code)
220 West Main Street, Louisville, KY 40202
05 Name of Contact Person 06 Title of Contact Person
Jeanne M. Kugler Manager, Regulatory Reporting

07 Address of Contact Person (Street, City, State, Zip Code)
220 West Main Street, Louisville, KY 40202

09 This Report is An Original / A Resubmission
M 10 Date of Report (Mo, Da, Yr)
An Original T

(502) 627-4779 03/18/2025
)
[ A Resubmission

08 Telephone of Contact Person, Including Area Code

Annual Corporate Officer Certification

The undersigned officer certifies that:

financial information contained in this report, conform in all material respects to the Uniform System of Accounts.

| have examined this report and to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief all statements of fact contained in this report are correct statements of the business affairs of the respondent and the financial statements, and other

01 Name 03 Signature 04 Date Signed (Mo, Da, Yr)
Christopher M. Garrett Christopher M. Garrett 03/18/2025
02 Title

VP - Finance and Accounting

Title 18, U.S.C. 1001 makes it a crime for any person to knowingly and willingly to make to any Agency or Department of the United States any false, fictitious or fraudulent statements as to any matter within its jurisdiction.

FERC FORM No. 1 (REV. 02-04)
Page 1

https://app.wdesk.com/s/fs-viewer/a/QWNjb3VudB8xMDA3N;Y4MTg1Ng/xbrl/report/56e9dc4a-e0f0-4400-a7dd-70ebc754 2ac9/generation/f9c62ed2-1a28-4f7c-83c5-70eea1c23efa/artifact/bf6b4568-9. ..
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This report is:
Name of Respondent: An Original Date of Report: Year/Period of Report
Louisville Gas and Electric Company ? 03/18/2025 End of: 2024/ Q4
[ A Resubmission
LIST OF SCHEDULES (Electric Utility)

Enter in column (c) the terms "none," "not applicable,” or "NA," as appropriate, where no information or amounts have been reported for certain pages. Omit pages where the respondents are "none," "not applicable,” or "NA".
Line Title of Schedule Reference Page No. Remarks

No. (a) (b) (c)

Identification 1
List of Schedules 2

1 General Information 101

2 Control Over Respondent 102

3 Corporations Controlled by Respondent 103 None
4 Officers 104

5 Directors 105

6 Information on Formula Rates 106

7 Important Changes During the Year 108

8 Comparative Balance Sheet 110

9 Statement of Income for the Year 114

10 Statement of Retained Earnings for the Year 118

12 Statement of Cash Flows 120

12 Notes to Financial Statements 122

13 Statement of Accum Other Comp | Comp | and Hedging Activities 122a

14 Summary of Utility Plant & Accumulated Provisions for Dep, Amort & Dep 200

15 Nuclear Fuel Materials 202 None
16 Electric Plant in Service 204

17 Electric Plant Leased to Others 213 None
18 Electric Plant Held for Future Use 214

19 Construction Work in Progress-Electric 216
20 Accumulated Provision for Depreciation of Electric Utility Plant 219
21 I of Subsidiary C 224
22 Materials and Supplies 227
23 Allowances 228
24 Extraordinary Property Losses 230a None
25 Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs 230b
26 Transmission Service and Generation Interconnection Study Costs 231

Page 2

https://app.wdesk.com/s/fs-viewer/a/QWNjb3VudB8xMDA3N;Y4MTg1Ng/xbrl/report/56e9dc4a-e0f0-4400-a7dd-70ebc754 2ac9/generation/f9c62ed2-1a28-4f7c-83c5-70eealc23efa/artifact/bf6b4568-9...  6/274
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4/9/25, 5:49 PM FERC Form
Line Title of Schedule Reference Page No. Remarks
No. (a) (c)
27 Other Regulatory Assets 232
28 Miscellaneous Deferred Debits 233
29 A d Deferred | Taxes 234
30 Capital Stock 250
31 Other Paid-in Capital 253
32 Capital Stock Expense 254b
33 Long-Term Debt 256
34 Reconciliation of Reported Net Income with Taxable Inc for Fed Inc Tax 261
35 Taxes Accrued, Prepaid and Charged During the Year 262
36 A lated Deferred | Tax Credits 266
37 Other Deferred Credits 269
38 A d Deferred I T: Accel d Amorti: Property 272 None
39 A d Deferred | Taxes-Other Property 274
40 | A d Deferred | Taxes-Other 276
41 Other Regulatory Liabilities 278
42 Electric Operating Revenues 00
43 Regional Ti Service R (A t 457.1) 302 None
44 Sales of Electricity by Rate Schedules 304
45 Sales for Resale 310
46 Electric Operation and Maintenance Expenses 20
47 Purchased Power 326
48 Transmission of Electricity for Others 328
49 Transmission of Electricity by ISO/RTOs 331 None
50 Transmission of Electricity by Others 332
51 Miscell 1s General E; Electric 335
52 Depreciation and Amorti of Electric Plant (Account 403, 404, 405) 336
53 | Regulatory Commission Exp 350
54 Research, Devel and D ation Activities 352
55 Distribution of Salaries and Wages 354
56 Common Utility Plant and Expenses 356
57 Amounts included in ISO/RTO Settlement Statements 397
58 Purchase and Sale of Ancillary Services 398
59 Monthly Transmission System Peak Load 400
60 Monthly ISO/RTO Transmission System Peak Load 400a None
61 Electric Energy Account 401a
Page 2

https://app.wdesk.com/s/fs-viewer/a/QWNjb3VudB8xMDA3N;Y4MTg1Ng/xbrl/report/56e9dc4a-e0f0-4400-a7dd-70ebc754 2ac9/generation/f9c62ed2-1a28-4f7c-83c5-70eea1c23efa/artifact/bf6b4568-9. ..
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4/9/25, 5:49 PM FERC Form

Line Title of Schedule Reference Page No. Remarks
No. (a) (c)
62 Monthly Peaks and Output 401b
63 Steam Electric Generating Plant Statistics 402
64 Hydroelectric Generating Plant Statistics 406
65 Pumped Storage Generating Plant Statistics 408 None
66 Generating Plant Statistics Pages 410
66.1 | Energy Storage Operations (Large Plants) 414 None
66.2 | Energy Storage Operations (Small Plants) 419 None
67 Transmission Line Statistics Pages 422
68 Transmission Lines Added During Year 424 None
69 Substations 426
70 Transactions with Associated (Affiliated) Companies 429
71 | Footnote Data 450

Stockholders’ Reports (check appropriate box)

Stockholders' Reports Check appropriate box:

O two copies will be submitted

No annual report to stockholders is prepared

Page 2
FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-96)
Page 2

https://app.wdesk.com/s/fs-viewer/a/QWNjb3VudB8xMDA3N;Y4MTg1Ng/xbrl/report/56e9dc4a-e0f0-4400-a7dd-70ebc754 2ac9/generation/f9c62ed2-1a28-4f7c-83c5-70eea1c23efa/artifact/bf6b4568-9. ..

8/274



Case No. 2025-00114

Attachment to Filing Requirement

Tab 41 - 807 KAR 5:001 Section 16(7)(k)
Page 9 of 274

McCombs

4/9/25, 5:49 PM FERC Form
This report is:
Name of Respondent: An Original Date of Report: Year/Period of Report
Louisville Gas and Electric Company 03/18/2025 End of: 2024/ Q4
(2)
[ A Resubmission

GENERAL INFORMATION

kept, if different from that where the general corporate books are kept.

Christopher M. Garrett
VP - Finance and Accounting

220 West Main Street, Louisville, KY 40202

1. Provide name and title of officer having custody of the general corporate books of account and address of office where the general corporate books are kept, and address of office where any other corporate books of account are

2. Provide the name of the State under the laws of which respondent is incorporated, and date of incorporation. If incorporated under a special law, give reference to such law. If not incorporated, state that fact and give the type of
organization and the date organized.

State of Incorporation: KY
Date of Incorporation: 1913-07-02

Incorporated Under Special Law:

3. If at any time during the year the property of respondent was held by a receiver or trustee, give (a) name of receiver or trustee, (b) date such receiver or trustee took possession, (c) the authority by which the receivership or
trusteeship was created, and (d) date when possession by receiver or trustee ceased.

Not Applicable

(a) Name of Receiver or Trustee Holding Property of the Respondent:
(b) Date Receiver took Possession of Respondent Property:

(c) Authority by which the Receivership or Trusteeship was created:

(d) Date when possession by receiver or trustee ceased:

4. State the classes or utility and other services furnished by respondent during the year in each State in which the respondent operated.

Respondent furnished electric and natural gas services in Metro Louisville and adjacent territory in Kentucky.

5. Have you engaged as the principal accountant to audit your financial statements an accountant who is not the principal accountant for your previous year's certified financial statements?
(1
[ Yes

()
No

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-87)
Page 101

https://app.wdesk.com/s/fs-viewer/a/QWNjb3VudB8xMDA3N;Y4MTg1Ng/xbrl/report/56e9dc4a-e0f0-4400-a7dd-70ebc754 2ac9/generation/f9c62ed2-1a28-4f7c-83c5-70eea1c23efa/artifact/bf6b4568-9. ..
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4/9/25, 5:49 PM FERC Form
This report is:
Name of Respondent: An Original Date of Report: Year/Period of Report
Louisville Gas and Electric Company 03/18/2025 End of: 2024/ Q4

()
[ A Resubmission

CONTROL OVER RESPONDENT

name of beneficiary or beneficiaries for whom trust was maintained, and purpose of the trust.

1. If any corporation, business trust, or similar organization or a combination of such organizations jointly held control over the respondent at the end of the year, state name of controlling corporation or organization, manner in which
control was held, and extent of control. If control was in a holding company organization, show the chain of ownership or control to the main parent company or organization. If control was held by a trustee(s), state name of trustee(s),

Louisville Gas and Electric Company (LG&E) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of LG&E and KU Energy LLC (LKE). PPL Corporation (PPL), based in Allentown, PA, holds all of the membership interests in LKE.

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-96)
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CORPORATIONS CONTROLLED BY RESPONDENT

1. Report below the names of all corporations, business trusts, and similar organizations, controlled directly or indirectly by respondent at any time during the year. If control ceased prior to end of year, give particulars (details) in a

2. :?g;r;c;:ii was by other means than a direct holding of voting rights, state in a footnote the manner in which control was held, naming any intermediaries involved.

3. If control was held jointly with one or more other interests, state the fact in a footnote and name the other interests.

Definitions

1. See the Uniform System of Accounts for a definition of control.

2. Direct control is that which is exercised without interposition of an intermediary.

3. Indirect control is that which is exercised by the interposition of an intermediary which exercises direct control.

4. Joint control is that in which neither interest can effectively control or direct action without the consent of the other, as where the voting control is equally divided between two holders, or each party holds a veto power over the
other. Joint control may exist by mutual agreement or understanding between two or more parties who together have control within the meaning of the definition of control in the Uniform System of Accounts, regardless of the
relative voting rights of each party.

Line Name of Company Controlled Kind of Business Percent Voting Stock Owned Footnote Ref.
No. (a) (c)
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
"
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
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23

24

25

26

27

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-96)
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OFFICERS

1. Report below the name, title and salary for each executive officer whose salary is $50,000 or more. An "executive officer” of a respondent includes its president, secretary, treasurer, and vice president in charge of a principal
business unit, division or function (such as sales, administration or finance), and any other person who performs similar policy making functions.
2. If a change was made during the year in the incumbent of any position, show name and total remuneration of the previous incumbent, and the date the change in incumbency was made.

Line Title Name of Officer Salary for Year Date Started in Period Date Ended in Period
No. (a) (b) (c) (e)
1 Bresident John R. Crockett I1l
(0)
2 Vice President and Chief Operating Officer Thomas A. Jessee 2024-03-04
3 Vice President-Finance and Accounting Christopher M. Garrett

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-96)

Page 104
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Name of Respondent:
Louisville Gas and Electric Company

This report is:

An Original

()
[ A Resubmission

Date of Report:
03/18/2025

Year/Period of Report
End of: 2024/ Q4

FOOTNOTE DATA

(a) Concept: OfficerTitle

Salary information for all officers is on file in the office of the respondent.

(b). Concept: OfficerTitle

lappointed Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of Louisville Gas & Electric Company, effective March 4, 2024.

Effective March 3, 2024, Lonnie E. Bellar resigned as Chief Operating Officer from Louisville Gas & Electric Company and Thomas A. Jessee, Vice President-Gas Operations of Louisville Gas & Electric Company, resigned his position and was subsequently

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-96)
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DIRECTORS

1. Report below the information called for concerning each director of the respondent who held office at any time during the year. Include in column (a), name and abbreviated titles of the directors who are officers of the respondent.
2. Provide the principle place of business in column (b), designate members of the Executive Committee in column (c), and the Chairman of the Executive Committee in column (d).

Line Name (and Title) of Director Principal Business Address Member of th? Executive Chairman of th.e Executive
Committee Committee
No. (a) (c) (d)

220 West Main Street, Louisville, KY

1 John R. Crockett Ill, President 40202

645 West Hamilton St. Allentown PA

2 Joseph P. Bergstein, Jr., PPL Corporation Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 18101

645 West Hamilton St. Allentown PA

3 Angela K. Gosman, PPL Corporation Executive Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer 18101

645 West Hamilton St. Allentown PA

4 Vincent Sorgi, PPL Corporation President and Chief Executive Officer 18101

645 West Hamilton St. Allentown PA

5 Wendy E. Stark, PPL Corporation Executive Vice President Utilities, Chief Legal Officer 18101

645 West Hamilton St. Allentown PA

6 Francis X. Sullivan, PPL Corporation Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer 18101

7 Dean A. Del Vecchio, PPL Corporation Executive Vice President and Chief Technology & Innovation | 645 West Hamilton St. Allentown PA
Officer 18101

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-95)
Page 105
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Name of Respondent:
Louisville Gas and Electric Company

This report is:

An Original

()
[ A Resubmission

Date of Report:
03/18/2025

Year/Period of Report
End of: 2024/ Q4

INFORMATION ON FORMULA RATES

Does the respondent have formula rates?

Yes

O No

1. Please list the Commission accepted formula rates including FERC Rate Schedule or Tariff Number and FERC proceeding (i.e. Docket No) accepting the rate(s) or changes i

n the accepted rate.

Line
No.

FERC Rate Schedule or Tariff Number
(a)

FERC Proceeding
(b)

1 Open Access Transmission Tariff (OATT) - Attachment O - Schedule 7, 8, and 10 vs. 15.0.0

Docket No. ER20-1466-001

Open Access Transmission Tariff (OATT) - Schedule 1 vs. 11.0.0

Docket No. ER16-1543-000

Open Access Transmission Tariff (OATT) - Schedule 4 vs. 12.0.0

Docket No. ER17-558-000

ENN RN NY

Open Access Transmission Tariff (OATT) - Schedule 9 vs. 12.0.0

Docket No. ER17-558-000

FERC FORM No. 1 (NEW. 12-08)
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INFORMATION ON FORMULA RATES - FERC Rate Schedule/Tariff Number FERC Pr di

the inputs to the formula rate(s)?

Does the respondent file with the Commission annual (or more frequent) filings containing

Yes

ONo

2. Ifyes, provide a listing of such filings as contained on the Commission's eLibrary website.

Line Accession No. Document Date / Filed Date Docket No. Description Formula Rate FERC. Rate Schedule Number
or Tariff Number
No. (@) (c) )
ER24-1445- | Annual Informational Attachment O Filing of Louisville Gas and Electric

1 20240311-5212 03/11/2024 000 Company, et al. Under ER24-1445 Attachment O - Schedule 7, 8, and 10

2 20240311-5212 - Schedule 1 03/11/2024 5&24'1445' Annual Rate Update Schedule 1

3 Not Applicable - Schedule 4 Schedule does not use Form 1 Inputs Schedule 4

4 Not Applicable - Schedule 9 Schedule does not use Form 1 Inputs Schedule 9

FERC FORM NO. 1 (NEW. 12-08)
Page 106a
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INFORMATION ON FORMULA RATES - Formula Rate Variances

1. If a respondent does not submit such filings then indicate in a footnote to the applicable Form 1 schedule where formula rate inputs differ from amounts reported in the Form 1.

2. The footnote should provide a narrative description explaining how the "rate" (or billing) was derived if different from the reported amount in the Form 1.

3. The footnote should explain amounts excluded from the ratebase or where labor or other allocation factors, operating expenses, or other items impacting formula rate inputs differ from amounts reported in Form 1 schedule
amounts.

4. Where the Commission has provided guidance on formula rate inputs, the specific proceeding should be noted in the footnote.

Line Page No(s). Schedule Column
No. a (b) (c)

Line

@

N

wolo|lN|lo|lo|~]|w|N

N
o

-

N
N

-
w

N
s

15

Page 106b
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Line
No.

Page No(s).
(a)

Schedule Column

(b) (c)

Line
No.
(d)

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44
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IMPORTANT CHANGES DURING THE QUARTER/YEAR

Give particulars (details) concerning the matters indicated below. Make the statements explicit and precise, and humber them in accordance with the inquiries. Each inquiry should be answered. Enter "none,
where applicable. If information which answers an inquiry is given elsewhere in the report, make a reference to the schedule in which it appears.

not applicable,” or "NA"

Changes in and important additions to franchise rights: Describe the actual consideration given therefore and state from whom the franchise rights were acquired. If acquired without the payment of consideration, state that fact.

. Acquisition of ownership in other companies by reorganization, merger, or consolidation with other companies: Give names of companies involved, particulars concerning the transactions, name of the Commission authorizing

the transaction, and reference to Commission authorization.

Purchase or sale of an operating unit or system: Give a brief description of the property, and of the transactions relating thereto, and reference to Commission authorization, if any was required. Give date journal entries called for

by the Uniform System of Accounts were submitted to the Commission.

Important leaseholds (other than leaseholds for natural gas lands) that have been acquired or given, assigned or surrendered: Give effective dates, lengths of terms, names of parties, rents, and other condition. State name of

Commission authorizing lease and give reference to such authorization.

Important extension or reduction of transmission or distribution system: State territory added or relinquished and date operations began or ceased and give reference to Commission authorization, if any was required. State also

the approximate number of customers added or lost and approximate annual revenues of each class of service. Each natural gas company must also state major new continuing sources of gas made available to it from

purchases, development, purchase contract or otherwise, giving location and approximate total gas volumes available, period of contracts, and other parties to any such arrangements, etc.

Obligations incurred as a result of issuance of securities or assumption of liabilities or guarantees including issuance of short-term debt and commercial paper having a maturity of one year or less. Give reference to FERC or

State Commission authorization, as appropriate, and the amount of obligation or guarantee.

Changes in articles of incorporation or amendments to charter: Explain the nature and purpose of such changes or amendments.

State the estimated annual effect and nature of any important wage scale changes during the year.

State briefly the status of any materially important legal proceedings pending at the end of the year, and the results of any such proceedings culminated during the year.

Describe briefly any materially important transactions of the respondent not disclosed elsewhere in this report in which an officer, director, security holder reported on Pages 104 or 105 of the Annual Report Form No. 1, voting

trustee, associated company or known associate of any of these persons was a party or in which any such person had a material interest.

11. (Reserved.)

12. If the important changes during the year relating to the respondent company appearing in the annual report to stockholders are applicable in every respect and furnish the data required by Instructions 1 to 11 above, such notes
may be included on this page.

13. Describe fully any changes in officers, directors, major security holders and voting powers of the respondent that may have occurred during the reporting period.

14. In the event that the respondent participates in a cash management program(s) and its proprietary capital ratio is less than 30 percent please describe the significant events or transactions causing the proprietary capital ratio to

be less than 30 percent, and the extent to which the respondent has amounts loaned or money advanced to its parent, subsidiary, or affiliated companies through a cash management program(s). Additionally, please describe

plans, if any to regain at least a 30 percent proprietary ratio.

o A& w N

i

ComN

1.None.

2. None.

3. Mill Creek Generating Unit 1 (MC1) was retired from service December 31, 2024. MC1 was a coal-fired unit located in Louisville, Kentucky. Journal entries for the retirement were submitted to the FERC on November 7, 2024. The Respondent was authorized by the FERC in Docket No. AC25-21-000 to use
Account 182.2, Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs, to record the retirement. This balance will be amortized to Account 407, Amortization of Property Losses, Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs, over a 10-year period. The retirement was recorded as a debit to 108, Accumulated
Depreciation-Regulated Utility Plant, and a Credit to 101, Regulated Utility Plant, of $215M. The entry to recover the retirement costs were recorded as a debit 1o 182.2 and a credit to 108 for $83M.

4. None of a material nature.

5. None.

6. The Respondent was authorized by the FERC at Docket No. ES24-32-000 to issue, from time to time, from May 31, 2024 through June 17, 2026, (a) up to $750 million in the form of money pool debt, commercial paper or any other type of short-term loan and (b) up to $700 million in the form of certain long-
term debt.

The icipates in an i money pool At December 31, 2024, the Respondent’s money pool borrowings were $43 million.

At December 31, 2024, the Respondent had a $500 million credit facility syndicated with a group of banks that expires in December 2028. This facility was initially authorized by the KPSC at Case No. 2015-00138. The KPSC authorized the most recent extension of the facility at Case No. 2023-00398. At
December 31, 2024, the Respondent had no cash borrowings under this facility.

At December 31, 2024, the Respondent maintained a commercial paper program for up to $500 million. Commercial paper issuances are supported by the Respondent's syndicated credit facility based on available capacity. The Respondent had $25 million of commercial paper outstanding at December 31,
2024,

On January 2, 2025, the Respondent amended its credit facility to an amount of $600 million that expires in December 2029. The amendment to this facility is authorized at Case No. 2023-00398.

See Note 8 of the Notes to Financial Statements for further discussion of financing activities.

7. None.

8. During the first quarter of 2024, exempt and non-exempt employees received routine wage increases in accordance with annual salary reviews. During the fourth quarter of 2024, the LG&E IBEW employees received wage increases.

9. See Notes 7 and 12 of Notes to Financial Statements on page 122.

10. None.
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12. See Notes to Financial Statements on page 122.

13. Effective March 3, 2024, Lonnie E. Bellar resigned as Chief Operating Officer from Louisville Gas and Electric Company.

Effective March 3, 2024, Thomas A. Jessee resigned as Vice President-Gas Operations from Louisville Gas and Electric Company.

Effective March 3, 2024, Eileen L. Saunders resigned as Vice President-Customer Services of Louisville Gas and Electric Company.
Effective March 4, 2024, Dean A. Del Vecchio was elected director of Louisville Gas and Electric Company.

Effective March 4, 2024, Thomas A. Jessee was elected Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of Louisville Gas and Electric Company.
Effective March 4, 2024, Shannon L. Montgomery was elected Vice President-Customer Service of Louisville Gas and Electric Company.
Effective March 4, 2024, Thomas Rieth was elected Vice President-Gas Operations of Louisville Gas and Electric Company.

Effective March 4, 2024, Steven B. Tumer's title was changed to Vice President-Generation of Louisville Gas and Electric Company.

14, LG&E is a participant in a cash pooling arrangement, but its proprietary capital ratio is above 30 percent.

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-96)
Page 108-109
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COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS)

Line Title of Account Ref. Page No. Current Year End of Quarter/Year Balance Prior Year End Balance 12/31

No. (a) (c)

1 UTILITY PLANT

2 Utility Plant (101-1086, 114) 200 8,877,733,985 8,856,350,457

3 Construction Work in Progress (107) 200 450,392,475 313,985,972

4 TOTAL Utility Plant (Enter Total of lines 2 and 3) 9,328,126,460 9,170,336,429

5 (Less) Accum. Prov. for Depr. Amort. Depl. (108, 110, 111, 115) 200 3,065,963,718 3,017,090,669

6 Net Utility Plant (Enter Total of line 4 less 5) 6,262,162,742 6,153,245,760

7 Nuclear Fuel in Process of Ref., Conv., Enrich., and Fab. (120.1) 202

8 Nuclear Fuel Materials and Assemblies-Stock Account (120.2)

9 Nuclear Fuel Assemblies in Reactor (120.3)

10 Spent Nuclear Fuel (120.4)

1 Nuclear Fuel Under Capital Leases (120.6)

12 (Less) Accum. Prov. for Amort. of Nucl. Fuel Assemblies (120.5) 202

13 Net Nuclear Fuel (Enter Total of lines 7-11 less 12)

14 Net Utility Plant (Enter Total of lines 6 and 13) 6,262,162,742 6,153,245,760

15 Utility Plant Adjustments (116)

16 Gas Stored Underground - Noncurrent (117) 1,519,174 1,519,174

17 OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS

18 Nonutility Property (121) 337,223 338,543

19 (Less) Accum. Prov. for Depr. and Amort. (122) 63,360 63,360

20 Investments in Associated Companies (123)

21 Investment in Subsidiary Companies (123.1) 224 594,286 594,286

23 Noncurrent Portion of Allowances 228

24 Other Investments (124)

25 Sinking Funds (125)

26 Depreciation Fund (126)

27 Amortization Fund - Federal (127)

28 Other Special Funds (128) 44,491,788 59,234,500

29 Special Funds (Non Major Only) (129)

30 Long-Term Portion of Derivative Assets (175)

Page 110-111
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Line Title of Account Ref. Page No. Current Year End of Quarter/Year Balance Prior Year End Balance 12/31
No. (a) (b) (c)
31 Long-Term Portion of Derivative Assets - Hedges (176)
32 TOTAL Other Property and Investments (Lines 18-21 and 23-31) 45,359,937 60,103,969
33 | CURRENT AND ACCRUED ASSETS
34 Cash and Working Funds (Non-major Only) (130)
35 | Cash (131) 7,677,608 7,679,776
36 Special Deposits (132-134)
37 | Working Fund (135) 180,000 183,790
38 Temporary Cash Investments (136) 10,126,688
39 Notes Receivable (141)
40 Customer Accounts Receivable (142) 135,872,407 117,824,235
41 Other Accounts Receivable (143) 22,056,328 17,823,659
42 (Less) Accum. Prov. for Uncollectible Acct.-Credit (144) 4,005,943 5,223,588
43 Notes Receivable from Associated Companies (145) 40,181
44 Accounts Receivable from Assoc. Companies (146) 40,004,380 29,109,898
45 | Fuel Stock (151) 227 64,356,398 50,079,431
46 Fuel Stock Expenses Undistributed (152) 227
47 Residuals (Elec) and Extracted Products (153) 227
48 Plant Materials and Operating Supplies (154) 227 62,447,577 58,799,337
49 Merchandise (155) 227
50 Other Materials and Supplies (156) 227
51 Nuclear Materials Held for Sale (157) 202/227
52 Allowances (158.1 and 158.2) 228 130 132
53 (Less) Noncurrent Portion of Allowances 228
54 Stores Expense Undistributed (163) 227 21,121,787 167,076
55 Gas Stored Underground - Current (164.1) 29,321,830 34,080,125
56 Liquefied Natural Gas Stored and Held for Processing (164.2-164.3)
57 Prepayments (165) 9,746,215 12,180,618
58 Advances for Gas (166-167)
59 Interest and Dividends Receivable (171) 59,930 93,528
60 | Rents Receivable (172) 3,798,684 2,216,122
61 Accrued Utility Revenues (173) 87,526,223 87,922,168
62 Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Assets (174) 835,465 283,215
63 Derivative Instrument Assets (175)
64 (Less) Long-Term Portion of Derivative Instrument Assets (175)
65 Derivative Instrument Assets - Hedges (176)
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Case No. 2025-00114

Attachment to Filing Requirement

Tab 41 - 807 KAR 5:001 Section 16(7)(k)
Page 24 of 274

McCombs

4/9/25, 5:49 PM FERC Form
Line Title of Account Ref. Page No. Current Year End of Quarter/Year Balance Prior Year End Balance 12/31
No. (a) (b) (c)
66 (Less) Long-Term Portion of Derivative Instrument Assets - Hedges (176)
67 Total Current and Accrued Assets (Lines 34 through 66) 461,039,200 423,346,210
68 DEFERRED DEBITS
69 Unamortized Debt Expenses (181) 14,212,438 15,805,234
70 Extraordinary Property Losses (182.1) 230a
71 Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs (182.2) 230b 83,137,184
72 Other Regulatory Assets (182.3) 232 412,171,805 393,959,096
73 Prelim. Survey and Investigation Charges (Electric) (183) 5,654,871 5,531,980
74 Preliminary Natural Gas Survey and Investigation Charges 183.1)
75 Other Preliminary Survey and Investigation Charges (183.2)
76 Clearing Accounts (184) 385
77 Temporary Facilities (185)
78 Miscellaneous Deferred Debits (186) 233 10,001,058 7,574,527
79 Def. Losses from Disposition of Utility Plt. (187)
80 Research, Devel. and Demonstration Expend. (188) 352 17,395
81 Unamortized Loss on Reaquired Debt (189) 9,229,847 10,296,106
82 Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes (190) 234 176,815,964 9184,635,787
83 Unrecovered Purchased Gas Costs (191)
84 Total Deferred Debits (lines 69 through 83) 711,223,167 617,820,510
85 TOTAL ASSETS (lines 14-16, 32, 67, and 84) 7,481,304,220 7,256,035,623
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Case No. 2025-00114

Attachment to Filing Requirement

Tab 41 - 807 KAR 5:001 Section 16(7)(k)
Page 25 of 274

McCombs

4/9/25, 5:49 PM FERC Form
This report is:
Name of Respondent: An Original Date of Report: Year/Period of Report
Louisville Gas and Electric Company 03/18/2025 End of: 2024/ Q4
()
[ A Resubmission
FOOTNOTE DATA
(a) Concept: StoresExpenseUndistributed
Balance at Beginning of Year $ 167,076
Total Debits 3,148,764
Total Credits (2,194,053)
Balance at End of Year $ 1,121,787
(b). Concept: AccumulatedDeferredincomeTaxes
Balance at Beginning of Year $ 184,635,787
Less Debits to:
Account 410.1 14,369,418
Account 410.2 66
Other Balance Sheet Accounts 6,035,855
Plus Credits to:
Account 411.1 12,583,876
Account 411.2 1,640
Balance at End of Year $ 176,815,964
(c) Concept: StoresExpenseUndistributed
Balance at Beginning of Year $ (142,247)
Total Debits 3,104,018
Total Credits (2,794,695)
Balance at End of Year $ 167,076
(d) Concept: AccumulatedDeferredincomeTaxes
Balance at Beginning of Year $ 184,752,862
Less Debits to:
Account 410.1 10,853,042
Account 410.2 3,143
Other Balance Sheet Accounts 2,616,029
Plus Credits to:
Account 411.1 13,355,012
Account 411.2 127
Balance at End of Year $ 184,635,787

FERC FORM No, 1 (REV. 12-03)
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Case No. 2025-00114

Attachment to Filing Requirement

Tab 41 - 807 KAR 5:001 Section 16(7)(k)
Page 26 of 274

McCombs
4/9/25, 5:49 PM FERC Form
This report is:
Name of Respondent: An Original Date of Report: Year/Period of Report
Louisville Gas and Electric Company ® 03/18/2025 End of: 2024/ Q4
[ A Resubmission
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDITS)

Line Title of Account Ref. Page No. Current Year End of Quarter/Year Balance Prior Year End Balance 12/31
No. (a) (c)
1 PROPRIETARY CAPITAL
2 Common Stock Issued (201) 250 425,170,424 425,170,424
3 Preferred Stock Issued (204) 250
4 Capital Stock Subscribed (202, 205)
5 Stock Liability for Conversion (203, 206)
6 Premium on Capital Stock (207)
7 Other Paid-In Capital (208-211) 253 788,081,499 799,081,499
8 Installments Received on Capital Stock (212) 252
9 (Less) Discount on Capital Stock (213) 254
10 (Less) Capital Stock Expense (214) 254b 835,889 835,889
" Retained Earnings (215, 215.1, 216) 118 1,669,268,425 1,6569,572,731
12 Unappropriated Undistributed Subsidiary Earnings (216.1) 118
13 (Less) Reacquired Capital Stock (217) 250
14 Noncorporate Proprietorship (Non-major only) (218)
15 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (219) 122(a)(b)
16 Total Proprietary Capital (lines 2 through 15) 2,881,684,459 2,782,988,765
17 LONG-TERM DEBT
18 | Bonds (221) 256 2,489,200,000 2,489,200,000
19 (Less) Reacquired Bonds (222) 256
20 Advances from Associated Companies (223) 256
21 Other Long-Term Debt (224) 256
22 Unamortized Premium on Long-Term Debt (225)
23 (Less) Unamortized Discount on Long-Term Debt-Debit (226) 4,058,348 4,347,820
24 Total Long-Term Debt (lines 18 through 23) 2,485,141,652 2,484,852,180
25 | OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
26 Obligations Under Capital Leases - Noncurrent (227) 9,500,652 8,801,743
27 Accumulated Provision for Property Insurance (228.1)
28 Accumulated Provision for Injuries and Damages (228.2) 1,917,290 1,758,733
29 Accumulated Provision for Pensions and Benefits (228.3) 44,928,291 46,676,923

Page 112-113

https://app.wdesk.com/s/fs-viewer/a/QWNjb3VudB8xMDA3N;Y4MTg1Ng/xbrl/report/56e9dc4a-e0f0-4400-a7dd-70ebc754 2ac9/generation/f9c62ed2-1a28-4f7c-83c5-70eealc23efa/artifact/bf6b4568-...  26/274



Case No. 2025-00114
Attachment to Filing Requirement
Tab 41 - 807 KAR 5:001 Section 16(7)(k)
Page 27 of 274

M cCombs

4/9/25, 5:49 PM FERC Form
Line Title of Account Ref. Page No. Current Year End of Quarter/Year Balance Prior Year End Balance 12/31
No. (a) (b) (c)
30 Accumulated Miscellaneous Operating Provisions (228.4)
31 Accumulated Provision for Rate Refunds (229)
32 Long-Term Portion of Derivative Instrument Liabilities 3,397,503 5,753,241
33 Long-Term Portion of Derivative Instrument Liabilities - Hedges
34 Asset Retirement Obligations (230) 88,318,463 91,174,175
35 Total Other Noncurrent Liabilities (lines 26 through 34) 148,062,199 154,164,815
36 | CURRENT AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
37 | Notes Payable (231) 24,960,667
38 | Accounts Payable (232) 171,018,064 129,132,589
39 Notes Payable to Associated Companies (233) 43,360,972 3,650
40 Accounts Payable to Associated Companies (234) 64,388,295 49,308,579
41 Customer Deposits (235) 35,548,418 34,480,093
42 | Taxes Accrued (236) 262 39,581,673 40,743,064
43 | Interest Accrued (237) 20,738,773 20,502,009
44 Dividends Declared (238)
45 Matured Long-Term Debt (239)
46 Matured Interest (240)
47 Tax Collections Payable (241) 2,266,011 2,067,796
48 Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities (242) 24,650,665 23,636,253
49 Obligations Under Capital Leases-Current (243) 5,843,204 5,539,981
50 Derivative Instrument Liabilities (244) 3,835,930 6,410,468
51 (Less) Long-Term Portion of Derivative Instrument Liabilities 3,397,503 5,753,241
52 Derivative Instrument Liabilities - Hedges (245)
53 (Less) Long-Term Portion of Derivative Instrument Liabilities-Hedges
54 Total Current and Accrued Liabilities (lines 37 through 53) 432,795,169 306,071,241
55 DEFERRED CREDITS
56 Customer Advances for Construction (252) 8,854,723 6,535,262
57 Accumulated Deferred Investment Tax Credits (255) 266 29,721,459 30,512,450
58 Deferred Gains from Disposition of Utility Plant (256)
59 | Other Deferred Credits (253) 269 2,822,688 2,038,401
60 | Other Regulatory Liabilities (254) 278 512,555,543 528,321,958
61 Unamortized Gain on Reacquired Debt (257)
62 Accum. Deferred Income Taxes-Accel. Amort.(281) 272
63 Accum. Deferred Income Taxes-Other Property (282) 858,872,549 862,947,609
64 Accum. Deferred Income Taxes-Other (283) 120,793,779 97,602,942
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Case No. 2025-00114
Attachment to Filing Requirement
Tab 41 - 807 KAR 5:001 Section 16(7)(k)

Page 28 of 274
McCombs
4/9/25, 5:49 PM FERC Form
Line Title of Account Ref. Page No. Current Year End of Quarter/Year Balance Prior Year End Balance 12/31
No. (a) (b) (c)
65 Total Deferred Credits (lines 56 through 64) 1,533,620,741 1,527,958,622
66 | TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER EQUITY (lines 16, 24, 35, 54 and 65) 7,481,304,220 7,256,035,623
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Case No. 2025-00114

Attachment to Filing Requirement

Tab 41 - 807 KAR 5:001 Section 16(7)(k)
Page 29 of 274

McCombs

4/9/25, 5:49 PM FERC Form
This report is:
Name of Respondent: An Original Date of Report: Year/Period of Report
Louisville Gas and Electric Company 03/18/2025 End of: 2024/ Q4
()
[ A Resubmission
STATEMENT OF INCOME
Quarterly
1. Report in column (c) the current year to date balance. Column (c) equals the total of adding the data in column (g) plus the data in column (i) plus the data in column (k). Report in column (d) similar data for the previous year.
This information is reported in the annual filing only.
2. Enter in column (e) the balance for the reporting quarter and in column (f) the balance for the same three month period for the prior year.
3. Report in column (g) the quarter to date amounts for electric utility function; in column (i) the quarter to date amounts for gas utility, and in column (k) the quarter to date amounts for other utility function for the current year
quarter.
4. Report in column (h) the quarter to date amounts for electric utility function; in column (j) the quarter to date amounts for gas utility, and in column (I) the quarter to date amounts for other utility function for the prior year quarter.
5. If additional columns are needed, place them in a footnote.
Annual or Quarterly if applicable
6. Do not report fourth quarter data in columns (e) and (f)
7. Report amounts for accounts 412 and 413, Revenues and Expenses from Utility Plant Leased to Others, in another utility column in a similar manner to a utility department. Spread the amount(s) over Lines 2 thru 26 as
appropriate. Include these amounts in columns (c) and (d) totals.
8. Report amounts in account 414, Other Utility Operating Income, in the same manner as accounts 412 and 413 above.
9. Use page 122 for important notes regarding the statement of income for any account thereof.

10. Give concise explanations concerning unsettled rate proceedings where a contingency exists such that refunds of a material amount may need to be made to the utility's customers or which may result in material refund to the
utility with respect to power or gas purchases. State for each year effected the gross revenues or costs to which the contingency relates and the tax effects together with an explanation of the major factors which affect the rights
of the utility to retain such revenues or recover amounts paid with respect to power or gas purchases.

11. Give concise explanations concerning significant amounts of any refunds made or received during the year resulting from settlement of any rate proceeding affecting revenues received or costs incurred for power or gas
purchases, and a summary of the adjustments made to balance sheet, income, and expense accounts.

12. If any notes appearing in the report to stockholders are applicable to the Statement of Income, such notes may be included at page 122.

13. Enter on page 122 a concise explanation of only those changes in accounting methods made during the year which had an effect on net income, including the basis of allocations and apportionments from those used in the
preceding year. Also, give the appropriate dollar effect of such changes.

14. Explain in a footnote if the previous year's/quarter's figures are different from that reported in prior reports.

15. If the columns are insufficient for reporting additional utility departments, supply the appropriate account titles report the information in a footnote to this schedule.

Current 3 Prior 3 Months - - - .
(Ref.) | Total Current Year | Total Prior Year to [ Months Ended Ended - Electric Utility Electric Utility Cu?r:ztUYt:ta):' to Pr(:eisotl"sthtgar Otgzl;rli::ltlty Og:ee:,ilittty
Line Title of Account Page to Date Balance Date Balance for - Quarterly Quarterly Only | Current Yearto | Previous Year to . .
. . Date (in to Date (in Year to Date | Year to Date
No. (a) No. for Quarter/Year Quarter/Year Only - No 4th =No 4th Date (in dollars) Date (in dollars) dollars) dollars) (in dollars) (in dollars)
(b) (c) (d) Quarter Quarter (9) @) ) K W
(e) (U]
1 UTILITY OPERATING
INCOME
2 8%3')3""9 Revenues | 309 1,636,850,979 1,646,412,558 1,278,148,567 1,235,500,756 | 358,702,412 410,911,802
3 Operating Expenses
4 8%‘23"‘"0" Expenses | 329 700,562,484 759,893,036 545,999,422 536,087,633 154,563,062 223,805,403
Maintenance
5 Expenses (402) 320 100,352,666 92,885,843 77,180,506 75,728,849 23,172,160 17,156,994
6 2‘%"3’)9‘"3""" Expense | 336 284,522,665 279,495,614 239,990,074 236,196,254 44,532,591 43,299,360
Depreciation Expense
7 for Asset Retirement 336
Costs (403.1)
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4/9/25, 5:49 PM

Case No. 2025-00114

Attachment to Filing Requirement

Tab 41 - 807 KAR 5:001 Section 16(7)(k)
Page 30 of 274

McCombs

FERC Form

Line
No.

Title of Account
(a)

(Ref.)
Page

®

Total Current Year
to Date Balance
for Quarter/Year

(c)

Total Prior Year to
Date Balance for
Quarter/Year
(d)

Current 3
Months Ended
- Quarterly
Only - No 4th
Quarter
(e)

Prior 3 Months
Ended -
Quarterly Only
= No 4th
Quarter
()

Gas Utiity Gas Utility | Other Utility

: Current Year to | Previous Year Current
Current Year to | Previous Year to Date (in to Date (in Year to Date

Date (in dollars) Date (in dollars) dollars) dollars) (in dollars)

@ ® ) 0 7

Electric Utility Electric Utility

Other Utility
Previous
Year to Date
(in dollars)
M

Amort. & Depl. of
Utility Plant (404-405)

336

17,767,994

19,908,278

12,264,129 13,736,679 5,503,865 6,171,599

Amort. of Utility Plant
Acq. Adj. (406)

336

Amort. Property
Losses, Unrecov Plant
and Regulatory Study
Costs (407)

Amort. of Conversion
Expenses (407.2)

Regulatory Debits
(407.3)

6,546,603

4,619,047

5,292,980 4,619,047 1,253,623

(Less) Regulatory
Credits (407.4)

576,690

197,790

380,397 110,851 196,293 86,939

Taxes Other Than
Income Taxes (408.1)

262

58,601,950

57,342,209

43,684,188 42,711,144 14,917,762 14,631,065

Income Taxes -
Federal (409.1)

262

59,909,778

70,112,338

51,953,368 57,019,445 7,956,410 13,092,893

Income Taxes - Other
(409.1)

262

10,591,076

12,525,575

9,482,786 10,482,428 1,108,290 2,043,147

Provision for Deferred
Income Taxes (410.1)

234,
272

139,493,259

122,618,520

102,543,539 90,058,397 36,949,720 32,560,123

(Less) Provision for
Deferred Income
Taxes-Cr. (411.1)

234,
272

132,182,392

135,999,514

107,378,509 106,738,599 24,803,883 29,260,915

Investment Tax Credit
Adj. - Net (411.4)

266

(790,992)

(902,681)

(790,991) (902,549) o) (132)

20

(Less) Gains from
Disp. of Utility Plant
(411.6)

21

Losses from Disp. of
Utility Plant (411.7)

22

(Less) Gains from
Disposition of
Allowances (411.8)

35

38

35 38

23

Losses from
Disposition of
Allowances (411.9)

24

Accretion Expense
(411.10)

25

TOTAL Utility
Operating Expenses
(Enter Total of lines 4
thru 24)

1,244,798,366

1,282,300,437

979,841,060 958,887,839 264,957,306 323,412,598
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Case No. 2025-00114
Attachment to Filing Requirement
Tab 41 - 807 KAR 5:001 Section 16(7)(k)

Page 31 of 274

McCombs
4/9/25, 5:49 PM FERC Form
Current 3 Prior 3 Months - - e -
(Ref.) | Total Current Year | Total Prior Year to | Months Ended Ended - Electric Utility Electric Utility Cuﬁ:?ltuYt:;yr to Pg:isol:'slllY(Zar O(Ei:rliﬂlt“y O;hrzl"lil:l)t‘l::y
Line Title of Account Page to Date Balance Date Balance for - Quarterly Quarterly Only | Current Year to Previous Year to Date (in to Date (in Year to Date | Year to Date
No. (@) No. for Quarter/Year Quarter/Year Only - No 4th = No 4th Date (in dollars) Date (in dollars) dollars) dollars) (in dollars) (in dollars)
(b) (c) (d) Quarter Quarter (9) h i) I (k) I
(e) ()
Net Util Oper Inc
27 | (Enter Tot line 2 less 392,052,613 364,112,121 298,307,507 276,612,917 93,745,106 87,499,204
25)
28 Other Income and
Deductions
29 Other Income
30 Nonutilty Operating
Income
Revenues From
Merchandising,
31 Jobbing and Contract 2810510 2726547
Work (415)
(Less) Costs and Exp.
32 | of Merchandising, Job. 2,311,289 2,330,453
& Contract Work (416)
Revenues From
33 Nonutility Operations 1,235,046 1,273,244
(417)
(Less) Expenses of
34 Nonutility Operations
(417.1)
35 Nonoperating Rental
Income (418)
Equity in Earnings of
36 Subsidiary Companies 119
(418.1)
Interest and Dividend
37 | ncome 419) 2,612,236 1,758,319
Allowance for Other
38 | Funds Used During 6,515,647 2,707,117
Construction (419.1)
Miscellaneous
39 Nonoperating Income 46,541 44,244
(421
40 Gain on Disposition of
Property (421.1)
TOTAL Other Income
41 (Enter Total of lines 31 10,908,691 6,179,018
thru 40)
42 Other Income
Deductions
Loss on Disposition of
43 | Property (421.2) 1448
m Miscellaneous
Amortization (425)
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Case No. 2025-00114
Attachment to Filing Requirement
Tab 41 - 807 KAR 5:001 Section 16(7)(k)

Page 32 of 274

McCombs
4/9/25, 5:49 PM FERC Form
Current 3 Prior 3 Months i - e -
(Ref.) | Total Current Year | Total Prior Year to | Months Ended Ended - Electric Utility Electric Utility Cuﬁ:?ltuYt:;yr to Pg:isol:'slllY(Zar O(Ei:rliﬂlt“y o:._,hrzl"lilit:;ty
Line Title of Account Page to Date Balance Date Balance for - Quarterly Quarterly Only | Current Year to Previous Year to Date (in to Date (in Year to Date | Year to Date
No. (a) No. for Quarter/Year Quarter/Year Only - No 4th = No 4th Date (in dollars) Date (in dollars) dollars) dollars) (in dollars) (in dollars)
(b) (c) (d) Quarter Quarter (9) i) I (k) I
(e) ()
45 Donations (426.1) 577,069 694,258
46 Life Insurance (426.2)
47 | Penalties (426.3) 116,010 299,774
Exp. for Certain Civic,
48 | Political & Related 721,931 838,391
Activities (426.4)
Other Deductions
49 (426.5) 662,804 899,020
TOTAL Other Income
50 Deductions (Total of 2,079,262 2,731,443
lines 43 thru 49)
Taxes Applic. to Other
51 Income and
Deductions
Taxes Other Than
52 Income Taxes (408.2) 262 4,272 4,320
Income Taxes-Federal
53 (409.2) 262 225217 70,054
Income Taxes-Other
54 (409.2) 262 56,445 17,557
Provision for Deferred 234,
55 | inc. Taxes (410.2) 272 66 3,143
(Less) Provision for 234
56 Deferred Income 272' 1,640 127
Taxes-Cr. (411.2)
57 Investment Tax Credit
Adj.-Net (411.5)
58 (Less) Investment Tax
Credits (420)
TOTAL Taxes on
Other Income and
59 Deductions (Total of 284,360 94,947
lines 52-58)
Net Other Income and
60 Deductions (Total of 8,545,069 3,352,628
lines 41, 50, 59)
61 Interest Charges
Interest on Long-Term
62 | pept (@27 101,193,587 97,163,403
Amort. of Debt Disc.
63 | and Expense (428) 1,956,769 1,691,457
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Case No. 2025-00114

Attachment to Filing Requirement

Tab 41 - 807 KAR 5:001 Section 16(7)(k)
Page 33 of 274

McCombs
4/9/25, 5:49 PM FERC Form
Current 3 Prior 3 Months - - e -
(Ref.) | Total Current Year | Total Prior Year to | Months Ended Ended - Electric Utility Electric Utility Cuﬁ:?ltuYt:;yr to Pg:isol:'slllY(Zar O(Ei:rliﬂlt“y o:._,hrzl"lilit::y
Line Title of Account Page to Date Balance Date Balance for - Quarterly Quarterly Only | Current Year to Previous Year to Date (in to Date (in Year to Date | Year to Date
No. (@) No. for Quarter/Year Quarter/Year Only - No 4th = No 4th Date (in dollars) Date (in dollars) dollars) dollars) (in dollars) (in dollars)
(b) (c) (d) Quarter Quarter (9) (h) i) I (k) I
(e) ()
Amortization of Loss
64 on Reaquired Debt 1,066,259 1,060,177
(428.1)
(Less) Amort. of
65 Premium on Debt-
Credit (429)
(Less) Amortization of
66 Gain on Reaquired
Debt-Credit (429.1)
Interest on Debt to
67 Assoc. Companies 336,554 71,562
(430)
Other Interest
68 Expense (431) 2,171,935 2,337,354
(Less) Allowance for
Borrowed Funds Used
69 During Construction- 3,323,116 1,815,220
Cr. (432)
Net Interest Charges
70 | (Total of lines 62 thru 103,401,988 101,008,733
69)
Income Before
Extraordinary ltems
71 (Total of lines 27, 60 297,195,694 266,456,016
and 70)
72 Extraordinary Items
73 Extraordinary Income
(434)
74 (Less) Extraordinary
Deductions (435)
Net Extraordinary
75 Items (Total of line 73
less line 74)
Income Taxes-Federal
76| and Other (409.3) 262
Extraordinary ltems
77 After Taxes (line 75
less line 76)
Net Income (Total of
78 | ine 71 and 77) 297,195,694 266,456,016
Page 114-117
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Name of Respondent:
Louisville Gas and Electric Company

This report is:
An Original

()
[ A Resubmission

Date of Report:
03/18/2025

Year/Period of Report

End of: 2024/ Q4

STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS

PNDOA 0N

©

Do not report Lines 49-53 on the quarterly report.

Report all changes in appropriated retained earnings, unappropriated retained earnings, and unappropriated undistributed subsidiary earnings for the year.

Each credit and debit during the year should be identified as to the retained earnings account in which recorded (Accounts 433, 436-439 inclusive). Show the contra primary account affected in column (b).
State the purpose and amount for each reservation or appropriation of retained earnings.
List first Account 439, Adjustments to Retained Earnings, reflecting adjustments to the opening balance of retained earnings. Follow by credit, then debit items, in that order.

Show dividends for each class and series of capital stock.

Show separately the State and Federal income tax effect of items shown for Account 439, Adjustments to Retained Earnings.

Explain in a footnote the basis for determining the amount reserved or appropriated. If such reservation or appropriation is to be recurrent, state the number and annual amounts to be reserved or appropriated as well as the

totals eventually to be accumulated.

If any notes appearing in the report to stockholders are applicable to this statement, attach them at page 122.

Line
No.

Item

(a)

Contra Primary Account

Affected
(b)

Current Quarter/Year Year to Date

Balance

(c)

Previous Quarter/Year Year to Date

Balance

(d)

UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS (Account 216)

Balance-Beginning of Period

1,559,572,731

1,460,116,715

2 Changes

3 Adjustments to Retained Earnings (Account 439)

4 Adjustments to Retained Earnings Credit

4.1 | Adjustments to Retained Earning Credit

9 TOTAL Credits to Retained Earnings (Acct. 439)

10 Adjustments to Retained Earnings Debit

10.1 | Adjustments to Retained Earnings Debit

15 TOTAL Debits to Retained Earnings (Acct. 439)

16 Balance Transferred from Income (Account 433 less Account 418.1) 297,195,694 266,456,016
17 Appropriations of Retained Earnings (Acct. 436)

22 TOTAL Appropriations of Retained Earnings (Acct. 436)

23 Dividends Declared-Preferred Stock (Account 437)

29 TOTAL Dividends Declared-Preferred Stock (Acct. 437)

30 Dividends Declared-Common Stock (Account 438)

30.1 | Dividends Declared-Common Stock (187,500,000) (167,000,000)
36 TOTAL Dividends Declared-Common Stock (Acct. 438) (187,500,000) (167,000,000)
37 Transfers from Acct 216.1, Unapprop. Undistrib. Subsidiary Earnings

38 Balance - End of Period (Total 1,9,15,16,22,29,36,37) 1,669,268,425 1,659,572,731
39 | APPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS (Account 215)

39.1 | APPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS (Account 215)

45 TOTAL Appropriated Retained Earnings (Account 215)
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APPROP. RETAINED EARNINGS - AMORT. Reserve, Federal (Account 215.1)

46 TOTAL Approp. Retained Earnings-Amort. Reserve, Federal (Acct. 215.1)

47 TOTAL Approp. Retained Earnings (Acct. 215, 215.1) (Total 45,46)

48 TOTAL Retained Earnings (Acct. 215, 215.1, 216) (Total 38, 47) (216.1) 1,669,268,425 1,5569,572,731
UNAPPROPRIATED UNDISTRIBUTED SUBSIDIARY EARNINGS (Account Report only on an Annual
Basis, no Quarterly)

49 Balance-Beginning of Year (Debit or Credit)

50 Equity in Earnings for Year (Credit) (Account 418.1)

51 (Less) Dividends Received (Debit)

52 TOTAL other Changes in unappropriated undistributed subsidiary earnings for the year

52.1 | TOTAL other Changes in unappropriated undistributed subsidiary earnings for the year

53 Balance-End of Year (Total lines 49 thru 52)

FERC FORM No. 1 (REV. 02-04)
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This report is:
Name of Respondent: An Original Date of Report: Year/Period of Report
Louisville Gas and Electric Company ? 03/18/2025 End of: 2024/ Q4
[ A Resubmission
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

1. Codes to be used:(a) Net Proceeds or Payments;(b)Bonds, debentures and other long-term debt; (c) Include commercial paper; and (d) Identify separately such items as investments, fixed assets, intangibles, etc.

2. Information about noncash investing and financing activities must be provided in the Notes to the Financial statements. Also provide a reconciliation between "Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period" with related amounts

3. (o)r;g::t&zlil‘ii?/iﬁ:se ?t(')ther: Include gains and losses pertaining to operating activities only. Gains and losses pertaining to investing and financing activities should be reported in those activities. Show in the Notes to the

Financials the amounts of interest paid (net of amount capitalized) and income taxes paid.
4. Investing Activities: Include at Other (line 31) net cash outflow to acquire other companies. Provide a reconciliation of assets acquired with liabilities assumed in the Notes to the Financial Statements. Do not include on this
statement the dollar amount of leases capitalized per the USofA General Instruction 20; instead provide a reconciliation of the dollar amount of leases capitalized with the plant cost.
Line Description (See Instructi No.1 for of codes) Current Year to Date Quarter/Year Previous Year to Date Quarter/Year
No. (a) (c)
1 Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities
2 Net Income (Line 78(c) on page 117) 297,195,694 266,456,016
3 Noncash Charges (Credits) to Income:
4 Depreciation and Depletion 284,522,665 279,495,614
5 Amortization of (Specify) (footnote details)
5.1 Amortization of Plant and Regulatory Debits and Credits 32,390,117 33,057,579
5.2 Amortization of Debt Discount and Debt Issuance Costs 3,023,028 2,751,634
5.3 Amortization of Research and Development Projects 17,333 104,000
5.4 Provision for Pension and Postretirement Benefits (1,545,789) (58,951)
5.5 (Gain)/Loss on Sales of Assets 1,448
5.6 Other Deductions
5.7 | Other (5,370,180)
8 Deferred Income Taxes (Net) 7,309,293 (13,377,978)
9 Investment Tax Credit Adjustment (Net) (790,992) (902,681)
10 Net (Increase) Decrease in Receivables (37,126,742) 70,134,001
" Net (Increase) Decrease in Inventory (13,501,583) 22,517,860
12 Net (Increase) Decrease in Allowances Inventory 2 1
13 Net Increase (Decrease) in Payables and Accrued Expenses 21,577,668 (43,870,292)
14 Net (Increase) Decrease in Other Regulatory Assets (14,634,203) 3,084,245
15 Net Increase (Decrease) in Other Regulatory Liabilities 666,228 10,024,339
16 (Less) Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction 6,515,647 2,707,117
17 (Less) Undistributed Earnings from Subsidiary Companies
18 Other (provide details in footnote):
18.1 | Net (Increase) Decrease in Prepayments and Other Assets 2,434,403 4,931,195
Page 120-121
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Line Description (See Instr No.1 for I of codes) Current Year to Date Quarter/Year Previous Year to Date Quarter/Year
No. (a) (c)
18.2 | Net Increase (Decrease) in Customer Advances for Construction 2,319,461 636,832
18.3 | Pension and Postretirement Funding 196,146 648,134
18.4 | Net Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabilities (1,184,292) (109,599)
18.5 | Net Increase (Decrease) in ARO Liabilities
18.6 | Net (Increase) Decrease in Special Funds 779,629 (779,627)
18.7 | Other (2)
18.8 | Net (Increase) Decrease in Other Deferred Debits (4,619,316) (3,424,146)
18.9 | Net Increase (Decrease) in Other Deferred Credits 1,093,116 957,840
18.10 | Payments for Asset Retirement Obligations (11,214,196) (10,860,554)
22 Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities (Total of Lines 2 thru 21) 562,393,469 613,338,165
24 Cash Flows from Investment Activities:
25 Construction and Acquisition of Plant (including land):
26 Gross Additions to Utility Plant (less nuclear fuel) (376,821,351) (334,899,454)
27 Gross Additions to Nuclear Fuel
28 Gross Additions to Common Utility Plant (62,315,525) (35,296,073)
29 Gross Additions to Nonutility Plant
30 (Less) Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction (6,515,647) (2,707,117)
31 Other (provide details in footnote):
31.1 [ Costs of Removal of Utility Plant (18,329,158) (15,440,728)
31.2 | Proceeds from the settlements of insurance claims
34 Cash Outflows for Plant (Total of lines 26 thru 33) (450,950,387) (382,929,138)
36 Acquisition of Other Noncurrent Assets (d)
37 Proceeds from Disposal of Noncurrent Assets (d)
39 Investments in and Advances to Assoc. and Subsidiary Companies (40,181)
40 Contributions and Advances from Assoc. and Subsidiary Companies 43,357,322 (34,862)
41 Disposition of Investments in (and Advances to)
42 Disposition of Investments in (and Advances to) Associated and Subsidiary Companies
44 Purchase of Investment Securities (a)
45 Proceeds from Sales of Investment Securities (a)
46 Loans Made or Purchased
47 Collections on Loans
49 Net (Increase) Decrease in Receivables
50 Net (Increase) Decrease in Inventory
51 Net (Increase) Decrease in Allowances Held for Speculation
52 Net Increase (Decrease) in Payables and Accrued Expenses
Page 120-121
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Line Description (See Instructi No.1 for I of codes) Current Year to Date Quarter/Year Previous Year to Date Quarter/Year
No. (a) (c)
53 Other (provide details in footnote):
53.1 | Other
57 Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities (Total of lines 34 thru 55) (407,633,246) (382,964,000)
59 Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
60 Proceeds from Issuance of:
61 Long-Term Debt (b) 464,088,000
62 Preferred Stock
63 Common Stock
64 Other (provide details in footnote):
64.1 | LG&E and KU Energy LLC Equity Contribution 65,000,000 67,000,000
64.2 | Issuance of Commercial Paper
66 Net Increase in Short-Term Debt (c) 24,960,667
67 Other (provide details in footnote):
67.1 | Net Change in Restricted Cash 9,154,836
70 Cash Provided by Outside Sources (Total 61 thru 69) 99,115,503 531,088,000
72 Payments for Retirement of:
73 Long-term Debt (b) (300,000,000)
74 Preferred Stock
75 Common Stock
76 Other (provide details in footnote):
76.1 | Debt Issuance Costs (508,372) (4,600,866)
76.2 | Net Change in Restricted Cash (24,893,027)
76.3 | Acquisition of outstanding long-term debt
76.4 | Return of Capital to Parent (76,000,000) (161,000,000)
78 Net Decrease in Short-Term Debt (c) (179,259,979)
80 Dividends on Preferred Stock
81 Dividends on Common Stock (187,500,000) (167,000,000)
83 Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities (Total of lines 70 thru 81) (164,892,869) (305,665,872)
85 Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
86 Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (Total of line 22, 57 and 83) (10,132,646) (75,291,707)
88 Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period ©17,990,254 93,281,961
90 Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period 7 857,608 417,990,254
Page 120-121
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Name of Respondent: An Original Date of Report: Year/Period of Report
Louisville Gas and Electric Company 03/18/2025 End of: 2024/ Q4

()

[ AResubmission

FOOTNOTE DATA

(a) Concept: CashAndCashEquivalents

[Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following amounts:

Cash (131) $ 7,679,776
Working Fund (135) 183,790
‘Temporary Cash Investments (136) 10,126,688
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 17,990,254
(b) Concept: CashAndCashEquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following amounts:

Cash (131) $ 7,677,608
Working Fund (135) 180,000
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 7,857,608
(c) Concept: CashAndCashEquivalents

[Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following amounts:

Cash (131) $ 7,679,776
Working Fund (135) 183,790
‘Temporary Cash Investments (136) 10,126,688
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 17,990,254

FERC FORM No. 1 (ED. 12-96)
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This report is:
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Louisville Gas and Electric Company 03/18/2025 End of: 2024/ Q4
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[ A Resubmission

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N

according to each basic statement, providing a subheading for each statement except where a note is applicable to more than one statement.
Furnish particulars (details) as to any significant contingent assets or liabilities existing at end of year, including a brief explanation of any action initiated by the Internal Revenue Service involving possible assessment of
additional income taxes of material amount, or of a claim for refund of income taxes of a material amount initiated by the utility. Give also a brief explanation of any dividends in arrears on cumulative preferred stock.

w N

classification of amounts as plant adjustments and requirements as to disposition thereof.

&

Uniform System of Accounts.
Give a concise explanation of any retained earnings restrictions and state the amount of retained earnings affected by such restrictions.

oo

be included herein.

N

recent FERC Annual Report may be omitted.

For the 3Q disclosures, the disclosures shall be provided where events subsequent to the end of the most recent year have occurred which have a material effect on the respondent. Respondent must include in the notes
significant changes since the most recently completed year in such items as: accounting principles and practices; estimates inherent in the preparation of the financial statements; status of long-term contracts; capitalization
including significant new borrowings or modifications of existing financing agreements; and changes resulting from business combinations or dispositions. However were material contingencies exist, the disclosure of such
matters shall be provided even though a significant change since year end may not have occurred.

Finally, if the notes to the financial statements relating to the respondent appearing in the annual report to the stockholders are applicable and furnish the data required by the above instructions, such notes may be included
herein.

©

©

. Use the space below for important notes regarding the Balance Sheet, Statement of Income for the year, Statement of Retained Earnings for the year, and Statement of Cash Flows, or any account thereof. Classify the notes

For Account 116, Utility Plant Adjustments, explain the origin of such amount, debits and credits during the year, and plan of disposition contemplated, giving references to Commission orders or other authorizations respecting

Where Accounts 189, Unamortized Loss on Reacquired Debt, and 257, Unamortized Gain on Reacquired Debt, are not used, give an explanation, providing the rate treatment given these items. See General Instruction 17 of the

. If the notes to financial statements relating to the respondent company appearing in the annual report to the stockholders are applicable and furnish the data required by instructions above and on pages 114-121, such notes may

For the 3Q disclosures, respondent must provide in the notes sufficient disclosures so as to make the interim information not misleading. Disclosures which would substantially duplicate the disclosures contained in the most
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As permitted by the FERC for the 2024 FERC Form No. 1, the Notes to Financial Statements set forth below are principally from the Respondent's SEC Form 10-K and do not reflect updated information, except for No!e 1,6, 21 and 22. Note 1 was modified to

update the basis of presentation hr FERC reporting, Note 6 was to address

was added to disclose

include all

from these

has
disclosure purposed through March 18 2025. These fmanclal

Presentation

The accompanying financial statements are prepared on the regulatory basis of ing in

with the

Reporting Classifications

FERC reporting

in the FERC policy Statement, Docket No. PL19-2-000. Note 21 was
the impact of events occumng after December 31, 2024 up to February 13, 2025, the date that LGE’s U.S. GAAP financial statements were issued and has updated such evaluation for
and

of the FERC, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than GAAP. The significant differences between GAAP and FERC reporting are as follows:

for Cash Flows. Note 22

to update

GAAP reporting

Balance Shect presentation

Reported in order of Uniform System of Accounts (18 CFR Part 101) account number

Reported in order of liquidity

Amounts presented within the Balance Sheet and Income Statement

Reported without Purchase Accounting adjustments

Reported with Purchase Accounting adjustments.

Pension and Post-retirement plan non-service costs or credits

‘Capital portion reported in Electric Plant in Service (101) and Construction Work in Progress (107).

Depreciation on Capital component is reported in Accumulated Provision for Depreciation of Electric Utility
Plant (108) and Depreciation Expense (403)

Expense portion reported in Pension and Benefits (926) under Administrative and General

Portion capitalized for FERC is reported as a regulatory asset or liability for GAAP
Regulatory Asset or Liability is amortized to Other Income and Expense

Expense portion reported in Other Income and Expense

Regulatory assct maturity classification

Reported in total in Other Regulatory Asscts (182.3) with no distinction between current and non-current

Short-term Regulatory Asscts are reported in Current Assets and Long-Term Regulatory Asscts are reported in
Other Noncurrent Assets

Regulatory liability maturity classification

Reported in total in Other Regulatory Liabilities (254) with no distinction between current and non-current

Short-term Regulatory Liabilities are reported in Current Liabilitics and Long-Term Regulatory Liabilities are
reported in Deferred Credits and Other Noncurrent Liabilities

‘Accumulated cost of removal of utility plant

Reported in Accumulated Provision for Depreciation of Electric Utility Plant (108)

Reported in regulatory liabilitics,

Certain intangible assets

Reported in Utility Plant (101-106, 114) and Reported in Accumulated Provision for Depreciation of Electric
Utility Plant (108)

Reported in Other Noncurrent Assets

Unamortized losses on reacquired debt

Reported in Unamortized Loss on Reacquired Debt (189)

Reported in Regulatory Assets

Unamortized debt expense related to long-term debt

Reported in Unamortized Debt Expenses (181)

Reported as offset to Long-term Debt

Operating lease right of use assets

Reported in PP&E (101)

Reported in Other Noncurrent Assets

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Reported in the respective accumulated deferred income tax FERC accounts (i.e. FERC Accounts Deferred
Asset (190) and Deferred Liability (282 — 283) for a gross balance sheet presentation)

Netted and categorized into noncurrent deferred tax asset and/or liability positions on the Balance Sheets

Income taxes

Income Taxes (408.1-408.2, 409.1-409.2), Deferred Taxes (410.1-410.2, 411.1-411.2) and Investment Tax
Credits (411.4 -411.5) are reported on separate lines on the Income Statement

Income Taxes, Deferred Taxes and Investment Tax Credits are netted on a single line on the Income Statement

Rent receivables

Reported in Rents Receivable (172)

Reported in Accounts Receivable - Other

Noncurrent Prepayments

Reported in Prepayments (165)

Reported in Other Noncurrent Asscts

Payable and Accrued expenses

Reported in Accounts Payable (232) and Reported in Tax Collections Payable (241)

Reported in Other current liabilities

Certain retirement work in progress amounts

Reported in Accumulated Provision for Depreciation of Electric Utility Plant (108)

Reported in Asset Retirement Obligations.

Implementation costs incurred in a cloud computing arrangement that is considered a service contract

Reported in PP&L (101,106, 107, 111). Reported as Investing Activily on Statement of Cash Ilows.

Reporied in Other Noncurrent Assels. Reported as Operating Activity on Statement of Cash Flows.

Borrowings from associated companics

Reported as Investing Activity on Statcment of Cash Flows (233-234)

Reported as Financing Activity on Statement of Cash Flows

Natural gas pipeline inspection retesting cosls incurred related 1o new federal regulations.

Reported in PP&E (101, 107). Reported as Invesling Activily on Statement of Cash Flows.

Reported in Noncurrent Regulatory Assels. Reported as Operating Activily on Statement of Cash Flows.

Credit facility fee amortization and commitment fees

Reported in Miscellaneous General (930.2)

Reported in Interest Expense

Cloud Implementation Costs

Reported in Ulility Plant (101-106, 114) on the Balance Sheet and Amort. & Depl. of Utility Plant (404-405) on
the Income Statement

Reported in Prepayments on (he Balance Sheel and Other operation and maintenance on the Income Statement

Goodwill

Not included in financial records of the Utility

Reported in Other Noncurrent Asscts

‘Tax exempt bond funds from debt transactions held as restricted cash for future spending on a project.

Reported in Special Funds (128). Reported as Investing Activity on Statement of Cash Flows.

Reported in Other Noncurrent Assets. Reported as a changed in Cash, Cash Liquivalents, Restricted Cash and
Restricted Cash Equivalents in the Statement of Cash Flows.

Opportunity KY Funds held as restricted cash related to cconomic funding activity held in cxternal accounts

Reported in Special Funds (128). Reported as Operating Activity on Statement of Cash Flows.

Reported in Other Noncurrent Asscts. Roporicd as a changed in Cas
Restricted Cash Equivalents in the Statement of Cash Flows.

Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash and

Incremental equity component of the Allowance for Funds Used During Construction at Weighted Average Cost
of Capital Rates

Reported in Other Regulatory Assets (182.3)

Reported in PP&E

Tn-Line Inspection Cos(s - Costs capilalized for in-line inspections per FERC special ruling

Reported in Ufility Plant (101-106) and Accumulated Provision for Depreciation of Rlectric Utility Plant (108)
on the Balance Sheet and Depreciation Expense (403) on the Income Statement

Reported in Regulalory Assels - Noncurrent - Other on the Balance Sheet and Operations and Maintenance
Expense on the Income Statement

Prepaid Pension

Reported in Special Funds (128)

Reported in Other Noncurrent Asscts

Long-term debt due within one year

Reported in Bonds (221)

Reported in Current Liabilities

Commercial paper and discount

Reported in Notes Payable (231)

Reported in Short-Term Debt

Land rights, franchises and consents

Reported in Utility Plant (101)

Reported in Other Noncurrent Assets

CEP Reserves - CEP Reserves, Inc.,

GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

PPL C and its

a cash management subsidiary of PPL that maintains cash reserves for the balance sheet management of PPL and certain subsidiaries.

KU - Kentucky Utilities Company, a public utility subsidiary of LKE engaged in the regulated gencration, transmission, distribution and sale of electricity, primarily in Kentucky.

LG&E - Louisville Gas and Electric Company, a public utility subsidiary of LKE engaged in the regulated generation, transmission, distribution and sale of electricity and the distribution and sale of natural gas in Kentucky.

LKE - LG&E and KU Energy LLC, a subsidiary of PPL and the parent of LG&E, KU and other subsidiaries.
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LKS - LG&E and KU Services Company, a subsidiary of LKE that provides administrative, management and support services primarily to LG&E and KU, as well as to LKE and its other subsidiarics.

Electric - The FElectric Company, an entity that serves electric and natural gas customers in Rhode Island. On May 25, 2022, PPL and its subsidiary, PPL Rhode Island Holdings the of the i of FElectric, which will continue to provide
services under the name Rhode Tsland Energy.

PPL - PPL Corporation, the ultimate parent holding company of PPL Electric, PPL Energy Funding, PPL Capital Funding, LKE, RIE and other subsidiarics.

PPL Capital Funding - PPL Capital Funding, Inc., a financing subsidiary of PPL that provides financing for the operations of PPL and ccrtain subsidiarics. Debt issucd by PPL Capital Funding is fully and unconditionally guarantced as to payment by PPL.

PPL Electric - PPL Electric Utilities Corporation, a public utility subsidiary of PPL engaged in the regulated transmission and distribution of electricity in its Pennsylvania service area and that provides electricity supply to its retail customers in this area as a PLR.
PPL Energy Funding - PPL Energy Funding Corporation, a subsidiary of PPL and the parent holding company of PPL Global and other subsidiaries.

PPL Energy Holdings - PPL Energy Holdings, LLC, a subsidiary of PPL and the parent holding company of PPL Energy Funding, LKE, PPL Electric, PPL Rhode Island Holdings, PPL Services and other subsidiaries.

PPL EU Services - PPL EU Services Corporation, a subsidiary of PPL that provided administrative, management and support services primarily to PPL Electric. On December 31, 2021, PPL EU Services merged into PPL Services.

PPL Global - PPL Global, LLC, a subsidiary of PPL Energy Funding that, prior to the sale of the U.K. utility business on June 14, 2021, primarily through its subsidiaries, owned and operated WPD, PPL's regulated electricity distribution businesses in the U.K. PPL Global was not included in the sale of the
UK. utility business on June 14, 2021.

PPL Rhode Island Holdings - PPL Rhodc Island Holdings, LLC, a subsidiary of PPL Encrgy Holdings formed for the purposc of acquiring Narragansett Elcctric to which ccrtain interasts of PPL Encrgy Holdings in the Narragansett SPA werc assigned.

PPL Services - PPL Services Corporation, a subsidiary of PPL that provides administrative, management and support services to PPL and its subsidiaries.

PPL WPD Limited - PPL WPD Limited, a UK. subsidiary of PPL Global. Prior to the sale of the U.K. utility business on June 14, 2021, PPL WPD Limited was an indirect parent to WPD. PPL WPD Limited was not included in the sale of the U.K. utility business on June 14, 2021.

RIE - Rhode Island Energy, the name under which Narragansett Clectric will continue to provide services subsequent to its acquisition by PPL and its subsidiary, PPL Rhode Island Holdings on May 25, 2022

Other terms and abbreviations

£- British pound sterling.

401(h) - asut ished within a qualified pension trust to provide for the payment of retiree medical costs.
Act 11 - Act 11 of 2012 that becamc cffective on April 16, 2012. The Pennsylvania legislation authorized the PAPUC to approve two specific ratemaking mechanisms: the usc of' a fully projected future test year in basc ratc proceedings and, subject to certain conditions. a DSIC.

Act 129 - Act 129 of 2008 that became effective in October 2008. The law amended the Pennsylvania Public Utility Code and created an energy efficiency and conservation program and smart metering technology requirements, adopted new PLR electricity supply procurement rules, provided remedies for
‘market misconduct and changed the Alternative Energy Portfolio Standard (AEPS).

Act 129 Smart Meter program - PPL Electric's system-wide meter replacement program that installs wireless digital meters that provide secure communication between PPL Electric and the meter as well as all related infrastructure.

AFUDC - allowance for funds used during construction. The cost of cquity and debt funds used to finance construction projects of regulated which is capitalized as part of fon costs.

AOCI - accumulated other comprehensive income or loss.

ARO - asset retirement obligation.

ATM Program - at-the-market stock offering program.

Bef - billion cubic feet. A unit of measure commonly used in quoting volumes of natural gas.

Cane Run Unit 7 - a NGCC generating unit in Kentucky, jointly owned by LG&E and KU.

CCRY(s) - coal combustion rosidual(s). CCRs include fly ash, bottom ash and sulfur dioxide scrubber wastes.

Clean Air Act - federal legislation enacted to address certain environmental issues related to air emissions, including acid rain, ozone and toxic air emissions.

Clean Water Act - federal legislation enacted to address certain environmental issues relating to water quality including effluent discharges, cooling water intake, and dredge and fill activities.
COVID-19 - the disease caused by the coronavirus identified in 2019 that caused a global pandemic.

CPCN - Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity. Authority granted by the KPSC pursuant to Kentucky Revised Statute 278,020 to provide utility service to or for the public or the construction of certain plant, equipment, property or facilities for furnishing of utility service to the public. A CPCN is
required for any capital addition, subject to KPSC jurisdiction, in excess of $100 million.

Customer Choice Act - the Pennsylvania Electricity Generation Customer Choice and Competition Act, legislation enacted to restructure the state's electric utility industry to create retail access to a competitive market for generation of electricity.

DDCP - Dircctors Deferred Compensation Plan.
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lifving distrib

DSIC - Distribution System Improvement Charge. Authorized under Act 11, which is an providing more-timely cost recovery of g

system capital

DSM - Demand Side Management. Pursuant to Kentucky Revised Statute 278.285, the KPSC may determine (he reasonableness of DSM programs proposed by any utility under its jurisdiction. DSM programs consist of energy elliciency programs intended to reduce peak demand and delay the investment in
additional power plant provide customers with tools and i regarding their energy usage and support energy efficiency.

Earnings from Ongoing Operations - a non-GAAP financial measure of earnings adjusted for the impact of special items and used in "Item 7. Combined Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" (MD&A).
EBPB - Employee Benefit Plan Board. The administrator of PPL's U.S. qualified retirement plans, which is charged with the fiduciary responsibility to oversee and manage those plans and the investments associated with those plans.

ECR - Environmental Cost Recovery. Pursuant to Kentucky Revised Statute 278.183, Kentucky electric utilities are entitled to the current recovery of costs of complying with the Clean Air Act, as amended, and those federal, state or local environmental requirements that apply to coal combustion wastes and
byproducts from the production of energy from coal.

ELG(s) - Effluent Limitation Guidelines, regulations promulgated by the LPA.

Fund - Establ in RIPUC Docket No. 2930. Created to satisfy remedial and clean-up obligations of RIE arising from the past ownership and/or operation of manufactured gas plants and sites associated with the operation and disposal activities of such gas plants.
EPA - Environmental Protection Agency, a U.S. government agency.
EPS - eamings per share.
FERC - Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, the U.S. federal agency that regulates, among other things, interstate transmission and wholesale sales of electricity, hydroelectric power projects and related matters.
GAAP - Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the U.S.
GHG(s) - greenhouse gas(cs).
GLT - gas line tracker. The KPSC approved mechanism for LG&E's recovery of certain costs associated with gas transmission lines, gas service lines, gas risers, leak mitigation, and gas main replacements.

Green Tariff - a KPSC approved rate schedule, permitting customers to contract with LG&T or KU for the purchase of energy certifi on of solar fon and use of the energy produced, or the purchase of energy from a renewable energy generator.

GWh - gigawatt-hour, one million kilowatt hours.
IBEW - International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers.

ICPKE - The PPL Incentive Compensation Plan for Key Employces. The ICPKE provides for incentive compensation to certain employecs below the level of senior exceutive.

If-Converted Method - A method applied to calculate diluted EPS for a company with outstanding convertible debt. This method generally adds back the interest charges of the debt to net income and the convertible debt is assumed to have been converted to equity at the beginning of the period, and the
resulting common shares are treated as outstanding shares for diluted EPS calculations.

IRA - Inflation Reduction Act, a U.S. federal law, which aims to curb inflation by possibly reducing the federal government budget deficit, lowering preseription drug prices, and investing in domestic energy production while promoting clean energy.
IRS - Internal Revenuc Service, a U.S. government agency.

IS0 - Independent System Operator.

KPSC - Kentucky Public Service Commission, the state agency that has jurisdiction over the regulation of rates and service of utilities in Kentucky.
KU 2010 Mortgage Indenture - KU's Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2010, to The Bank of New York Mellon, as supplemented.

KVA - kilovolt ampere.

kWh - kilowatt hour, basic unit of electrical energy.

LCIDA - Lehigh County Industrial Development Authority.

LG&E 2010 Mortgage Indenture - LG&E's Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2010, to The Bank of New York Mellon, as supplemented.

Mcf - one thousand cubic feet, a unit of measure for natural gas.

MMBtu - one million British Thermal Units.

Moody's - Moody's Investors Service, Inc., a credit rating agency.

MW - megawatt, onc thousand kilowatts.

MWac - megawatt, alternating current. The measure of the power output from a solar installation.

NAAQS - National Ambient Air Quality Standards periodically adopted pursuant to the Clean Air Act.
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National Grid USA - National Grid USA is a wholly-owned subsidiary of National Grid ple, a British multinational clectricity and gas utility company headquartered in London, England.
NEP - New England Power Company, a National Grid U.S. affiliate.
NERC - North American Electric Reliability Corporation.

NGCC - Natwral gas combined cycle.

NPNS - the normal purchases and normal sales exception as permitted by derivative accounting rules. Derivatives that qualify for this exception may receive accrual accounting treatment.
OCI - other comprehensive income or loss.

OVEC - Ohio Valley Electric Corporation, located in Piketon, Ohio, an entity in which LGKE owns a 5.63% interest and KU owns a 2.50% interest, which are recorded at cost. OVEC owns and operates two coal-fired power plants, the Kyger Creek plant in Ohio and the Clifty Creek plant in Indiana, with
combined capacities of 2,120 MW.

PAPUC - Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, the state agency that regulates certain services, and ions of P ia utilities.

PEDFA - Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority.

unit - k-based ion award that repr s a variable number of shares of PPL common stock that a recipient may receive based on PPL's attainment of (i) relative total shareowner return (TSR) over a three-year performance period as compared to companies in the PHLX Utility
Sector Index; or (ii) corporate return on equily (ROE) based on the average of the annual ROE for each year of the three-year performance period. In light of the transformational nature of the potential sale of the U.K. utility business in 2021, PPL's ROE-based performance unils issued for 2021 were based
on a onc-year performance period from January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021: however, these units retained the three year vesting schedule and other characteristics.
PJM - PIM TInterconnection, L.L.C., operator of the electricity transmission network and electricity energy market in all or parts of Delaware, Tllinois, Indiana, Kentucky, Maryland, Michigan, New Jersey, North Carolina, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Virginia, West Virginia and the District of Columbia.
PLR - Provider of Last Resort, the role of PPL Electric in providing default electricity supply within its delivery area to retail customers who have not chosen to select an alternative electricity supplier under the Customer Choice Act.
PP&E - property, plant and equipment.
PPA(s) - power purchase agreement(s).
PPL Energy Supply - prior to the June 1, 2015 spinoff, PPL Energy Supply, LLC, a subsidiary of PPL Energy Funding and the indirect parent company of PPL Montana, LLC.
PPL EU Services - PPL EU Scrvices Corporation, a former subsidiary of PPL that, prior to being merged into PPL Scrvices on December 31, 2021, provided administrative, management and support services primarily to PPL Elcctric.
PPL Montana - prior to the June 1, 2015 spinoff of PPL Energy Supply. PPL Montana, LLC, an indirect subsidiary of PPL Energy Supply that generated electricity for wholesale sales in Montana and the Pacific Northwest.
PPL WPD Investments Limited - PPL WPD Investments Limited, which was, prior to the sale of the U.K. utility business on June 14, 2021, a subsidiary of PPL WPD Limited and parent to WPD plc. PPL WPD Investments Limited was included in the sale of the U.K. utility business on June 14, 2021.
RAR — Retired Asset Recovery rider, established by KPSC orders in 2021 to provide for recovery of and return on the remaining investment in certain electric generating units upon their retirement over a ten-year period following retirement.

RCRA - Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976.

g (s) - refers to the Regi: named on the cover of this Report (each a "Registrant" and collectively, the "Registrants").
RIPUC - Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission, a th ber quasi-judicial tribunal with jurisdiction, powers, and duties to implement and enforce the standards of conduct under R.I Gen, Laws § 39-1-27.6 and to hold investigations and hearings involving the rates, tariffs, tolls, and charges, and the
and of facilities and a i of public utilities.

Riverstone - Riverstone Iloldings LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and, as of December 6, 2016, ultimate parent company of the entities that own the competitive power generation business contributed to Talen Energy.

Rhode Island Division of Public Utilities and Carriers - the Rhode Island Division of Public Utilities and Carriers, which is headed by an ini who is not a C issi of the RIPUC, exercises the jurisdiction, supervision, power. and duties not specifically assigned to the RIPUC.
RTO - Regional Transmission Operator, an clectric power transmission system operator that coordinates, controls and monitors a multi-state electric grid
Safari Energy - Safari Encrgy, LLC, which was, prior to the salc of Safari Holdings on November 1, 2022, a subsidiary of Safari Holdings that provided solar cnergy solutions for commercial customers in the U.S.

Safari Holdings - Safari Holdings, LLC, which was, prior to its sale on November 1, 2022, a subsidiary of PPL and parent holding company of Safari Energy.

Sarbanes-Oxley - Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, which sets i for of internal controls for financial reporting. It also requires an independent auditor to make its own assessment.
Scrubber - an air pollution control device that can remove particulates and/or gases (primarily sulfur dioxide) from exhaust gases.

SEC - the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, a U.S. government agency primarily responsible to protect investors and maintain the integrity of the securities markets.

SIP - PPL Corporation's Amended and Restated 2012 Stock Incentive Plan.

Smart metering technology - tcchnology that can measure, among other things. time of clectricity consumption to permit offering rate incentives for usage during lower cost or demand intervals. The usc of this technology also has the potential to strengthen network reliability.
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SOFR - Secured Overnight Financing Rate, a broad measure of the cost of borrowing cash overnight collateralized by Treasury securities.
S&P - S&P Global Ratings, a credit rating agency.
Superfund - federal environmental statute that addresses remediation of contaminated sites; states also have similar statutes.

Talen Energy - Talen Encrgy Corporation, the Delaware corporation formed to be the publicly traded company and owner of the competitive generation assets of PPL Encrgy Supply and certain affiliates of Riverstone, which as of December 6, 2016, became wholly owned by Riverstone.

Talen Energy Marketing - Talen Energy Marketing, LLC, the successor name of PPL EnergyPlus, afler the spinoll of PPL Energy Supply that marketed and traded wholesale and retail electricily and gas, and supplied energy and energy services in compelitive markets, after the June 1, 2015 spinoff of PPL
Encrgy Supply.

TCJA - Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. Comprehensive U.S. federal tax legislation enacted on December 22, 2017.

Total shareowner return - the change in market value of a share of the company's common stock plus the value of all dividends paid on a share of the common stock during the applicable performance period, divided by the price of the common stock as of the beginning of the performance period. The
price used for purposes of this calculation is the average share price for the 20 trading days at the beginning and end of the applicable period.

Treasury Stock Method - a method applied to calculate diluted EPS that assumes any proceeds that could be obtained upon exercise of options and warrants (and their equivalents) would be used to purchase common stock at the average market price during the relevant period.

U.K. utility business - PPL WPD Investments Limited and its subsidiaries, including, notably, WPD plc and the four distribution network operators, which substantially represented PPL's U.K. Regulated segment. The U.K. utility business was sold on June 14, 2021.
UWUA - Utility Workers Union of America.

VEBA - Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Association. A tax-exempt trust under the Internal Revenue Code Section 501 (c)(9) used by employers to fund and pay eligible medical, life and similar benefits.

VSCC - Virginia State Corporation Commission, the state agency that has jurisdiction over the regulation of Virginia corporations, including utilities.

WPD - Prior to the sale of the U.K. utility business on June 14, 2021, refers to PPL. WPD Investments Limited and its subsidiaries. WPD was included in the sale of the U.K. utility business on June 14, 2021.

WPD plc - Western Power Distribution ple, prior to the sale of the U.K utility business, a U.K. indirect subsidiary of PPL WPD Limited. Its principal indirectly owned subsidiaries are WPD (East Midlands), WPD (South Wales), WPD (South West) and WPD (West Midlands). WPD plc was included in the
salc of the U.K. utility busincss on June 14, 2021

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(All Registrants)
General

Capitalized terms and abbreviations appearing in the combined notes to financial statements are defined in the glossary. Dollars are in millions, except per share data, unless otherwise noted. The specific Registrant to which disclosures are applicable is identified in parenthetical headings in italics above the

discle or within the discl for each ' related activities and di Within combined di amounts are disclosed for any Registrant when significant.

Business and Consolidation
(PPL)

PPL is a utility holding company that. through its regulated subsidiaries, is primarily engaged in: 1) the generation, transmission, distribution and sale of electricity and the distribution and sale of natural gas, primarily in Kentucky; 2) the transmission, distribution and sale of electricity in Pennsylvania: and 3)
the transmission, distribution and sale of electricity and the distribution and sale of natural gas in Rhode Island. Headquartered in Allentown, PA, PPL's principal subsidiaries are LG&E, KU, RIE and PPL Electric. PPL's corporate level financing subsidiary is PPL Capital Funding.

On March 17, 2021, PPL WPD Limited entered into a share purchase agreement to sell PPL's U.K. utility business, which prior to its sale substantially represented PPL's U.K. Regulated segment, to a subsidiary of National Grid plc. The sale was completed on June 14, 2021. The results of operations of the
UK. utility business are classified as Discontinued Operations on PPL's Statements of Income for 2022. PPL has elected to separately report the cash flows of continuing and di i ions on the of Cash Flows for 2022. Unless otherwise noted, the notes to these financial statements
exclude amounts related to discontinued operations. See Note 9 for additional information.

On May 25, 2022, PPL Rhode Island Iloldings, a wholly-owned subsidiary of PPL, acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of common stock of Narragansett Electric from National Grid U.S., a subsidiary of National Grid plc. Narragansett Electric, whose service area covers substantially all of Rhode
Island, is primarily engaged in the transmission, distribution and sale of electricity and the distribution and sale of natural gas. The results of Narragansett Electric are included in the consolidated results of PPL from the date of the acquisition. Following the closing of the acquisition, Narragansett Electric
provides services doing business under the name Rhode Island Energy (RIE). See Note 9 for additional information.

(PPL and PPL Electric)

PPL Electric's principal business is the transmission and distribution of electricity to serve retail customers in its franchised territory in eastern and central Pennsylvania and the regulated supply of electricity to retail customers in that territory as a PLR.

(PPL, LG&E and KU)

LG&E and KU are engaged in the generation, transmission, distribution and sale of electricity. LG&E also engages in the distribution and sale of natural gas. LG&E and KU maintain their separate identities and serve customers in Kentucky under their respective names. KU also serves customers in Virginia
under the Old Dominion Power name.

(All Registranis)

The financial statements of the Registrants include each company's own accounts as well as the accounts of all entities in which the company has a controlling financial interest. Entities for which a controlling financial interest is not demonstrated through voting interests are evaluated based on accounting
guidance for Variable Interest Entities (VIEs). The Registrants consolidate a VIE when they are determined to have a controlling interest in the VIE and, as a result, are the primary beneficiary of the entity. Amounts consolidated under the VIE guidance are not material to the Registrants.

All i ions have been
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The financial statements of PPL. LG&E and KU include their share of any undivided interests in jointly owned facilities, as well as their share of the related operating costs of those facilities. See Note 11 for additional information.

Regulation

(All Registrants)

PPL Electric, RIE, LG&E and KU are cost-based rate-regulated utilities for which rates are set by regulators to enable PPL Electric, RIE. LG&E and KU to recover the costs of providing electric or gas service, as applicable, and to provide a reasonable return to shareholders. Base rates are generally
cstablished based on a futurc test period. As a result, the financial statcments are subject to the accounting for certain types of regulation as proscribed by GAAP and reflect the cffects of regulatory actions. Regulatory asscts arc recognized for the cffect of transactions or cvents where future recovery of
underlying costs is probable in regulated customer rates. The effect of such accounting is to defer certain or qualifying costs that would otherwise currently be charged to expense. Regulatory liabilities are recognized for amounts expected to be returned through future regulated customer rates. In certain
cases, regulatory liabilities are recorded based on an understanding or agreement with the regulator that rates have been set to recover expected future costs, and the regulated entity is accountable for any amounts charged pursuant to such rates and not yet expended for the intended purpose. The accounting

for regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities is based on specific ratemaking decisions or precedent for each transaction or event as prescribed by the FERC or the applicable state regulatory commissions. See Note 7 for additional details regarding regulatory matters.

Accounting Records

The system of accounts for regulated entitics is maintained in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts preseribed by the FERC and adopted by the i state regulatory

Use of Estimates

The of financial in ity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those cstimates.

Loss Accruals

Potential losses are accrued when (1) information is available that indicates it is "probable” that a loss has been incurred, given the likelihood of uncertain future events and (2) the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. Accounting guidance defines "probable” as cases in which "the future event or

events are likely to occur.” The Registrants continuously assess potential loss conti for fation, litigation claims, regulatory penalties and other events. Loss accruals for are when appropriate.

The accrual of contingencies that might result in gains is not recorded, unless realization is assurcd.

Earnings Per Share (PPL)

EPS is computed using the two-class method, which is an earnings allocation method for computing EPS that treats a participating security as having rights to earnings that would otherwise have been available to common shareowners. Share-based payment awards that provide recipients a non-forfeitable
right to dividends or dividend equivalents are considered participating securities.

Price Risk Management

(All Registrants)

Tnterest rate contracts are used to hedge exposure to changes in the fair value of debt instruments and to hedge exposure to variability in expected cash flows iated with existing floating-rate debt i or forecasted fixed-rate issuances of debt. Derivative instruments pursuant to regulator approved
plans to manage commodity price risk associated with natural gas purchases to reduce fluctuations in natural gas prices and costs i with these derivatives i are generally through approved cost recovery mechanism. Similar derivatives may receive different accounting
treatment, depending on management's intended use and documentation.

Certain contracts may not meet the definition of a derivative because they lack a notional amount or a net settlement provision. In cases where there is no net settlement provision, markets are periodically assessed to determine whether market mechanisms have evolved to facilitate net settlement. Certain
derivative contracts may be excluded from the requirements of derivative accounting treatment because NPNS has been elected. These contracts are accounted for using accrual accounting. Contracts that have been classified as derivative contracts are reflected on the balance sheets at fair value.

Cash inflows and outflows related (o derivative are included as a of operaling, investing or financing activities on the of Cash Flows, on the i of the hedged items.

PPL and its subsidiaries have clected not to offsct net derivative positions against the right to reclaim cash collateral (a receivable) or the obligation to return cash collateral (a payable) under master netting arrangements.

Derivative transactions may be marked to fair valuc through regulatory asscts/liabilitics at PPL Electric, RIE, LG&E and KU, if approved by the appropriate regulatory body. These transactions gencrally include the cffect of interest rate swaps or commodity gas contracts that are included in customer rates.
See Notes 15 and 16 for additional information on derivatives.

(PPL and PPL Electric)

To meet their obligations as last resort providers of electricity supply to their customers, PPL Electric and RIE have entered into certain contracts that meet the definition of a derivative. However, NPNS has been elected for these contracts.

Revenue (41l Registrants)

Operating revenues are primarily recorded based on energy deliveries through the end of each calendar month. Unbilled retail revenues result because customers' bills are rendered throughout the month, rather than at the end of the month. For RIE, LG&E and KU, unbilled revenues for a month are calculated

by multiplying an estimate of unbilled kWh or Mcf by the estimated average price per kWh or Mef. Any difference between estimated and actual revenues is adjusted the following month when the previous unbilled estimate is reversed and actual billings oceur. For PPL Electric, unbilled revenues for a
month arc caleulated by multiplying the actual unbilled volumes by the applicable tariff price.

PPL Electric's, RIE's, LG&E's and KU's base rates are determined based on cost of service. Some regulators have also authorized the use of additional alternative revenue programs, which enable PPL Electric, RIE, LG&F and KU to adjust future rates based on past activities or completed events. Revenues
from alternative revenue programs are recognized when the specific events permitting future billings have occurred. Revenues from alternative revenue programs are required to be presented separately from revenues from contracts with customers. These amounts are, however, presented as revenues from
contracts with with an offsctting adj © ive revenue program revenue, when they are billed to customers in future periods. See Note 3 for additional information.

Financing and Other Receivables
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Accounts receivable are reported on the Balance Sheets at the gross outstanding amount adjusted [or an allowance [or doubtful accounts. Financing receivables include accounts receivable, with the exception of those items within accounts receivable that are not subject to the current expected credit loss
model

Financing receivable collectability is evaluated using a current expected credit loss model, consisting of a combination of factors, including past due status based on contractual terms, trends in write-offs and the age of the receivable. Specific events, such as iptcies, are also consi when
The Registrants also evaluate the impact of observable cxternal factors on the collectability of the financing reccivables to determine it adjustments to the allowance for doubtful accounts should be made based on current itions or and forccasts. to the allowance for
doubtful accounts are made based on the results of these analyses. Accounts receivable are written off in the period in which the receivable is deemed uncollectible.

PPL Electric, RIE, LG&E and KU have identified one class of financing receivables, “accounts receivable - customer”, which includes financing receivables for all billed and unbilled sales with customers. All other financing receivables are classified as other.

The changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts are included in the following table. Amounts relate to financing receivables, except as noted.

Additions
Balance at Balance at
Beginning of Period Charged to Income Deductions (a) End of Period
PPL
2024 $ 130 $ 109 S 85 $ 154 (o)
2023 95 87 52 130 (o
2022 69 78 52 95

2
&
o
&

e

33 52 35 50 (b)
2022 35 27 29 33 (b)
LCG&E
2024 $ 6 $ 4 $ 7 $ 3
2023 4 4 2 6
2022 3 6 5 4
Ku
2024 $ 2 $ 4 $ 4 52
2023 3 3 4 2
2022 3 6 6 3

(@) Primarily related to uncollectible accounts written ol
(b) Tncludes S2 million, $3 million and $3 million related to other accounts receivable at December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022.
(¢) Includes $39 million, $41 million and $36 million related o other accounts receivable at December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022,

Cash

(All Registrants)

Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents.
(PPL, LG&E and KU)

Restricted Cash and Cash E

alents

Bank deposits and other cash equivalents that are restricted by agreement or that have been clearly designated for a specific purpose are classified as restricted cash and cash equivalents. On the Balance Sheets, the current portion of restricted cash and cash equivalents is included in "Other current assets,"
while the noncurrent portion is included in "Other noncurrent assets." See Note 15 for a i of Cash, Cash Eq and Restricted Cash reported within the Balance Sheets to the amounts shown on the Statements of Cash Flows.

(All Registrants)
Fair Value Measurements

The Registrants value certain financial and nonfinancial assets and liabilities al fair value. Generally, the most significant fxir value measurements relate o price risk management assets and liabilities, investments in securities in defined benefit plans, and cash and cash equivalents. PPL and its subsidiaries
usc, as appropriate, a market approach (generally, data from market transactions), an income approach (gencrally, present value techniques and option-pricing models) and/or a cost approach (gencrally, replacement cost) to measure the fair value of an assct or liability. These valuation approaches incorporate

inputs such as observable, independent market data and/or unobservable data that believes are i on the ions market partici ‘would use to price an asset or liability. These inputs may incorporate, as applicable, certain risks such as nonperformance risk, which includes credit
risk.
The Registrants classify fair value measurements within one of three levels in the fair value hierarchy. The level assigned to a fair value measurement is based on the lowest level input that is to the fair value in its entirety. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date. Active markets are those in which transactions for the asset or liability occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

« Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are cither directly or indircetly observable for substantially the full term of the assct or liability.
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+  Level 3 - unobservable inputs that believes are i on the market i would use to measure the asset or liability at fair value.
Assessing the significance of a particular input requires judgment that considers factors specific to the asset or liability. As such, the Regi ' of the signifi of a particular input may affect how the assets and liabilities are classitied within the fair value hierarchy.
Investments

Generally, the original maturity date of an investment and management's intent and ability to sell an investment prior to its original maturity determine the classification of investments as either short-term or long-term. Investments that would otherwise be classified as short-term, but are restricted as to
withdrawal or usc for other than current ions or arc clearly desi for i in the ition or ion of assets or for the ion of long-term debts, arc classificd as long-term.

Investments in entities in which a company has the ability to exercise significant influence but does not have a controlling financial interest are accounted for under the equity method. All other investments are carried at cost or fair value. These investments are included in "Other noncurrent assets" on the
Balance Sheets. Earnings from these investments are recorded in "Other Income (Expense) - net" on the Statements of Income.

Short-term investments generally include certain deposits as well as securities that are considered highly liquid or provide for periodic reset of interest rates. Investments with original maturities greater than three months and less than a year, as well as investments with original maturities of greater than a year
that management has the ability and intent to sell within a year, are included in "Other current assets" on the Balance Sheets.

Long-Lived and Intangible Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
PP&E is recorded at original cost. unless impaired. If impaired. the asset is written down to fair value at that time, which becomes the new cost basis of the asset. PP&E acquired in business combinations is recorded at fair value at the time of acquisition. Original cost for constructed assets includes material,

labor, contractor costs, certain overheads and financing costs, where applicable, Included in PP&E are capitalized costs of software projects that were developed or obtained for internal use. The cost of repairs and minor replacements are charged to expense as incurred. The Registrants record costs associated
with planned major maintenance projects in the period in which work is performed and costs are incurred.

projects. LG&E and KU are generally provided a return on construction work in progress for other projects. The debt component of AFUDC is credited to "Interest Expense” and the equity component is credited to "Other Income (Expense) - net" on the Statements of Income.

AFUDC is capitalized at PPL Electric and RIE as part of the ion costs for cost-based lated projects for which a return on such costs is recovered after the project is placed in service. AFUDC is capitalized at LG&E and KU for certain projects as part of the construction cost of approved

The Registrants capitalize interest costs as part of construction costs. Capitalized interest, including the debt component of AFUDC, for the years ended December 31 is as follows:

2024 2023 2022

PPL § 20 s 12 s 7
PPL Electric 9 7 s
LG&E 3 1 —
KU ) 1 —

Depreciation

Depreciation is recorded over the estimated useful lives of property using various methods including (he straight-line, composite and group methods. When a component of PP&E that was depreciated under the composite or group method is retired, the original cost is charged to accumulated depreciation.
‘When all or a significant portion of an opcrating unit that

was depreciated under the composite or group method s retired or sold, the property and the related accumulated depreciation account is reduced and any gain o loss is included in income, unless otherwise required by regulators. RIE, LG&E and KU accrue costs of removal net of estimated salvage value
through depreciation, which is included in the calculation of customer rates over the assets' depreciable lives in accordance with regulatory practices. Cost of removal amounts accrued through depreciation rates are accumulated as a regulatory liability until the removal costs are incurred. For LG&E and KU,
all ARO depreciation expenses are reclassified to a regulatory asset or regulatory liability. See "Asset Retirement Obligations” below and Note 7 for additional information. PPL Electric records net costs of removal when incurred as a regulatory asset. The regulatory asset is subsequently amortized through
depreciation over a five-year period, which is recoverable in customer rates in accordance with regulatory practices.

Following are the weighted-average annual rates of depreciation, for regulated utility plant, for the years ended December 31:

2024 2023 2022
PPI 320 % 326 % 321 %
PPL Electric 252 % 262 % 275 %
LG&F. 402 % 400 % 416 %
KU 386 % 395 % 401 %

Goodwill and Other ible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price paid over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired in a business combination.

Other acquired intangible assets are initially measured based on their fair value. Intangibles that have finite useful lives are amortized over their useful lives based upon the pattern in which the economic benefits of the intangible assets are consumed or otherwise used. Costs incurred to obtain, renew or
extend terms of an intangible asset are capitalized.

When determining the useful life of an intangible asset, including intangible

ts that are renewed or extended, PPL and its subsidiaries consider:

«  the expected use of the assel;

»  the expected uscful life of other asscts to which the uscful life of the intangible assct may relate;

+ legal, regulatory, or contractual provisions that may limit the useful life;

+  the company's historical experience as evidence of its ability to support renewal or extension;

+  the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other cconomic factors; and,

+  the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.

Asset i 1t
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The Registrants review long-lived assets that are subject to or i including finite-lived

for impe when events or ci indicate carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

Along-lived assel classilied as held and used is impaired when the carrying amount of the assel exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset. If impaired, the assel
Along-lived asset classified as held for sale is impaired when the carrying amount of the asset (disposal group) exceeds its fair value less cost to sell. If impaired, the asset's (disposal group's) carrying value is written down to its fair value less cost to sell.

carrying value is wrilten down to its [air value.

PPL, LG&E and KU review goodwill for impairment at the reporting unit level annually or more frequently when events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of a reporting unit may be greater than the unit's fair value. Additionally, goodwill must be tested for impairment in circumstances when
a portion of goodwill has been allocated to a business to be disposed. PPL's, LG&E's and KU's reporting units are primarily at the operating segment level.

Goodwill recognized upon the acquisition of Narragansett Elcctric was assigned for impairment testing by PPL to its reporting units expected to benefit from the acquisition, which werc the Rhode Island Regulated reporting unit, the Pennsylvania Regulated reporting unit and the Kentucky Regulated
reporting unit. See Note 9 for additional information regarding the acquisition.

PPL, for its reporting units, and individually, LG&E and KU, may elect either to initially make a qualitative evaluation about the likelihood of an impairment of goodwill or to bypass the qualitative evaluation and test goodwill for i i using a q test. If the qualitati ion (referred to
as step zero) is elected and the as ing amount, the quantitative impairment test is not necessary. However, the quantitative impairment test is required if management concludes it is
more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than the carrying amount based on the step zero assessment. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit, including goodwill, exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess, limited to the total amount
ol goodwill allocated to that reporting unit.

ssment results in a determination that it is not more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than the carry

As of October 1, 2024, PPL, for its reporting units, and individually, LG&E and KU, elected to perform the qualitative step zero evaluation of goodwill. These evaluations considered the excess of fair value over the carrying value of each reporting unit that was calculated during step one of the quantitative
impairment tests performed in the fourth quarter of 2022, and the relevant events and circumstances that occurred since those tests were performed including:

+  current year financial performance versus the prior year,

« changes in planncd capital cxpenditures,

+ the consistency of forecasted free cash flows,

+  earnings quality and sustainability,

n market participant discount rates,

+  changes in long-term growth rates,

« changes in PPL's market capitalization, and

= the overall economic and regulatory environments in which these regulated entities operate.

Based on these evaluations, management concluded it was not more likely than not that the fair value of these reporting units was less than their carrying value. As such, the step one quantitative impairment test was not performed and no impairment was recognized.
(PPL, LG&E and KU)

Asset Retirement Obligations

PPL and its subsidiaries record liabilities to reflect various legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets. Initially, this obligation is measured at fair value and offset with an increase in the value of the capitalized asset, which is depreciated over the asset's useful life. Until the obligation
is settled, the liability is increased through the recognition of accretion expense classified within "Other operation and maintenance” on the Statements of Income to reflect changes in the obligation due to the passage of time. For LG&E and KU, all ARO accretion and depreciation expenses are reclassified as
a regulatory asset or regulatory liability. ARO regulatory assets associated with certain CCR projects are amortized to expense in

accordance with regulatory approvals. For other AROs, deferred aceretion and depreciation expense is recovered through cost of removal.

Estimated ARO costs and settlement dates, which affect the carrying value of the ARO and the related capitalized asset, are reviewed periodically to ensure that any material changes are incorporated into the latest estimate of the ARO. Any change to the capitalized asset, positive or negative, is generally
amortized over the remaining life of the associated long-lived asset. See Note 7 and Note 18 for additional information on AROs.

Compensation and Benefits
Defined Benefits (4/l Registrants)

Certain PPL subsidiaries sponsor various defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans. An asset or liability is recorded to recognize the funded status of all defined benefit plans with an offsetting entry to AOCT or, for LG&E, KU, RIE and PPL Electric, to regulatory assets or liabilities.
Consequently, the funded status of all defined benefit plans s fully recognized on the Balance Sheets.

The expected roturn on plan assets is determined based on a market-related valuc of plan asscts, which is calculated by rolling forward the prior year market-related value with and long-term expected return on investments. One-fifth of the difference between the actual valuc and
the expected value is added (or subtracted if negative) to the expected value to determine the new market-related value.

PPL and its subsidiaries, excluding RIE, use an ization method for the i of gains and losses for its defined benefit pension plans. Under the accelerated method, actuarial gains and losses in excess of 30% of the plan's projected benefit obligation are amortized on a straight-line
basis over one-half of the required amortization period. Actuarial gains and losses in excess ol 10% of the greater of the plan's projected benefit obligation or the markel-related value of plan assets and less than 30% of the plan's projected benefit obligation are amortized on a straight-line basis over the full
required amortization period. RIE uses the standard amortization method under GAAP for recognition of gains and losses for its defined benefit pension plan.

See Note 7 for a discussion of the regulatory treatment of defined benefit costs and Note 10 for a discussion of defined benefits.

Stock-Based Compensation (PPL)

PPL has several stock-based compensation plans for purposes of granting stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units and performance units to certain employees as well as stock units and restricted stock units to directors. PPL grants most stock-based compensation awards in the first quarter of cach
year, PPL i on expense for stock-based ion awards based on the fair value method. Forfeitures of awards are recognized when they occur. All awards are recorded as equity or a liability on the Balance Sheets. Stock-based compensation expense is primarily included in "Other
operation and maintcnance” on the Statements of Income.

Taxes

Income Taxes
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(All Registrants)

PPL and its domestic subsidiaries file a consolidated U.S. federal income tax return.

Significant management judgment is required in developing the Registrants' provision for income taxes. primarily due to the uncertainty related to tax positions taken or expected to be taken on tax returns and valuation allowances on deferred tax assets.

The Registrants use a two-step process to evaluate uncertain tax positions. The first step requires an entity to determine whether, based on the technical merits supporting a particular tax position, it is more likely than not (greater than a 50% chance) that the tax position will be sustained. This determination
assumes that the relevant taxing authority will examine the tax position and is awarc of all the relevant facts surrounding the tax position. The sccond step requires an entity to recognize in its financial statements the amount of the benefit of a tax position that mecets the more-likely-than-not recognition
criterion. The benefit recognized is measured at the largest amount of benefit that has a likelihood of realization upon settlement that exceeds 50%. Unrecognized tax benefits are classified as current to the extent management expects to settle the uncertain tax position by payment or receipt of cash within one
year of the reporting date. The amounts ultimately paid upon resolution of issues raised by taxing authorities may differ materially from the amounts accrued and may materially impact the financial statements of the Registrants in future periods. At December 31, 2024, no significant changes in unrecognized
tax benefits were projected over the next 12 months.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net future tax cffects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of asscts and liabilitics for accounting purposes and their basis for income tax purposcs, as well as the tax cffects of net operating losses and tax credit carryforwards.

The Registrants record valuation allowances to reduce deferred income tax assets to the amounts that are more-likely-than-not to be realized. The need for valuation requires signi judgment. If the Registrants determine that they are able to realize deferred tax assets in the future
in excess of recorded net deferred tax assets, adjustments to the valuation allowances increasc income by reducing tax expense in the period that such determination is madc. Likewisc, if the Registrants determine that they arc not able to realize all or part of net deferred tax assets in the future, adjustments to
the valuation allowances would decrease income by increasing tax expense in the period that such determination is made. The amount of deferred tax assets ultimately realized may differ materially from the estimates utilized in the computation of valuation allowances and may materially impact the financial
statements in the future.

The Registrants defer investment tax credits when the credits are generated and amortize the deferred amounts over the average lives of the related assets. With respect to acquired renewable tax credits, pursuant to the TRA, any benefit is recognized in the period the credits can be utilized.
The Registrants recognize tax-related interest and penalties in "Income Taxes" on their Statements of Income.

The Registrants use the portfolio approach method of accounting for deferred taxes related to pre-tax OCI transactions. The portfolio approach involves a strict period-by-period cumulative incremental allocation of income taxes to the change in income and losses reflected in OCL Under this approach, the
net cumulative tax effect is ignored. The net change in unrealized gains and losses recorded in AOCI under this approach would be eliminated only on the date the investment portfolio is classified as held for sale or is liquidated.

See Nole 6 (o the Financial Statements for income tax disclosures.

The provision for the Registrants' deferred income taxes related to regulatory assets and liabilities is based upon the ratemaking principles reflected in rates established by relevant regulators. The difference in the provision for deferred income taxes for regulatory assets and liabilities and the amount that
otherwise would be recorded under GAAP is deferred and included on the Balance Sheets in noncurrent "Regulatory assets” or "Regulatory liabilities."

(PPL Electric, LG&E and KU)

The income tax provision for PPL Electric, LG&F and KU is calculated in with an i tax sharing which provides that taxable income be calculated as if PPL Electric, LG&E, KU and any domestic subsidiaries each filed a separate return. Tax benefits are not shared between
companies. The entity (hat generales a lax benefit is the entity that is entitled (o the tax benefit. The efTect of PPL (iling a consolidated tax return is taken into account in the settlement of current taxes and (he recognition of deferred taxes.
At December 31, the following intercompany tax receivables (payables) were recorded:

2024 2023
PPL Electric 3@ §@n
LG&E @) )
KU 3) 6]

Taxes, Other Than Income (4/l Registrants)

The Registrants present sales taxes in "Other current liabilities" on the Balance Sheets. These taxes are not reflected on the Statements of Income. See Note 6 for details of taxes included in "Taxes, other than income” on the Statements of Income.
Other

(All Registrants)

Euel, Materials and Supplies

Fucl, natural gas storcd underground and materials and supplics arc valued using the average cost method. Fucl costs for clectricity gencration arc charged to expense as used. For RIE, natural gas supply costs arc charged to expense when delivered to customers. For LG&E, natural gas supply costs arc
charged to expense as delivered to the distribution system. See Note 7 for further discussion of the fuel adjustment clauses and gas supply clause.

"Fuel. materials and supplies" on the Balance Sheets consisted of the following at December 31:

2024
PPL PPL Electric LG&E KU

Fuel s 153 s — s 64 S 89

Natural gas stored underground 9 — 29 —

Materials and supplies 309 104 64 84

Total s 511 S 104 s 157 s m
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2023
PPL PPL Electric LG&E KU
Fuel S 144 s — s 50 s 94
Natural gs stored underground 58 — 3 —
Materials and supplies 99 59 91
5 99 s 143 S 185

Total

(PPL and PPL Electric)

Renewable Energy Standard Obligation

Purchased Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs) are stated at cost and are used to measure compliance with state renewable energy standards. RECs support new renewable generation standards and are held primarily to be utilized in fulfillment of RIE’s and PPL Electric's compliance obligations.

(All Registrants)
Guarantees
Generally, the initial measurement of a guarantee liability is the fair value of the guarantee at its inception. However, there are certain guarantees excluded from the scope of accounting guidance and other guarantees that are not subject to the initial ition and p ions of

guidance that only require disclosure. Sce Note 12 for further discussion of guarantees.

New A Adopted (All Regis
Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures

Effective December 31, 2024, the adopted ing guidance to improve segment disclosures. The guidance requires enhanced disclosures about significant segment expenses. The standard also requires public entities to disclose the title and position of the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM) and explain how the CODM uses the reported measure(s) of segment profit or loss in assessing segment performance and deciding how to allocate resources. Certain seg lated that p were required only on an annual basis will be required to be disclosed in

interim periods. In addition, public entitics that have a single reportable scgment are now required to provide segment disclosures.

The adoption of this guidance resulted in the Registrants including the required additional disclosures within the notes to the financial statements. See Note 2 for additional information.

2. Segment and Related Information

(PPL)

PPL is organized into three segments, broken down by geographic location: Kentucky Regulated, Pennsylvania Regulated, and Rhode Island Regulated.

The Kentucky Regulated segment consists primarily of the regulated electricity generation, transmission and distribution operations conducted by LG&E and KU, as well as LG&E's regulated transmission, distribution and sale of natural gas.
The Pennsylvania Regulated segment includes the regulated electricity transmission and distribution operations of PPL Electric.

The Rhode Island Regulated segment includes the regulated electricity transmission and distribution and natural gas distribution operations of RIE, which was acquired in May of 2022.

"Corporate and Other" primarily includes corporate level financing costs. certain unallocated corporate costs, and certain ble costs incurred in conjunction with the acquisition of Rhade Island Energy and the financial results of Safari Energy. prior to its sale on November 1, 2022. "Corporate and
Other" is presented to reconcile segment information to PPL's consolidated results and is not a reportable segment.

PPL's CODM is the Corporate Leadership Council (CLC), which is a management committee that is comprised of the Chicf Exccutive Officer, Chicf Financial Officer, Chicf Operating Officer, Chicf Technology Officer, Chicf Human Resources Officer and Chicf Legal Officer.

The CLC uses financial metrics including segment net income, earnings from ongoing operations. earnings per share and return on equity, as well as various operational metrics to assess segment performance and make investment and resource decisions. Segment net income is the measure of segment profit
or loss that most closely aligns with GAAP and is being presented for disclosure purposes.

The tables below provide information about PPL's segments and include the reconciliation to consolidated net income for the year ended December 31, 2024:
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Kentucky Regulated Pennsylvania Regulated Rhode Island Regulated Total
Operating Revenes from external customers (a) S 3562 s 2876 s 2024 S 8462
Reconciliation of revenue
Corporate and other revenues
Total consolidated revenues, S 8462
Less.
Fuel 783 — — 783
Energy Purchascs 176 71 782 1,679
Operation and maintenance 803 705 731 2239
Depreciation 710 401 165 1276
Taxes, other than income 99 131 144 374
Other (income) expense - net 29) (78) 4 (131)
Tnterest expense 240 246 9 381
Income taxes, 160 176 22 338
Segment net income s 620 S 574 s 109 S 1303
Reconciliation of segment profit or loss to consolidated net income
Corporate and other net loss “15)
Net Income 888
(2) See Note 1 and Note 3 for additional information on Operating Revenues.
Other information for the segments and reconciliation to PPL's Consolidated results for the year ended December 31, 2024 are as follows:
Kentucky Regulated Pennsylvania Regulated Rhode Island Regulated Total Segments Corporate and Other Consolidated Total
Other Segment Disclosures
Amortization (a) $ 24 $ 45 s 1 s 70 s 8 s 78
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits (b) 2 129 38 169 27 196
Expenditures for long lived assets 1.088 1229 495 2812 4] 2,805
(2) Represents non-cash expense items that include amortization of operating lease right-of-use assets, regulatory assets and liabilities, debt discounts and premiums and debt issuance costs.
(b)  Represents a non-cash expense item that is also included in "Income Taes."
The tables below provide information about PPL’s segments and include the reconciliation to consolidated net income for the year ended December 31, 2023:
Kentucky Regulated Pennsylvania Regulated Rhode Tsland Regulated Total
Operating Revenues from external customers () S 3452 $ 3008 $ 1851 $ 8311
Reconciliation of revenue
Corporate and other revenues 1
Total consolidated revenues S 8312
Less:
Fuel 733 — — 733
Energy Purchases 192 992 658 1842
Operation and maintenance 526 605 705 2,136
Depreciation 696 397 156 1249
Taxes. other than income 9 143 156 392
Other (income) expense - net 12) (39) 19) (70)
Interest expense 235 223 83 541
Tncome taxes 137 168 16 321
Segment net income $ 532 S 519 $ 9 S L167
Reconciliation of segment profit or loss to consolidated net income
Corporate and other nct loss “21)
Net Income 740
(@ SeeNote 1 and Note 3 for additional information on Operating Revenues.
Other information for the segments and reconciliation to PPL's Consolidated results for the year ended December 31, 2023 arc as follows:
Kentucky Regulated Pennsylvania Regulated Rhode Island Regulated “Total Segments Corporate and Other Consolidated Total
Other Segment Disclosures
Amortization (a) $ 33 s 41 s 1 575 56 s 8l
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits (b) an 46 48 7 25 322
Expenditures for long lived asscts 950 956 454 2,360 30 2,390
(@) Represents nor-cash expense items that include amortization of operating lease right-of-use assets, regulatory assets and liabilities, debt discounts and premiums and debt issuance costs.
(b)  Represents a non-cash expense item that is also included in "Income Taxes."
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The tables below provide information about PPL’s segments and include the reconciliation to consolidated net income for the year ended December 31, 2022:
Kentucky Regulated Pennsylvania Regulated Rhode Island Regulated “Total
Operating Revenues from external customers (a) s 3811 s 3,030 S 1038 S 7.879
Reconciliation of revenue
Corporate and other revenues 23
“Total consolidated revenues
Less:
Fuel 931 — — 931
Energy Purchases 273 1048 1686
Operation and maintenance 959 605 2,095
Depreciation 685 393 92 1170
Taxes, other than income 92 149 92 333
Other (income) expense - net a2 35) @3 (70)
Interest expense 205 171 39 415
Tncome taxcs 129 174 (14) 289
Segment net income S 549 S 525 S (44) S 1030
Reconciliation of segment profit or loss (o consolidated net income
Corporate and other net loss 316)
Income from discontinued operations (Note 9) a2
Net Income s 756
(@ SecNote 1 and Note 3 for additional information on Operating Revenues.
Other information for the segments and reconciliation to PPL's Consolidated results for the year ended December 31, 2022 are as follows:
Kentucky Regulated Pennsylvania Regulated Rhode Island Regulated “Total Segments. Corporate and Other Consolidated Total
Other Segment Disclosures
Amortization (a) $ 23 s 2 s 2 s 4 s s 5 52
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits (b) 6 91 39 136 4 179
Expenditures for long lived assets 917 889 268 2074 84 2,158
(a) Represents non-cash expense items that include amortization of operating lease right-of-use assets, regulatory assets and liabilities, debt discounts and premiums and debt issuance costs.
(b Represents a non-cash expense item that is also included in "Tncome Taxes."
The following provides Balance Sheet data for the segments and reconciliation to PPL's consolidated results as of:
As of December 31,
2024 2023
Total Assets
Kentucky Regulated § 17.626 $ 17.029
Pennsylvania Regulated 15,475 14204
Rhode Island Regulated 7,055 6.515
Corparate and Other () 913 1398
Total S 41,069 S 39236
(a) Primarily consists of unallocated items, including cash, PP&E. goodwill. and the climination of inter-scgment transactions.
(PPL Electric)
PPL Electric has two operating segments, distri and ission, which are into a single reportable segment. PPL Electric's CODM is the President of PPL Electri
The President uses financial metrics including segment net income, earnings from ongoing operations, earnings per share and return on equity, as well as various operational metrics to assess segment performance and make investment and resource decisions.
The significant segment expenses of and measure of profit and loss for PPL Electric regularly provided to the President are included on the face of PPL Electric’s Statements of Income.
The measure of segment assets is reported on PPL Electric’s Balance Sheets as total consolidated assets. The measures of significant non-cash segment expenses as well as expenditures for long lived assets are reported on PPL Electric's Statements of Cash Flows.
(LG&E and KU)
Tach of LG&E and KU operates as a single operating and reportable segment, and the CODM for each of LG&E and KU is its President.
The President manages LG&E and KU as a single consolidated entity. Financial metrics including net income, earnings from ongoing operations, earnings per share and return on equity, as well as various operational metrics are used to assess segment performance and make investment and resource
decisions.
The significant segment expenses of and measure of profit and loss for each of LG&E and KU regularly provided to its President are included on the face of the Statements of Income of LG&E and KU.
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The measures of segment assets are reported on the Balance Sheets of LG&E and KU as total assets. The measures of significant non-cash segment expenses as well as expenditures for long lived assets are reported on the Statements of Cash Flows of LG&E and KU.
3. from C with Ci
(All Registrants)

The following is a description of the principal activities from which the Registrants and PPL’s segments generate their revenues.

(PPL and PPL Electric)

Pennsylvania Segment Revenue

The Pennsylvania Regulated segment generates substantially all of its revenues from contracts with customers from PPL Electric’s tariff-based distribution and transmission of electricity.
Distribution Revenue
PPL Eleclric provides distribution services to residential, commercial, industrial, municipal and governmental end users of energy. PPL Electric satisfies its performance obligation to its distribution customers and revenue is recognized over time as electricity is delivered and simultaneously consumed by the

customer. The amount of revenue recognized is the volume of clectricity delivered during the period multiplid by the price per tariff, plus a monthly fixed charge. This method of recognition fairly presents PPL Elcctric's transfer of eleetric service to the customer as the calculation is based on volumes
delivered, and the price per tariff and the monthly fixed charge are set by the PAPUC. Customers are typically billed monthly and outstanding amounts are normally due within 21 days of the date of the bill.

Distribution customers are "at will" customers of PPL Electric with no term contract and no minimum purchase commitment. Performance obligations are limited to the service requested and received to date. ingly, there is no i performance obligati i with PPL Electric’s retail
account contracts.

Certain customers have the option to obtain electricity from other suppliers where PPL Electric facilitates the delivery. In those circumstances, revenue is only recognized for providing delivery of the commodity to the customer.

Transmission Revenue

PPL Elcctric generates transmission revenues from a FERC-approved PJM Open Access Transmission Tariff. An annual revenue requirement for PPL Electric to provide transmission services is calculated using a formula-based rate. This revenue requirement is converted into a daily rate (dollars per day).
PPL Electric satisfies its performance obligation to provide transmission services and revenue is recognized over time as transmission services are provided and consumed. This method of recognition fairly presents PPL Electric's transfer of transmission services as the daily rate is set by a FERC approved
formula-bascd ratc. PYM remits payment on a weekly basis.

PPL Electric's agreement to provide transmission services contains no minimum purchase commitment. The performance obligation is limited to the service requested and received to date. Accordingly, PPL Electric has no unsatisfied performance obligations.

(PPL)

Rhode Island Segment

The Rhode Island Regulated segment generates substantially all of its revenues from contracts with customers from RIE’s regulated tariff-based transmission and distribution of electricity and regulated tariff-based distribution of natural gas.
Distribution Revenue

Distribution revenues are primarily from the sale of electricity, natural gas, and related services to retail customers. Distribution sales are regulated by the RIPUC, which is responsible for approving the rates and other terms of services as part of the rate making process. Natural gas and electric distribution
revenucs arc derived from the regulated sale and distribution of clectricity and natural gas to residential, commercial, and industrial customers within RIE’s scrvice territory under the tariff ratcs. The performance obligation related to distribution salcs is to provide clectricity and natural gas to customers on
demand. The performance obligation is satisfied over time because the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the electricity or natural gas as services are provided. RIE records revenues related to the distribution sales based upon the approved tariff rate and the volume delivered to the customers,
which corresponds with the amount RIE has the right to invoice. Customers are typically billed monthly and outstanding amounts are normally due within 21 days of date of the bill.

Distribution revenue also includes estimated unbilled amounts, which represent the estimated amounts due from retail customers as a result of customer's bills rendered the month, rather than bills being rendered at the end of the month. Unbilled revenues are determined based on estimated
unbilled sales volumes and then applying tariff rates to those volumes. Any difference between estimated and actual revenues is adjusted the following month when the previous unbilled estimate is reversed and actual billings oceur. This method of recognition fairly presents RIF's transfer of electricity and
natural gas (o the customer as the amount recognized is based on actual and estimated volumes delivered and the tarifT rate per unit of energy and any applicable fixed charges or regulatory mechanisms as approved by the respective regulatory body.

Distribution customers are "at will" customers of RIE with no term contract and no minimum purchase commitment. Performance obligations are limited to the service requested and received to date. i there is no i performance obligati i with RIE's retail account contracts.

Certain customers have the option to obtain electricity or natural gas from other suppliers where RIE facilitates the delivery. In those revenue is only for providing delivery of the commodity to the customer.
Transmission Revenue

RIE’s transmission services are regulated by the FERC and coordinated with 1SO — New England (ISO-NE). As of January 1, 2023, RIE is a transmission operator, These revenues arise under tariff/rate agreements and are collected primarily from RIE’s distribution customers. The revenue is recognized over
time as transmission services are provided and consumed. This method of recognition fairly presents RIE’s transfer of transmission services as the daily rate is set by a FERC-approved formula-based rate.

RIE's agreement to provide transmission services contains no minimum purchase commitment. The performance obligation is limited to the service requested and received to date. . RIE has no

(PPL. LG&E and KU)
Kentucky Regulated Segment Revenue
The Kentucky Regulated Segment generates substantially all of its revenues from contracts with customers from LG&E's and KU's regulated tariff-based sales of electricity and LG&E's regulated tariff-based sales of natural gas.

LG&E and KU are engaged in the generation, transmission, distribution and sale of electricity in Kentucky and, in KU's case, Virginia. LG&E also engages in the distribution and sale of natural gas in Kentucky. Revenue from these activities is generated from tariffs approved by applicable regulatory
authorities including the FERC, KPSC and VSCC. LG&F and KU satisfy their performance obligations upon LG&F's and KU's delivery of electricity and LG&F's delivery of natural gas to customers. This
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revenue is recognized over time as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by LG&E and KU. The amount of revenue recognized is the billed volume of electricity or natural gas delivered multiplied by a tariff rate per-unit of energy, plus any applicable fixed charges or
additional regulatory mechanisms. Customers are billed monthly and outstanding amounts are typically due within 22 days of the date of the bill. Additionally, unbilled revenues are d as a result of cust " bills rendered hout the month, rather than bills being rendered at the end of the

month, Unbilled revenues for a month are calculated by multiplying an estimate of unbilled kWh or Mc[ delivered but not yet billed by the estimated average cenis per kWh or Mcl. Any difference between estimated and actual revenues is adjusted the following month when the previous unbilled estimate is
reversed and actual billings occur. This method of recognition fairly presents LG&F's and KU's transfer of electricity and LG&F's transfer of natural gas to the customer as the amount recognized is based on actual and estimated volumes delivered and the tariff rate per-unit of energy and any applicable fixed
charges or regulatory mechanisms as set by the respective regulatory body.

LG&E's and KU's customers generally have no minimum purchase commitment. Performance obligations are limited to the service requested and received to date. Accordingly, there is no unsatisfied performance obligation associated with these customers.

(All Registrants)

The following table reconciles "Operating Revenues" included in each Registrant's Statement of Income with revenues generated from contracts with customers for the years ended December 31:

2024
PPL PPL Electric LG&E KU
Operating Revenues (a)(b) $ 8462 S 2876 S 1648 5 1964
Revenues derived from
Altemative revenue programs (c) 5 19) 3 16
Other (d) 23) 15) @ )
Revenues from Contracts with Customers 3 8444 $ 2842 S 1657 $ 1976
2023
PPL PPL Electric LG&E KU
Operating Revenues (a)(b) s 8312 53,008 S 1613 S L884
Revenues derived from
Alfernative revenue programs (c) 1 5 (1 (5)
Other (d) (15) () )
Revenues from Contracs with Customers $ 5 2998 S 1608 5 1875
2022
PPL PPL Electric LG&E KU
Operating Revenues (a)(b) s 7902 s 3030 s 1798 s 2074
Revenues derived from:
Alternative fevonuc programs () ©2) (56) 9 5
Other (d) (24) (14) () )
Revenues from Contracts with Customers s 7786 S 2960 s 1501 s 2075

()

PPL includes $2,024 million, $1.851 million and $1.038 million for the twelve manths ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 of revenues from external customers repored by the Rhode Tsland Regulated segment. PPI. Electric represents revenues from external customers reported by the Pennsylvania Regulated segment and | G&F and KU net of intercompany power sales
and transmission revenues, represent revenes from external customers reported by the Kentucky Regulated segment. See Note 2 for additional information.

(b) PPL's transition servi g it associated with the RIE si ended in the third quarter of 2024, In conjunction with the completion of the agreement, PPL conformed the presentation of RIE's and the Rhode Island Regulated segment’s net metering charges with the presentation of the other

segments, resulting in an increase in Operating Revenues and a corresponding increase in Energy purchases beginning on January 1, 2024. For the year ended December 31, 2024, net metering of S175 million was included in Energy purchases on PPL's Statement of Income. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, $146 million and $79 million of net metering was
proscnted as a reduction of Operating Revenues on PPL's Statoment of Lncome

(¢)  This ling item shows the over'under collection of ratc mechanisms decmed altcrnative revenue programs with Il [revenue shown as ts in the table aboyc and under collections as negative amouns,

() Represents additional revenues outside the scope of revenues from contracts with customers such as leases and other miscellancous revenues

The following table shows revenues from contracts with customers disaggregated by customer class for the years ended December 31:
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Revenues from Contracts with
Residential Commercial Industrial Other (a) Wholesal W ) Transmission Customers
PPL
2024
PA Regulated § 1502 s 418 §$ 47 s 57 s — $ — 5 818 s 2842
RIRegulated (c) 1150 593 91 10 — - 176 2020
KY Regulated 1510 028 635 323 2 6 — 3,582
Total PPL s 4162 S 2039 s 773 s 390 O $ 63 5 994 s 8444
2023
PA Regulated $ 1649 s an $ 55 ) s — $ — s 79 s 2998
RI Regulated 640 228 20 793 — — 170 1.851
KY Regulated 1458 001 637 m 2 50 - 3440
Corp and Other — — — 1 — — - 1
Total PPL s 3747 S L6 s 712 S 1120 s 22 $ 50 S 966 s 8290
2022
PA Regulated 5 1647 s 91 § 85 s 54 s — 5 — 5 6% s 2960
RI Regulated 299 101 9 478 — — 101 988
KY Regulated 1,637 068 662 323 28 97 — 3815
Corp and Other — — — 23 — — — 23
Total PPL s 3583 S 1660 S 756 s 878 ES $ 97 s 784 s 7786
PPL Electric
2024 s 1502 s 418 s 47 s 57 s — $ — s 818 s 2842
2023 $ 1649 $ 444 $ 55 § 54 5 — 5 — $ 796 $ 2998
2022 $ 1647 s 401 $ 8 s 54 $ — $ — s 68 s 2960
2024 s 754 s 518 s 188 s 147 s — $ 50 $ — $ 1657
2023 5 751 s 517 s 189 5 104 § — $ 47 $ — $ 1608
2022 $ 835 $ 551 $ 199 $ 141 $ — $ 75 $ — $ 1801
Ku
2024 s 756 s 510 s 447 s 176 s 23 $ 64 s — s 1976
2023 s 707 s a4 S 448 s 168 s 2 $ 46 s — s 1875
2022 s 802 $ 517 $ 463 s 18 s 28 $ 83 s — $ 2075

() Includes
(c) PPLS tran
which were previ

ion ser

t associated with the RIF acquisit

sly presented in the "Other” category, being presented

les and transmission revenues, which are eliminated upon consolidation at PPL.
ended in the third quarter of 2024, Tn conjunction with the completion of the agreement, PPL disaggregated the 2024 revenues of the Rhode Island Regulated segment in 2 manner consistent with that of its ofher segments. This resulted in certain customer revenues for the Rhode Tsland Regulated segment,

(a) Primarily includes revenues from pole ulfachments, sreet lighting, other public authorities and other non-core businesses. Tor the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Rhode Island Regulated segment primarily includes open access tariff revenues, which are calculated on combined customer classes.
holesale power and transmission revenues. LG&E and KU amounts include intercompany power
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in the "Residential”, "Commercial” or "Industrial” customer classes beginning on January 1, 2024. Applying the previous methodology to 2024 revenucs would result in $469 million of Residential, $372 million of Commercial and $88 million of Industrial for the Rhode Island Regulated scgment being presented as "Other” for the year ended December 31, 2024,

location are to revenues from contracts with customers in the footnotes to the tables above. PPL Electric's revenues from contracts with customers are further

As discussed in Note 2, PPL segments its business by geographic location. Revenues from external customers for cach

by di and ission as indicated in the above tables.

Contract receivables from customers are primarily included in "Accounts receivable - Customer” and "Unbilled revenues” on the Balance Sheets.

The following table shows the accounts receivable and unbilled revenues balances that were impaired for the year ended December 31:

2024 203 2022
PPL(a) $ 103 s 79 $ 70
PPL Electric 52 47 21
LG&E 4 4 6
KU 4 2 6

(@) Includes $23 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2022 related to the commitment to forgive customer arrearages for low-income and protected residential customers at RIE. See Note 9 for additional information,

The following table shows the balances and certain activity of contract liabilitics resulting from contracts with customers:
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PPL PPL Electric LG&E KU

Contract liabilities as of December 31, 2024 BE) s 28 s 5 s 6
Cantract liabilities as of December 31, 2023 43 29 6 7
Revenue recognized during the year ended December 31, 2024 that was included in the contract liability balance at December 31, 2023 26 12 6 7
Contract liabilities as of December 31, 2023 s 43 s 29 56 s 7
Contract liabilities as of December 31, 2022 34 2 5 6
Revenue recognized during the year ended December 31, 2023 that was included in the contract liability balanee at December 31, 2022 21 10 5 3
Contract liabilities as of December 31, 2022 s 34 s 2 $ s s 6
Contract liabilities as of December 31, 2021 42 25 6 6
Revenue recognized during the year ended December 31,2022 that was ineluded in the contract liability balance at December 31,2021 25 12 6 6
Contract liabilities result from recording contractual billings in advance for customer to the i i and payments received in excess of revenues earned to date. Advanced billings for customer attachments are recognized as revenue ratably over the billing period. Payments

received in excess of revenues carned to date are recognized as revenue as services are delivered in subsequent periods.

4. Preferred Securities

(PPL)

PPL is authorized to issue up to 10 million shares of preferred stock. No PPL preferred stock was issued or outstanding in 2024, 2023 or 2022.

(PPL Electric)

PPL Electric is authorized to issue up to 20,629,936 shares of preferred stock. No PPL Electric preferred stock was issued or outstanding in 2024, 2023 or 2022.

(LG&E)

LG&E is authorized to issue up to 1,720,000 shares of preferred stock at a $25 par value and 6,750,000 shares of preferred stock without par value. LG&E had no preferred stock issued or outstanding in 2024, 2023 or 2022.
KU)

KU is authorized to issue up to 5,300,000 shares of preferred stock and 2,000,000 shares of preference stock without par value. KU had no preferred or preference stock issued or outstanding in 2024, 2023 or 2022.
5. Earnings Per Share

(PPL)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing income available to PPL common shareowners by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the applicable period. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing income available to PPL common shareowners by the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding, increased by the number of incremental shares that would be ing if potentially dilutive share-based payment awards were converted to common shares as calculated using the Two-Class Method or Treasury Stock Method. Incremental non-participating securities that have a

dilutive impact are detailed in the table below.

Reconciliations of the amounts of income and shares of PPL common stock (in thousands) for the periods ended December 31, used in the EPS calculation are:
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2024 2023 2022

Tncome (Numerator)
Income [rom continuing operations aller income taxes $ 888 $ 740 $ 714
Less amounts allocated to participating securities 2 1 1
Tncome from continuing operations after income taxes available to PPL common sharcowners - Basic and Diluted $ 886 $ 739 § 713
Income from discontinued operations (net of income texes) available 1o PPL common shareowners - Basic and Diluted s — s — s @
Net income autributable to PPL s 888 s 740 756
T.ess amounts allocated to participating securities 2 1 1

S 88 5 739 s 755

Net income available to PPL common shareowners - Basic and Diluted

Shares of Common Stock (Denominator)

Weighted-average shares - Basic EPS 737,036 736,027
Add: Dilutive share-based payment awards () 2097 1,130 875
‘Weighted-average shares - Diluted TPS 739.853 738,166 736,902
Basic EPS
Available to PPL common shareowners:

Income from continuing operations after income taxes $ 120 S LO0 $ 097

Income from discontinued operations (net of income taxes) — — 0.06

Net Income available to PPL comimon shereowners s 120 S 100 S 103
Diluted EPS
Available to PPL common sharcowners:

Income from continuing operations after income taxes 5 120 5 100 5 096

Income from discontinued operations (net of income taxes) — — 0.06

Net Income available to PPT. common sharcowners. $ 120 S 100 $ 102

a The Treasury Stock Method was applied to non-participating share-based payment awards.
For the years ended December 31, PPL issued common stock related to stock-based compensation plans as follows (in thousands):
2024 2023
DRIP 202 —
For the years ended December 31, the following shares (in thousands) were excluded [rom the computations of diluted EPS because the effect would have been antidilutive:
2024 2023 2022
— 243 93

Stock-based compensation awards

6. Income and Other Taxes
(PPL)
"Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes" is from domestic operations.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for accounting purposes and their basis for income tax purposes and the tax effects of net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. The provision for PPL's deferred income taxes
s is based upon the ratemaking principles of the applicable jurisdiction. See Notes 1 and 7 for additional information.

for regulated assets and liabili

Net deferred tax assets have been recognized based on management's estimates of future taxable income.

Significant components of PPL's deferred income tax assets and liabilities were as follows:
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2024 2023
Deferred Tax Assets
Delerred investment tax credits 28 28
Regulatory liabilities 133 123
Income taxes due to customers 418 436
Acerued pension and postretirement costs 112 101
State loss carryforwards 224 253
Federal and state tax credit carry forwards 24 67
Tnternal Revenue Code Section 197 intangibles 78
Contributions in aid of construction 149
Bad debt 37 23
Other 114 111
Valuation allowances (224) (245)
Total deferred tax assets 1101 1129
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Plant - net 3898 3749
Regulatory assets 432 376
Prepayments 39 47
Goodwill 38 2
Other 38 30
Total deferred tax liabilities 4445 4224
Net deferred tax liability § 3344 § 3,095
State deferred taxes are determined by entity and by jurisdiction. As a result, $12 million and $9 million of net deferred tax assets are shown as "Other noncurrent assets" on the Balance Sheets for 2024 and 2023.
At December 31, 2024, PPL had the following loss and tax credit carryforwards, related deferred tax assets and valuation allowances recorded against the deferred tax assets:
Gross Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowanee Expiration
Loss and other carryforwards
State net operating losses s 5010 § 224 s (@21 20252044
State charitable contributions 10 1 0] 20252029
Foreign capital loss 8 2 @) Indefinite
Gross Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowanee Expiration
Credit carryforwards
Federal - other 14 — 2044
State recycling credit 8 - 2028
State - other 2 — Indefinite
Valuation allowances have been established for the amount that, more likely than not, will not be realized. The changes in deferred tax valuation allowances were as follow:
ns
Balance at Charged to Balance
Beginning. Other at End
of Period Accounts Deductions of Period
2024 s 245 s 3 s 1 525 () s 224
2023 213 54 (b - 2 () 245
2022 462 10 — 259 (@) 213
(a) In 2024, PPL recorded a $23 million decrease in a valuation allowance on a 2004 state net operating loss carryforward that expired in 2024

(b)  PPL has a Pennsylvania net operating loss fully offsct by a valuation allowance. In 2023, PPL adjusted the net operating loss and related valuation allowance to be recorded at the current estimate of the applicable rate at which each portion of the net operating loss that will expire and be written off as the rate is reduced annually by one half a percentage point until the rate reaches.
10.4.99% in 2031

1n 2023, PPL recorded a $22 million decrease in a valuation allowance on a 2003 state net operating loss carryforward that expired in 2023

In2022, PPL recorded a $36 million decrease in a valuation allowance on a 2002 state net operating loss carryforward that expired in 2022 and a $2

(©
(

Cl

3 million decrease in the valuation allowance due (o the Pennsylvania rate change. See reconciliation of income tax table below.

Details of the components of income tax expense, a reconciliation of federal income taxes derived from statutory tax rates applied to "Income Before Income Taxes" to income taxes for reporting purposes, and details of "Taxes, other than income" were as follows:
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Tncome Tax Expense (Benefir)
Curtent - Federal ()
Cureent - State
Total Current Expense (Benefit)
Deferred - Federal (a)
Deferred - State

Total Deforred Expense (Bencfit), excluding operating loss carmyforwards

Amortization of investment tax credit
‘Tax expense (benefit) of operating loss carryforwards
Deferred - Federal
Deferred - State
Total Tax Expense (Benefi) of Operating Loss Carryforwards

Total income tax expense (benefit)

Total income tex expense (benefit) - Federal
Total income tax expense (benefit) - State

Total income tax expense (benefit)

In the table above, the following income tax expense (benefit) are excluded from income taxes:

Discontinued operations
Other comprehensive income
Valuation allowance recorded to other comprehensive income

Total

of Income Tax Expe

Federal income tax on Income Before Income Taxes at statutory tax rate = 21%

State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit

Valu

ion allowance adjustments (a)
Income tax credits (b)
Uil

rate-making tax adjustments (c)
Amortization of excess deferred federal and state income taxes
Other
Total increase (decrease)
Total income tax expense (benefit)
Fffective i

Taxes, other (han income
State gross earnings and state gross receipts
Property and other
Total

(PPL Electric)

‘The provi
otherwise would be recorded under GAAP is deferred and included in "Regulatory assets” or "Regulatory liabilitics” on the Balance Sheets.

Significant components of PPL Elcctric's deferred income tax asscts and liabilitics were as follows:
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(@) Tn 2023, PPL purchased approximately $300 million of renewable tax credits and recorded a current tax benefit and a deferred tax expense for utilization of approximately $250 million of the credits in 2023 and prior years, per the three-year carry-back rule.

(@) 1n 2024, 2023, and 2022, PPL recorded deferred income tax expense of $3 million, $11 million and §5 million for valuation allowances primarily related to increased Pennsylvania net operating loss carryforwards expected to be unuilized.
(b) In 2023, PPL purchased approximately $300 million of renewable tax credits and recorded a current tax benefit and a deferred tax expense for utilization of approximately $250 million of the credits in 2023 and prior years, per the three-year carry-back rule.
(¢) Primarily consists of tax impacts of AFUDC equity and related depreeiation across PPL wtilities and flov through tax impacts. Flow through oceurs when the rogulator cxeludes deferred tax expense or bencfit from rocoverable costs when determining income tax expense.

2024 2023 2022
s 23 s a73) Le)
9 37 24
32 (138) 2
137 286 122
64 a8 68
201 334 190
® () ®
1 3 2
) (12) (10)
@ © ®)
$ 228 $ 184 $ 201
$ s s i s 19
70 7 82
$ 228 $ 184 $ 201
2024 2023 2022
s — s — s @)
® (14 1"
— M —
5 ) s (1) D)
2024 2023 2022
s 234 s 194 s 192
65 58 68
2 12 9
® @) 6
e a0 ®
“5) “8) 54
! — )
© (10) 9
S 228 $ 184 $ 201
204 % 199 220 %
204 2023 2022
s 167 $ 195 § 173
207 197 157
s 374 s 392 s 332
The difference in the provision for deferred income taxes for regulated assets and liabilities and the amount that
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2024 2023
Deferred Tax Assets
Accrued pension and postretirement costs $ 36 $ 30
Contributions in aid of construction 120 105
Regulatory liabilities 0 a3
Income taxes due to customers 184 191
Other 22 27
Total deferred tax asscts 402 396
Deferred Tax 1 s
Electric utility plant - net 1,934 1.810
Regulatory assets. 160 19
Prepayments 30 36
Other 4 4
Total deferred tax lizbilities 1969
Net deferred tax Liability $ $ 1573
PPL Electric expects to have adequate levels of taxable income to realize its recorded deferred income tax assets.
Details of the components of income tax expense, a reconciliation of federal income taxes derived [rom statutory tax rates applied to "Income Before Income Taxes" (o income taxes for reporting purposes, and details of "Taxes, other than income" were as [ollows:
2024 2023 2022
Tncome Tax Expense (Benefit)
Current - Federal $ 44 $ 9 $ 63
Curcent - State 4 31 20
Total Current Expense (Benefit) 43 122 83
Deferred - Federal 86 3 60
Deferred - State 42 18 31
‘Total Deferred Expense (Benefit), excluding operating loss carryforwards 128 46 91
Total income tax expense (benefit) $ 17 5 168 5 17
Total income tax expense (henefit) - Federal s 130 519 s 123
Total income tax expense (benefit) - State 46 49 51
Total income tax expense (benefit) $ 176 § 168 $ 174
2024 2023 2022
Reconciliation of Income Tax Expense (Benefit)
Federal income tax on Income Before Income Taxes al statutory ax rate - 21% S I8 $ 144 $ 147
Increase (decrease) due to:
State income texes, net of federal income tax benefit a7 49 54
Utility rate-making tax adjustments (a) (16) ©) ™
Amorization of excess deferred federal income taxes (b) (10 an a2)
State income tax rate change (¢) - - ©
Other ) ) !
Total increasc (decreasc) 18 24 27
Total income tax expense (benefit) S 176 $ 168 $ 174
Effective income tax rate % 245 249 %

(@) Primarily consists of tax impacts of AFUDC equity and related depreciation across PPL wtilities and flow through tax impacts. Flow through oceurs when the regulator excludes deferred tax expense or benefit from recoverable costs when determining income tax expense.
(b) In 2024, 2023, and 2022, PPL Eleciric recorded lower income tax expense for the amortization of excess deferred taxes that primarily resulted from the U.S. federal corporae income tax rate reduction [rom 35% o 21% enacted by the TCJA. This amortization represents each year's refund amount, prior 1o & tax gross-up. to be paid to customers for previously collected deferred
taxes at higher income tax rates.

(¢) 2022 includes a deferred tax benefit of $9 million due to the corporate net incame tax rate reduction.
2024 2023 2022
Taxes, other than income
State gross receipts s 122 s 136 s 142
Property and other 9 7 7
Total s 131 s 143 $ 149

(LG&E)

The provision for LG&E's deferred income taxes for regulated assets and liabilities is based upon the ratemaking principles reflected in rates established by the KPSC and the FERC. The difference in the provision for deferred income taxes for regulated assets and liabilities and the amount that otherwise
would be recorded under GAAP is deferred and included in "Regulatory assets” or "Regulatory liabilities" on the Balance Sheets.

Significant components of LG&E's deferred income tax asscts and liabilitics were as follows:
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2024 2023
Deferred Tax Assets
Contributions in aid of construction s 18 $ 18
Regulatory liabilities 18 19
Acerued pension and postretirement costs 4 3
Deferred investment tax credits 7 H
Income taxes due to customers 110 15
State tax eredit carryforwards 6 H
Lease liabilities 4 4
Valuation allowances ©) ®)
Other 6 8
Total deferred tax assets 167 175
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Plant - net 875 877
Regulatory assets 88 67
Leuse right-of-use assets 4 3
Other 3 4
Total deferred tax liabilities 970 951
Net deferred tax liability $ 803 $ 776
At December 31, 2024, LG&E had S6 million of state credit carryforwards that expire in 2028 and a $6 million valuation allowance related to state credit carryforwards due to insufficient projected Kentucky taxable income.
Details of the components of income tax expense, a reconciliation of federal income taxes derived from statutory tax rates applied to "Income Before Income Taxes" to income taxes for reporting purposes, and details of "Taxes, other than income" were:
2024 2023 2022
Income Tax Expense (Benefit)
Curtent - Federal 5 60 5 70 s 60
Current - State Il 13 9
Total Current Expense (Benelit) 71 83 69
Deferred - Federal 1 15) (10)
Deferred - State 6 2 s
Total Deferred Expense (Benefif) 7 (13) (5)
Amortization of investment tax credit - Tederal [0} (1) [0}
Total income tax expense (benefit) $ 77 $ 69 $ 63
Total income tax expense (benefi) - Federal $ 60 s 54 s 49
Total income tax expense (henefit) - State 17 15 in
Total income tax expense (benefit) $ 77 $ 69 $ 63
2024 2023 2022
Reconciliation of Income Tax Expense (Benefit)
Federal income tax on Tncome Before Income Taxes at statutory tax rate - 21% $ 79 s 70 $ 70
Increase (decrease) duc 1o
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 14 3 13
Amortization of excess deferred federal and state income taxes 3 (13) as)
Other 3) m @
Total increase (decrease) @) (1) ()
Total income tax expense (benefit) § 77 S 69 $ 63
Effective income tax rate 206 % 206 ‘% 188 %
2024 2013 2022
Taxes, other than income
Property and other s 49 § 4 s 48
Total s 49 s 4 $
(KU)
The provision for KU's deferred income taxes for regulated assets and liabilities is based upon the ratemaking principles reflected in rates established by the KPSC, the VSCC and the FERC. The difference in the provision for deferred income taxes for regulated assets and liabilities and the amount that
otherwise would be recorded under GAAP is deferred and included in "Regulatory asscts” or "Regulatory liabilitics” on the Balance Sheets.
Significant components of KU's deferred income tax assets and liabilities were as follows:
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2024 2023
Deferred Tax Assets
Contributions in aid ol construction $ 12 $ 10
Regulatory liabilities 29 23
Deferred investment tax eredits 20 21
Income taxes due to customers 124 131
State tax credit carryforwards 4 4
Leasc liabilitics 6 5
Valuation allowances @ @
Other 4 5
Total deferred tax assets. 197 197
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Plant - net 1,053 1,045
Regulatory asscts 55 50
Pension and postretirement costs 6 7
Lease right-of-use assets 6 5
Other 1 2
Total deferred tax liabilities 121 1109
Net deferred tax Liability S 924 $ 912
At December 31,2024, KU had $4 million of state credit carryforwards of which $2 million will expire in 2028 and $2 million that has an indefinite carryforward period. At December 31,2024, KU had a $2 million valuation allowance related to state credit carryforwards due to insufficient projected
Kentucky taxable income.
Details of the components of income tax expense, a reconciliation of federal income taxes derived from statutory tax rates applied to "Income Before Income Taxes" to income taxes for reporting purposes, and details of "Taxes, other than income" were:
2024 2023 2022
Income Tax Expense (Benefit)
Current - Federal $ 87 $ 73 $ 63
Current = State 17 13 11
Total Current Fxpense (Benefit) 104 86 74
Delerred - Federal (15) an 3)
Deferred - State 2 4 7
Total Deferred Expense (Benefit) (13) (7) 4
Amortization of investment tax eredit - Federal 2 ) )
Total income tax expense (benefit) $ 89 $ $ 76
Total income Lax expense (benelil) - Federal $ 70 $ 60 $ 58
Total income tax expensc (bencfit) - State. 19 17 18
Total income tax expense (benefit) 5 89 $ 77 $ 76
2024 2023 2022
Reconciliation of Income Tax Expense (Benefit)
Federal income tax on Income Before Income Taxes at statutory tax rate - 21% $ 93 S 82 $ 84
TIncrease (decrease) due to:
State income taxes, net of [ederal income tax benelit 16 15 16
Amortization of investment tax credit @ ) (2]
Amortization of excess deferred federal and state income taxes. un an 21
Other m m (V)
Total decrease 4) 5) (8)
Total income tax expense (benefit) § 89 s 77 $ 76
Effective income tax rate 200 % 19.8 % 1901 %
2024 2023 2022
Taxes, other than income
Property and other $ a9 $ 45 $ 45
Total $ 49 $ 45 $ 45
(All Registrants)
Unrecognized Tax Benefits
PPL or its subsidiaries file tax returns in four major tax jurisdictions. The income tax provisions for PPL Electric, LG&E and KU are calculated in accordance with an i tax sharing which provides that taxable income be calculated as if each domestic subsidiary filed a separate
consolidated return. PPL Electric or its subsidiaries indirectly or directly file tax returns in three major tax jurisdictions, and LG&E and KU indirectly or directly file tax returns in two major tax jurisdictions. With few exceptions, at December 31, 2024, these jurisdictions, as well as the tax years that are no
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Tonger subject to examination, were as follows.
PPL PPL Electric LG&E KU
US. (federal) 2020 and prior 2020 and prior 2020 and prior 2020 and prior
Pennsylvania (state) 2020 and prior 2020 and prior
Kentucky (state) 2019 and prior 2019 and prior 2019 and prior 2019 and prior

Other
Transfer of Certain Credits under the Inflation Reduction Act (PPL)

The IRS released the final Internal Revenue Code Section 6418 regulations related to the transfer of certain credits under the Inflation Reduction Act. The regulations became effective on July 1, 2024 and did not and are not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements regarding prior or
future credit transfers.

IRS Revenue Procedure 2023-15 (PPL and LG&E)

On April 14, 2023, the IRS issued Revenue Procedure 2023-15, which provides a safe harbor method of accounting that taxpayers may use (o determine whether expenses (o repair, maintain, replace, or improve natural gas transmission and distribution property must be capitalized for tax purposes. PPL and

LG&E arc currently reviewing the revenue procedure to determine what impact the guidance may have on their financial statements.

Regulatory Treatment of the TCJA (LG&E)

On November 15, 2018, the FERC issucd a policy statement, Docket No. PL19-2-000, requiring companics to disclose the following items related to the accounting and rate treatment of excess and deficient accumulated deferred income taxes (ADIT) in light of the U.S. federal corporate income tax rate
change from 35% to 21%, as cnacted by the TCJA. The FERC accounts aftected include the following:

* Account 190 - Accumulated deferred income taxes

+ Account 282 - Accumulated deferred income taxes — other property
* Account 283 - Accumulated deferred income taxes — other

« Account 254 - Other regulatory liabilities

* Account 410.1 - Provision for deferred income taxes

* Account 411.1 - Provision for deferred income taxes - Cr.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the enacted tax rate expected to apply when temporary differences are to be realized or settled. Thus, at the date of enactment, LG&E’s deferred taxes are remeasured based upon new federal or state corporate income tax rates. The changes in deferred taxes
are primarily recorded as an offset to either a regulatory asset or regulatory liability and are reflected in future rates charged to customers. Protected excess ADIT balances are governed by IRS normalization requirements and must be amortized using the Average Rate Assumption Method (ARAM).
Unprotected excess ADIT balances are being amortized in accordance with regulatory approvals as discussed below.

For the Kentucky Flectric and Gias jurisdictions, unprotected excess ADIT balances resulting from the TCJA were amortized over a 15-year period starting January 1, 2018 per final orders in Case Nos. 2018-00034 and 2018-00294. Additionally, in Case No. 2018-00294, LG&F was approved to usc a 15-year
amortization period beginning May 1, 2019 for unprotected excess ADIT balances resulting from Kentucky tax reform HB 487. As a result of the most recent Kentucky final order in Case No. 2020-00350, LG&E amortized the remaining unprotected excess ADIT balances related to the TCIA and HB 487
over a one-year period beginning July 1, 2021, through the economic relief billing credit.

For the FERC Jurisdiction, LG&E made a compliance filing on April 1, 2020 to address Order No. 864, Public Utility Transmission Rate Changes to Address Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes. In this filing, KU i a 15-year ization period for excess ADIT in FERC Transmission
formula rates.

The table below shows the related amounts associated with the reversal and elimination of ADIT balances; the amount of excess and deficient ADIT that is protected and unprotected; the accounts to which the excess or deficient ADIT will be amortized; and the amortization period of the excess and deficient
ADIT to be returned or recovered through rates for both protected and ADIT. Additi a iliation to Form | page 278 — Other Regulatory Liabilitics s provided.
Unamortized Net Excess ADIT as of 12/31/23 (a) 2024 Amortization of Excess ADIT (b) Unamortized Net Excess ADIT as of 12/31/24

Plant Related (c):

Account 282 - Property Related 5 339,791,155 § 13466722 § 346,324.43
Account 282 - Coal Combustion Residual AROs 925,470 52,884 872,586
Account 190 - Net Operating Losses (183 (718.,566) (17.646,506)
Plant Related (¢): s 342351553 § 12.801,040 § 329,550,513
Unproteeted Non Plant Related:

Account 190 - Other Temporary Differences s —s —s -
Account 282 - Other Temporary Differences — — —
Account 283 - Other Temporary Differences — — —
“Total Unprotected Non Plant Related S —3 — 5 —_
Total Excess Deferred Tax s 342351553 § 12801040 § 329.550513
‘Tax Gross-up Factor $ 133245
Excess Deferred Tax Regulatory Liability B 439,107,945
Regulatory Liability on Unamortized Tnvestment Tax Credits (ITC) 5 9.880.753
“Total Tax Regulatory Liability B 148,988,698
ASC 740 Regulatory Liability - FERC Form 1 page 278 448,988,698
Difference s -

(a) Excess ADIT balances resulting from U.S. federal (TCJA) and Kentucky (HB 487) corporate income tax rate reductions effective January 1, 2018, U.S. federal corporate income tax rate reduction in 1986, and Kentucky corporate income tax rate reductions in 2005 through 2007.
(b) Excess ADIT balances arc recorded to account 254 and reversed through accounts 410.1/411.1. Sce discussion above for amortization periods used for protected and unprotected cxcess ADIT.
() Plant related excess ADIT balances are currently treated as "protected” by the company and amortized using ARAM.

7. Utility Rate Regulation
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Regulatory Assets and Liabilities
(All Registrants)
PPL, PPL Electric, LG&E and KU reflect the effects of regulatory actions in the financial for their rz gulated utility i Regulatory assets and liabilities are classified as current if, upon initial recognition, the entire amount related to an item will be recovered or refunded within a year of

the balance sheet date.
(PPL)

RIE is subject to the jurisdiction of the RIPUC, the Rhode Island Division of Public Utilities and Carriers, and the FERC. RIE operates under « FERC-approved open access transmission tariff. RIE's base distribution rates are calculated based on recovery of costs as well as a return on rate base. Certain other
recovery mechanisms exist to recover expenses and capital investments with a return on rate base separate from the base distribution rate case process.

(PPL. LG&E and KU)

LG&E is subject to the jurisdiction of the KPSC and the FERC, and KU is subject to the jurisdiction of the KPSC, the VSCC and the FERC.

LG&E's and KU's Kentucky base rates arc calculated based on recovery of costs as well as a return on eapitalization (common cquity, long-torm debt and sk debt) including for cortain net i and costs recovered separately through other means. As such, LG&E and KU gencrally
can a return on regulatory assets.

(PPL and KU)

KU's Virginia base rates are calculated based on recovery of costs as well as a return on rate base (net utility plant plus working capital less accumulated deferred income taxes and miscellancous deductions). As all regulatory assets and liabilities, except for regulatory assets and liabilities related to the

levelized fuel factor, accumulated deferred income taxes, pension and postretirement benefits, and AROs related to certain CCR impoundments, are excluded from the return on rate base utilized in the calculation of Virginia base rates, no return is earned on the related as

KU's rates to municipal customers for wholesale power requirements are calculated based on annual updates to a formula rate that utilizes a return on rate base (net utility plant plus working capital less accumulated deferred income taxes and miscellaneous deductions). As all regulatory assets and liabilities,
except accumulated deferred income taxes, arc excluded from the return on rate basc utilized in the development of municipal rates, no return is carned on the related asscts.

(PPL and PPL Electric)

PPL Electric is subject to the jurisdiction of the PAPUC and the FERC. PPL Electric's distribution base rates are calculated based on recovery of costs as well as a return on distribution rate base (net utility plant plus a working capital allowance less plant-related deferred taxes and other miscellaneous
additions and deductions). PPL Electric's transmission revenues are billed in accordance with a FERC tariff that allows for recovery of transmission costs incurred. a return on transmission-related rate base (net utility plant plus a working capital allowance less plant-related deferred taxes and other

additions and i and an automatic annual update. See "Transmission Formula Rate" below for additional information on this tariff. All regulatory assets and liabilities are excluded from distribution and ission return on i i therefore, generally no return is
earned on PPL Electric's regulatory ts.
(All Registrants)
The following table provides information about the regulatory assets and liabilitics of cost-based gulated utility at December 31:
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Cunent Regulatory Assets:
Rate adjustment mechanism
Renewable energy certificatcs
Derivative instruments.
Smart meter rider
Storm damage expense rider
Trensmission service charge
Transmission formula rate
ISR deferral
Gas lin tracker
TCIA customer refund and recovery
bsIC
Other

Total current regulatory asscts

Noncurrent Regulatory Assets:
Defined benefit plans
Plant outage cost
Net metering
Environmental cost recovery
Storm costs
Unamortized loss on debt
Interest rate swaps
Terminated interest rate swaps
Accumulated cost of removal of utility plant
AROs
Retired asset recovery
Derivative instruments
Gas line inspections
Advanced metering infrastructure
Other

Total noncurrent regulatory assets

Current Regulatory Liabilities:
Generation supply charge
TCIA customer refund and recovery
Act 129 compliance rider
Transmission formula rate

Rate adjustment mechanism

Energy efficiency
Gas supply clause.
DSM
Enviroumental cost recovery
Other

Total current regulatory liabilities

Noncurrent Regulatory Liabilitics:
Accumulated cost of removal of us
Power purchase agreement - OVEC
Net deferred taxes
Defined benefit plans

Terminated interest rate swaps

Encry

Other

Total noncurrent regulatory liabilities

Defined Benefit Plans
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reL PPL Elec LG&E KU
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

$ 95 518 5 — — 5 — - 5 — s —
14 14 — — — _ _
3 51 — — — — — —
7 6 7 6 — — —
68 12 68 12 — — —
44 IS 27 31 - - - -
14 5 2 — — — —
22 11 — — — — —
4 — — — 4 — —
21 — 21 — — — —
8 7 8 7 — — —
20 26 - 1 4 7 1 3
S 320 s 293 s 133 s7 s 8 K 51 s 3
S 967 $ 887 $ 473 417 $ 226 217 $ 149 $ 136
30 38 — — 7 10 23 28
147 12 — — — — —
9% 29 — — — — —
s 97 - 2 15 29 14
2 2 3 9 10 6 7
4 7 — — 4 7 — —
55 58 — - 31 3 2 %
73 178 173 178 — - .
260 289 - - 75 7 205 213
83 . — — 83 _ _
1 8 — — — — —
24 21 — — 22 19 2 2
2 15 — - 14 7 It 3
41 4 2 - — — 8 7
2,060 $ 1,874 $ 673 598 $ 491 395 $ 458 S 439

PPL. PPL Electric LG&E KU

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
§ 52 $ 51 5 52 51 5 — — § — $ —
- 5 — 5 —_ —_ - —_
2 15 2 15 - - - -
1 21 — 8 — _ _
71 72 — — — — —
25 23 — — - - .
— 15 — — — 15 - —
” 1 - — 7 — 10 1
12 — — — 6 - 6 —
43 2 3 2 1 l 6 —
$ 223 $ 225 $ 91 $ 14 16 $ 22 $ 1
$ 99 s — — $ 314 306 s 408 s 399
10 19 — — 7 13 3 6
1,899 1977 739 763 439 459 498 523
294 252 100 7 24 20 65 59
54 — — 27 2 27 23
16 5 — — — — —
40 34 — — 4 _ 8 3
3335 $ 3340 s 839 836 E 827 S 1009 s 1018
Following is an overview of selected regulatory assets and liabilities detailed in the preceding tables. Specific developments with respect to certain of these regulatory assets and liabilities are discussed in "Regulatory Matters."
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(All Registrants)

Defined benefit plan regulatory assets and liabilities represent prior service cost and net actuarial gains and losses that will be recovered in defined benefit plans expense through future base rates based upon established regulatory practices and, generally, are amortized over the average remaining service lives
of plan participants. These regulatory assets and liabilities are adjusted at least annually or whenever the funded status of defined benefit plans is remeasured.

(PPL, LG&E and KU)

As aresult of previous rate case scttlements and orders, the difference between pension cost calculated in accordance with LG&E's and KU's pension accounting policy and pension cost calculated using a 15-ycar amortization period for actuarial gains and losscs and scttlements arc recorded as a regulatory
asset. As of December 31, 2024, the balances were $79 million for PPL, $44 million for LGKE and $35 million for KU. As of December 31, 2023, the balances were $86 million for PPL, $46 million for LG&E and $40 million for KU.

(PPL)
RIE is subject to a pension rate adjustment mechanism whercby the difference in amounts allowed to be recovered in rates versus actual costs of RIE’s pension and ather postretirement benefit plans that are to be recovered from or passed back to customers in future periods, arc also recorded as regulatory
assets and liabilities.

(All Registrants)

Storm Costs

PPL Electric, LG&E and KU have the ability to request from the PAPUC, the KPSC and the VSCC, as applicable, the authority to treat expenses related to specific extraordinary storms as a regulatory asset and defer such costs for regulatory accounting and reporting purposes. Once such authority is granted,
LG&E and KU can request recovery of those expenses in a base rate case and begin amortizing the costs when recovery starts. PPL Electric can recover qualifying expenses caused by major storm events, as defined in its retail tariff, over three years through the Storm Damage Expense Rider commencing in

the application year after the storm occurred. LG&E's and KU's regulatory assets for storm costs approved for base rate recovery are being amortized through various dates ending in 2031.

As provided in the Amended Scttlement Agreement (ASA). RIE has the authority from the RIPUC to treat certain incremental O&M expenses related to specific extraordinary storms as a regulatory assct and defer such costs for regulatory accounting and reporting purposes. Once all expenses for the
extraordinary storm have been finalized, RIE files a final accounting of those storm expenses with the RIPUC that is subject to review by the RIPUC and the Rhode Island Division of Public Utilities and Carriers.

Unamortized Loss on Debt

Unamortized loss on reacquired debt represents losses on long-term debt refinanced, reacquired or redeemed that have been deferred and will be amortized and recovered over either the original life of the extinguished debt or the life of the replacement debt (in the case of refinancing). Such costs are being
amortized through 2053 for PPL Electric, through 2042 for KU, and through 2044 for LG&E.

Accumi f Remov: ility Plan

RIE, LG&E and KU charge costs of removal through depreciation expense with an offsetting credit to a regulatory liability. The regulatory liability is relieved as costs are incurred.

PPL Elcctric docs not accruc for costs of removal. When costs of removal arc incurred, PPL Electric records the costs as a regulatory assct. Such deferral is included in rates and amortized over the subscquent five-year period.
Net Deferred Taxes

Regulatory liabilities associated with net deferred taxes represent the future revenue impact from the adjustment of deferred income taxes required primarily for excess deferred taxes and unamortized investment tax credits. largely a result of the TCJA.

(PPL and PPL Electric)
Distributi ystem | Charge (DSIC),
The DSIC is authorized under Act 11 and is consi an i providing more timely cost recovery of qualifying distribution system capital improvements. DSIC is charged to all customers taking distribution service as a of total distribution revenue State

Tax Adjustment Surcharge). DSIC is capped at 5% of the total amount billed to all customers for distribution service (including reconcilable riders) which provides a safeguard for customers. PPL Electric is permitted to utilize the DSIC mechanism so long as the rolling 12-month ROE for the applicable
period does not exceed the PAPUC ROE in the company’s PAPUC quarterly financial report filing. The DSIC contains a reconciliation
mechanism whereby any over- or under-recovery from customers is cither refunded to, or recovered from, customers through the factor ined for the year.

Generation Supply_Charge (GSC),

The GSC is a cost recovery mechanism that permits PPL Electric to recover costs incurred to provide supply to PLR cus s who receive basic generation supply service. The recovery includes charges for generation supply, as well as administration of the acquisition process. In addition, the
GSC contains a reconciliation mechanism whercby any over- or under-recovery from prior periods is refunded to, or recovered from, cust through the adji factor incd for the rate filing period.

I ission Service Charge (TSC)

PPL Electric is charged by PJM for ion service-related costs applicable to its PLR PPL Electric passes these costs on to customers, who receive basic ion supply service through the PAPUC-approved TSC cost recovery mechanism. The TSC contains a reconciliation mechanism
whereby any over- or under-recovery from customers is either refunded to, or recovered from, through the factor for the year.

RIE arranges transmission service on behalf of its customers and bills the costs of those services to cust pursuant to its T ion Service Cost Ad; Provision. The TSC contains a reconciliation mechanism whereby any over- or under-recovery from customers is cither refunded to, or
recovered from, through the adj factor ined for the year.

Transmission Formula Rate

PPL Electric's transmission revenues are billed in accordance with a FERC-approved Open Access Transmission Tariff that utilizes a formula-based rate recovery Under this formula, beginning in 2023, rates are put into effect on January 1st of each year based upon actual expenditures from the
most recently filed FERC Form 1, forecasted capital additions, and other data based on PPL Electric’s books and records. 2023 was considered a transitional period as the calendar year rate approved by FERC became effective April 1, 2023, Rates are compared during the year to the estimated annual
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expenses and capital additions that will be filed in PPL Electric’s annual FERC Form 1, filed under the FERC's Uniform System of Accounts. Under the mechanism, any difference between the revenue requirement in effect and actual expenditures incurred for that year is recorded as a regulatory asset or
regulatory liability, and the regulatory asset or regulatory liability is to be recovered from or returned to customers starting one year after the conclusion of the rate year.

The SDER is a reconcilable automatic adjustment clause under which PPL Electric annually will compare actual storm costs to storm costs allowed in base rates and refund or recover any differences from customers. In the 2015 rate case settlement approved by the PAPUC in November 2015, it was
determined that reportable storm damage expenses to be recovered annually through base rates will be set at $20 million. The SDER will recover from or refund to customers the applicable expenses from reportable storms as compared to the $20 million recovered annually through base rates.

Act 129 Compliance Rider

In compliance with Pennsylvania's Act 129 of 2008 and implementing regulations, PPL Electric is currently in Phase IV of the energy efficiency and conservation plan which was approved in March 2021. Phase IV allows PPL Electric to recover the maximum $313 million over the five-year period, June I,
2021 through May 31, 2026. The plan includes programs intended to reduce electricity consumption. The recoverable costs include direct and indirect charges, including design and development costs, general and administrative costs and applicable state evaluator costs. The rates are applied to customers
who receive

distribution service through the Act 129 Compliance Rider. The actual Phase IV program costs are reconcilable afier each 12-month period, and any over- or under-recovery from customers will be refunded or recovered over the next rate filing period

Smart Meter Rider (SMR),

Act 129 requires each electric distribution company (EDC) with more than 100,000 customers to have a PAPUC approved Smart Meter P and Plan (SMP). As of December 31, 2019, PPL Electric replaced substantially all of its old meters with meters that meet the Act 129
requirements under its SMP. In accordance with Act 129, EDCs are able to recover the costs and earn a return on capital of providing smart metering technology. PPL Electric uses the SMR to recover the costs to implement its SMP. The SMR is a reconciliation mechanism whereby any over- or under-
recovery from prior years is refunded to, or recovered from, customers through the ad factor d for the sut quarters.

Universal Service Rider (USR),

The USR provides for recovery of costs associated with universal service programs, OnTrack and Winter Relief Assistance Program (WRAP), provided by PPL Electric to residential customers. OnTrack is a special payment program for low-income households and WRAP provides low-income customers a
means to reduce electric bills through energy saving methods. The USR rate is applied to residenti who receive distribution service. The actual program costs are reconcilable, and any over- or under-recovery from customers will be refunded or recovered annually in the subsequent year.

ICJA Customer Refund and Recovery,

As aresult of the reduced U.S federal corporate income tax rate as enacted by the TCJA, the PAPUC ruled that these tax benefits should be refunded to cust Timing di between the ition of these tax benefits and the refund of the benefit to the customer creates a regulatory liability. PPL
Electric's liability is being credited back to distribution customers through a temporary negative surcharge and remains in place until PPL Electric files and the PAPUC approves new base rates. The TCIA is i and any over- or und 'y from custe s will be refunded or recovered annually
in the subsequent year.

(PPL. LG&E and KU)
Euel Adjustment Clauses
LG&E's and KU's retail electric rates contain a fuel adjustment clause, whereby variances in power purchases and the cost of fuel to generate electricity, including transportation costs, from the costs embedded in base rates are adjusted in LG&E's and KU's rates. The KPSC requires formal reviews at six-

‘month intervals to examine past fuel adjustments and at two-year intervals to review past operations of the fuel adjustment clause and, to the extent appropriate, may conduct public hearings and reestablish the fuel charge included in base rates. The regulatory assets or liabilities represent the amounts that
have been under- or over-recovered due to timing or adjustments to the mechanism and are typically recovered within 12 months.

KU also employs a levelized fuel factor ism for Virginia using an average fuel cost factor based primarily on projected fuel costs and load for the fuel year (12 months ending March 31). The Virginia levelized fuel factor allows fucl recovery based on projected fucl costs for the fuel year
plus an adj for any under- o over: y of fuel expenses from the prior fuel year. The regulatory assets or liabililies represent the amounts that have been under- or red due to timing or adj o the ism and are typically recovered or refunded within 12 months.
AROs

As discussed in Note 1, for LG&E and KU, all ARO accretion and depreciation expenses are reclassified as a regulatory asset or regulatory liability. ARO regulatory assets associated with certain CCR projects are amortized to expense in accordance with regulatory approvals. For other AROs, deferred
acerction and depreciation expense is recovered through cost of removal.

Power Purchase Agreement - OVEC

As a result of purchase i fated with PPL's acquisition of LG&T and KU, the fair values of the OVEC power purchase agreement were recorded on the balance sheets of LG&E and KU with offsets (o regulatory liabilities. The regulatory liabilities are being amortized using the units-of-
production method until March 2026, the expiration date of the agreement at the date of the acquisition. LG&F's and KU's customer rates continue to reflect the original contracts. See Notes 12 and 17 for additional discussion of the power purchase agreement.

Interest Rate Swaps

LG&E's unrealized gains and losses are recorded as regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities until they are realized as interest expense. Interest expense from existing swaps is realized and recovered over the terms of the associated debt, which matures in 2033.

Terminated Interest Rate Swaps

Net realized gains and losses on all interest rate swaps are recovered through regulated rates. As such, any gains and losses on these derivatives are included in regulatory assets or liabilities and are primarily recognized in "Interest Expense” on the Statements of Income over the life of the associated debt.
Plant Outage Costs

From July I, 2017 through Junc 30, 2021, plant outage costs were normalized for ratemaking purposcs based on an average level of expenses. Plant outage expenses that were greater or less than the average will be collected from or returned to customers, through future base rates. Effective July 1, 2021,
under-recovered plant outage costs are being amortized through 2029 for LG&E and KU.

Advanced Metering Infrastructure
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In 2021 orders from the KPSC, LG&E and KU received approval to record regulatory assets comprised of the operating expenses associated with implementation of the AMI project and the incremental difference between AFUDC accrued at LG&E's and KU’s weighted average cost of capital and that
calculated using the methodology approved by the FERC. Recovery of these costs will be determined in the base rate case ing following the ion of the AMI i ion project.
(PPL)
Derivative Instruments

Derivative instruments that qualify for recovery from, or refund to, customers through future rates are recorded at fair value, with changes in fair value recorded as regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities in the period in which the change occurs. The balance is reconcilable, and any over- or under-recovery
from customers will be refunded or recovered annually in the subscquent year.
Energy Efficiency,

The energy efficiency mechanism is designed to collect the estimated costs of RIE’s energy efficiency plan for the upcoming calendar year. Any differences between revenue billed to customers through RIE's energy efficiency charge and the costs of RIE's energy efficiency programs, as approved by the
RIPUC, are recorded as regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities. The final annual over or under collection is reconciled in the next year's energy efficiency plan filing, as part of the reconciliation factor calculation. RIE may file to change the energy efficiency plan charge at any time should significant over-
or under-recoveries occur.

Net Metering,
The net metering mechanism provides for recovery of costs associated with rinstalled on-site jon facilities, including the costs of renewable generation credits. Net metering is reconcilable annually, and any over- or under-recovery from customers will be refunded to, or recovered from,
stomers through the adj factor for the year.

Rate Adjustment Mechanisms

In addition to commodity costs, RIE is subject to a number of additional rate adj isms whereby a regulatory asset or regulatory liability is recognized resulting from differences between actual revenues and the underlying cost being recovered or differences between actual revenues and targeted

amounts as approved by the RIPUC. The rate adj are and any over- or under-recovery from customers are to be refunded or recovered annually in the subsequent year.

Renewable Energy Certificates

The Lnergy Certificats gul asset represents deferred costs associated with RIE's compliance obligation with the Rhode Island Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS). The RPS is legislati blished to foster the develop: of new energy sources. The regulatory asset will be
recovered over the next year.

Taxes Recoverable through Future Rates

Taxes recoverable through future rates represent the portion of future income taxes that are anticipated fo be recovered through future rates based upon established regulatory practices. Accordingly, this regulatory asset is recognized when the offsetting deferred tax liability is recognized. For general-purpose
financial reporting, this regulatory asset and the deferred tax liability are not offset; rather, each is displayed separately. This regulatory asset is expected to be recovered over the period that the underlying book-tax timing differences reverse and the actual cash taxes are incurred.

(PPL, LG&E and KU)

Environmental Cost Recovery,

Kentucky law permits LG&E and KU to recover the costs, including a return of operating expenses and a return of and on capital invested, of complying with the Clean Air Act and those federal, state or local environmental requirements, which apply to coal combustion wastes and by-products from coal-
fired electricity generating facilities. The KPSC requires reviews of the past operations of the environmental surcharge for six-month and two-year billing periods to evaluate the related charges, credits and rates of return, as well as to provide for the roll-in of ECR amounts to base rates each two-year period.
The KPSC has authorized return on cquity of 9.35% for cxisting approved ECR projects. The ECR regulatory asset or liability represents the amount that has been under- or over-recovered duc to timing or adjustments to the mechanism and is typically recovered or refunded within 12 months.

RIE's rate plans provide for specific rate allowances for RIE's share of the estimated costs to investigate and perform certain remediation activities at sites with which it may be associated, with variances deferred for future recovery from, or return to, customers. RIE believes future costs, beyond the
expiration of current rate plans, will continue to be recovered through rates. The regulatory asset represents the excess of amounts incurred for RIE's actual site investigation and remediation costs versus amounts received in rates.

(PPL and LG&E)

Gas Supply Clause

LG&E's natural gas rates contain a gas supply clause, whereby the expected cost of natural gas supply and variances between actual and expected costs and customer usage from prior periods are adjusted quarterly in LG&E's rates, subject to approval by the KPSC. The gas supply clause previously included a
separate natural gas procurement incentive mechanism, which allowed LG&E's rates to be adjusted annually to share savings between the actual cost of gas purchases and market indices, with the and the customers during each perfor -based rate year (12 months ending October 31). The

operation of this incentive mechanism expired on October 31, 2024, but savings achieved through October 31, 2024 will be included in LG&E’s rates through October 31, 2026. The regulatory assets or liabilities represent the total amounts that have been under- or over-recovered due to timing or adjustments
to the mechanisms and are typically recovered or refunded within 18 months.

Retired Asset Recovery (RAR) Rider

The RAR rider was established by KPSC orders in 2021 to provide recovery of and return on the remaining investment in certain electric generating units, including the remaining net ook value of each unit, materials and supplics that cannot be used at other plants and any associated removal costs, upon
their retirement over a ten-year period following retirement. Costs included as of December 31, 2024 represent the remaining net book value and materials and supplies that cannot be used as a result of the retirement of Mill Creek Unit 1. The associated removal costs will be added to the RAR rider
regulatory asset or regulatory liability as costs are incurred.

Regulatory Matters

ies (PPL)

Rhode Island Acti
Advanced Metering Functionality (AMF)

In 2021, RIE filed its Updated AMF Business Case and Grid Modernization Plan (GMP) with the RIPUC in accordance with the Amended Settlement Agreement (ASA) approved by the RIPUC in August 2018, and which among other things, sought approval to deploy smart meters throughout the service
territory. After PPL completed the acquisition of RIE, RIE filed a new AMF Business Case with the RIPUC in 2022, consisting of a detailed proposal for full-scale deployment of AMF across its electric service territory.
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On September 27, 2023, the RIPUC unanimously approved RIE to deploy an AMF-based metering system for the electric distribution business. RIE is authorized to seek recovery of the approved capital investment through the ISR process with an overall multi-year cap on recovery at approximately $153
million, subject to certain terms, conditions and limitations with respect to the potential offsets and recoverability of certain costs. RIF;is required to continue spending even if above the recovery cap, until it achieves the functionalities outlined in the AMF Business Case. RIE: filed with the RIPUC for
approval of (i) an updated electric Service Quality Plan on December 27, 2023, (ii) additional compliance tariff provisions regarding recovery and updated cost schedules to reflect the RIPUC's decision on December 22, 2023, and (i) electric and gas tariff advice filings for RIPUC Automatic Meter
Reading/AMF meter opt-out tariff provision on September 19, 2024. The RIPUC approved RIE's revised service quality metrics with certain modifications on August 1, 2024 and October 30, 2024. In addition, the RIPUC approved RIE's AMR/AMF opi-out tariff provisions for electric and natural gas with
modifications on December

19,2024 for effect January 1, 2025, and approved the proposed updated fees to be assessed at the start of the AMF roll-out. On January 7, 2025, RIE filed compliance tariffs to reflect the RIPUC’s ruling, which they approved at their January 23, 2025 Open Meeting.

Grid Modernization Plan (GMP)

RIE filed a new GMP with the RIPUC on December 30, 2022. The new GMP filing consists of a holistic suite of grid modernization investments that will provide RTE with the tools and capability to manage the clectric distribution system more granularly considering a range of distributed energy resources
adoption levels, accelerated by Rhode Island's climate mandates, while at the same time maintaining a safe and reliable electric distribution system. The GMP is an informational guidance document that supports the grid modernization investments to be proposed in future electric ISR plans. Consequently,
RIE did not request approval from the RIPUC for any specific investments or seek cost recovery as part of the GMP; rather, RIE requested the RIPUC issues an order affirming RIE's compliance with its obligation to file a GMP that meets the requirements of the ASA. At an Open Meeting on November 21,
2024, the RIPUC unanimously ruled that RIE satisfied the requirement to file a GMP. This decision does not represent a ruling on the GMP and the docket will remain open, though RIE does not expect further action on this docket.

FY 2025 Gas ISR Plan

On December 22, 2023, RIE filed its FY 2025 Gas ISR Plan with the RIPUC with a budget that includes $185 million of capital investment spend plus up to an additional $11 million of contingency plan spending in connection with the PIIMSA's potential enactment of regulations during FY 2025 that, if
enacted would significantly alter RIE's leak detection and repair obligations under federal regulations. RIE also filed its proposed gas ISR plan budgetary and reconciliation framework, addressing issues raised in connection with its FY submission, with its FY 2025 ISR Plan. The RIPUC held hearings in
March 2024, and on March 26. 2024, approved. the plan, including the proposed budgetary and reconciliation framework, with a total approved FY 2025 Gas ISR Plan of $180 million of which S168 million i for capital investment spend and $12 million spend for paving costs as operations and maintenance
(O&M), plus the potential additional $11 million available if the ab arei by the PHMSA. On March 28, 2024, the RIPUC approved RIE's compliance filing for rates effective April 1, 2024.

FY 2026 Gas ISR Plan

On December 31, 2024, RIE filed its FY 2026 Gas ISR Plan with the RIPUC with a budget that includes $187 million of capital investment spend and up to $15 million of additional contingency plan spend in connection with the PHMSA's potential enactment of regulations during FY 2026 that, if enacted,
would significantly alter RIE's leak detection and repair obligations under federal regulations. The Plan also includes proposed spending on curb-to-curb paving of $22 million. A decision from the RIPUC on the Plan is expected by March 31, 2025. RIE cannot predict the outcome of this matter.

FY 2025 Electric ISR Plan

On December 21, 2023, RIE filed ts FY 2025 Electric ISR Plan with the RIPUC with a budget tha includes $141 million of capital investment spend, $13 million of vegetation management O&M spend and $1 million of Other O&M spend. Rl also iled its proposed electric ISR plan budgetary and

reconciliation framework addressing issues raised in connection with its FY 2024 submission, with its FY 2025 ISR Plan. The RIPUC held hearings in March 2024, and on March 26, 2024, approved the plan, including the proposed budgetary and , with ions to the proposed
capital investment spend, resulting in a total approved FY 2025 Electric ISR Plan of $132 million for capital investment spend, $13 million for vegetation management O&M spend, and $1 million for Other O&M spend. On March 28, 2024, the RIPUC approved RIE's compliance filing for rates effective
April 1,2024.

FY 2026 Electric ISR Plan

On December 23, 2024, RIE filed its FY 2026 Electric ISR Plan with the RIPUC with a budget that includes $160 million of capital investment spend, $14 million of vegetation O&M spend and $1 million of Other O&M spend. In addition, the FY 2026 Electric ISR Plan includes $88 million of capital
investment spend for Advanced Metering Functionality (AMF) which, together with the $160 million of capital investment spend, results in total capital investment spend of $248 million. A decision from the RIPUC is expected by March 31, 2025. RIE cannot predict the outcome of this matter.
Kentucky Activities (PPL, LG&E and KU)

Kentucky January 2025 Storm

In January 2025, LG&E and KU experienced snow, ice, sleet and freezing rain in their service territories, resulting in substantial damage to certain of LG&E's and KU's assets. On January 31, 2025, LG&E and KU submitted a filing with the KPSC requesting regulatory asset treatment of the extraordinary
operations and maintenance expenses portion of the costs incurred related to the storm. These are estimated to be $2 million for LG&E and $8 million for KU. LG&E and KU cannot predict the outcome of this matter.

Kentucky September 2024 Storm
In Scp(cmlnr 2024, L(1&b and KU experienced significant winds and rain activity in their service territorics, resulting in substantial damage to certain of LG&E's and KU's asscts. On October 15, 2024, LG&E and KU submitted a filing with the KPSC requesting regulatory assct treatment of the

and expenses portion of the costs incurred related to the storm. On December 4, 2024, the KPSC issued an order approving LG&E’s and KU’s request for regulatory asset accounting treatment, with recovery amounts and amortization thereof to be determined in
subsequent base rale proceedings. LG&T and KU cannot predict the outcome of this malter. As of December 31, 2024, LG&E and KU recorded regulatory assets related (o the storm of $2 million and $11 million.

Kentucky May 2024 Storm

In May 2024, LG&E and KU experienced significant windstorm activity in their service territories, resulting in substantial damage to certain of LG&E's and KU's assets. On June 13, 2024, LG&E and KU submitted a filing with the KPSC requesting regulatory asset treatment of the extraordinary operations
and maintenance expenses portion of the costs incurred related to the storm. On July 2, 2024, the KPSC issued an order provisionally approving the request for accounting purposes, noting that the decision on approval of recovery would be determined in the future. On November 21, 2024, the KPSC issued
an order confirming the approval of LG&E’s and KU’s request for regulatory asset accounting treatment, with recovery amounts and thereof to be ined in base rate p ings. LG&E and KU cannot predict the outcome of this matter. As of December 31, 2024, LG&E and
KU recorded regulatory assets related to the storm of $4 million and S5 million.

KPSC Investigation Related to Winter Storm Elliott

On December 22, 2023, the KPSC initiated an investigation into the practices of LG&E and KU regarding the provision of electric service from December 23, 2022 through December 25, 2022, during a period of extreme temperatures during Winter Storm Ellmtl The investigation was the result of LG&E's
and KU's need to implement brief service interruptions to approximately 55,000 customers during this period. The purpose of the gation was (o discovery and ination already through LG&F's and KU's CPCN al hearing in February 2023
and reports completed by the NERC and the FERC related to the issue. Additionally, the investigation was to evaluate LG&E's and KU's actions taken, or planned to be taken, since Winter Storm Elliott that affect their ability to provide service during periods of variable weather and power system stress.
LG&E and KU believe actions taken during the period under question were necessary and appropriate. A hearing on the matter occurred on May 23, 2024. On January 7, 2025, the KPSC issued an Order finding that LG&E and KU did not willfully violate a regulation, statute or KPSC Order associated with

the Winter Storm Elliot event. The case is now closed and removed from the KPSC’s docket.

Mill Creek Unit 1 and Unit 2 Retired Asset Recovery (RAR) (PPL and LG&E)
In November 2023, the KPSC issucd an order approving, among other items, the requestcd retirement of Mill Creck Units 1 and 2.

On October 4, 2024, LG&E submitted an application related to the retirement of Mill Creek Unit 1, which occurred on December 31, 2024, requesting recovery of associated costs under the RAR rider. LG&E expects these costs to be approximately $125 million and proposes to begin application of the RAR
rider with bills issued in May 2025, On October 28, 2024, the KPSC issued an order to establish a procedural schedule regarding its investigation of the reasonableness of the proposed tariff. The KPSC intends to rule on the matter by February 28, 2025. LG&E cannot predict the outcome of this proceeding.
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Mill Creek Unit 2 is expected to be retired in 2027. LG&E anticipates the recovery of associated costs, including the remaining net book value. for Mill Creek Unit 2 through the RAR rider. The remaining net book value of Mill Creek Unit 2 was approximately $221 million at December 31, 2024 and LG&E
is continuing 1o depreciate using the current approved rates through iis retirement date in 2027. LG&E expects to reclassily the net book value remaining at retirement, which is expected (o total approximately $161 million, to a regulatory asset to be amortized over a period of ten years in accordance with the
RAR.

Pennsylvania Activities (PPL and PPL Electric)
PAPUC investigation into billing issues

On January 31,2023, the PAPUC initiated an investigation focused on billing issues related to estimated, irregular bills and customer service concerns following customer complaints, which for many customers were driven by increased prices for electricity supply. Certain bills issued during the time period
of December 20, 2022 through January 9, 2023 were estimated due 1o a lechnical issue that prevented PPL Electric [rom providing actual collected meter data Lo customer [acing and other internal systems. Customers also reported difficulties accessing PPL Clectric's website and contacting the customer
service call center. The PAPUC’s Burcau of Investigation & Enforcement (1&F) has dirceted PPL Electric to respond to certain inquirics and document requests. PPL Electric submitted its responses to the information request and cooperated fully with the investigation. PPL Electric reached a Settlement
Agreement with I&E on November 21, 2023. In the settlement, PPL Electric agreed Lo pay a civil penalty of S1 million, make certain remedial improvements to its billing systems and processes, and agreed (o not seek recovery for i cosls incurred in ing (o or resulting from the billing
event. On November 21, 2023, PPL Electric and 1&E submitted a Joint Petition for Approval of Settlement to the PAPUC. On January 18, 2024, the PAPUC issued an Order requesting public comment prior to the PAPUC entering a Final Order on the petition. Comments were due on February 28, 2024, and
comments were filed by the Office of Consumer Advocate, CAUSE-PA (low-income advocate), and individual customers. On March 19, 2024, PPL Electric filed reply comments. On April 25, 2024, the PAPUC announced at its public meeting that it would be issuing an order approving the Settlement

with modifications. The fons included the $1 million civil penalty to a $1 million donation to PPL Electric’s hardship fund, Operation ITELP, and requiring PPL Electric to make various progress reports on efforts to remediate the billing issue. PPL Electric and I&E had 20
business days from the issuance of the PAPUC order to accept or reject the proposed ions to the S cment. The time period to withdraw from the Scttlement Agreement expired on Junc 14, 2024, without PPL Elcctric or I&E wi from the cer and the terms of
the Settlement Agreement, as modified by the PAPUC's order, are now final. PPL Electric is in the process of complying with the terms of the Settlement Agreement, and made the required contribution to Operation HELP on June 24, 2024.

PPL Electric incurred expenses, primarily related to billing write-offs, of $18 million and $34 million for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 related to the billing issue. PPL Electric will not seek regulatory recovery of these costs.
DSIC Petition

On April 26, 2024, PPL Elcctric filed a Petition with the PAPUC requesting that the PAPUC waive PPL Electric's DSIC cap of 5% of billed revenues and increase the maximum allowable DSIC to 9% for bills rendered on or after January 1, 2025. On

November 21, 2024, the Administrative Law Judge in the ing issued a Decision ing the denial of PPL Electric’s DSIC Cap Waiver Petition. PPL Electric filed exceptions to the Recommended Decision on December 11, 2024. Several of the other parties filed Reply
Exceptions on December 23, 2024. The i Law Judge's Decision and the Exceptions and Reply are currently before the PAPUC for a final order. PPL Electric cannot predict the timing or outcome of that decision.
Act 129

The Pennsylvania Public Utility Code requires EDCs to meet, by specified dates, specified goals for reduction in customer electricity usage and peak demand. EDCs not mecting the requirements of Act 129 are subject to significant penalties. PPL Electric filed with the PAPUC its Act 129 Phase IV Energy
Efficiency and Conservation Plan on November 30, 2020, for the five-year period starting June 1, 2021 and ending on May 31, 2026. PPL Electric's Phase IV Act 129 Plan was approved by the PAPUC at its March 25, 2021, public meeting.

The Pennsylvania Public Utility Code also requires EDCs to act as a default service provider (DSP), which provides electricity generation supply service to customers pursuant to a PAPUC-approved default service procurement plan. A DSP is able to recover the costs associated with its default service
procurement plan

In March 2024, PPL Electric filed a Petition for Approval of a new default service program and procurement plan with the PAPUC for the period June 1, 2025 through May 31, 2029. In August 2024, PPL Electric submitted a Joint Petition for ! in the ing. In ber 2024, the
Administrative Law Judge issued an Interim Order approving the proposed settlement without modification. The PAPUC adopted the Interim Order on November 7, 2024, without modification which finalized the settlement.

Eederal Matters
FERC Transmission Rate Filing (PPL, LG&E and KU)

In 2018, LG&E and KU applied to the FERC requesting climination of certain on-going waivers and credits to a sub-set of transmission customers relating to the 1998 merger of LG&E's and KU's parent entities and the 2006 withdrawal of LG&E and KU from the Midcontinent Independent System Operator,
Inc. (MISO), a regional transmission operator and energy market. The application sought termination of LG&E's and KU's commitment to provide certain Kentucky municipalities mitigation for certain horizontal market power concerns arising out of the 1998 LG&E and KU merger and 2006 MISO
withdrawal. The amounts at issue are generally waivers or credits granted to a limited number of Kentucky municipalities for either certain LG&E and KU or MISO transmission charges incurred for transmission service received. In 2019, the FERC granted LG&E's and KU's request to remove the ongoing
credits, conditioned upon the implementation by LG&E and KU of a transition mechanism for certain existing power supply arrangements, which was subsequently filed, modified, and approved by the FERC in 2020 and 2021. In 2020, LG&E and KU and other parties filed appeals with the U.S. Court of
Appeals - D.C. Circuit (D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals) regarding the FERC's orders on the elimination of the mitigation and required transition mechanism. In August 2022, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals issued an order remanding the proceedings back to the FERC. On May 18, 2023, the FERC issued an
order on remand reversing its 2019 decision and requiring LG&E and KU to refund credits previously withheld, including under such transition mechanism. LG&E and KU filed a petition for review of the FERC's May 18, 2023 order with the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals and provided refunds in
accordance with the FERC order on December 1, 2023. The FERC issued an order on LG&E's and KU's compliance filing on November 16, 2023, and LG&E and KU filed a petition for review of this November 16, 2023 order on February 14, 2024. The FERC issued the substantive order on rehearing on
March 21, 2024, reaffirming its prior decision. Oral argument before the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals occurred on January 21, 2025. LG&E and KU cannot predict the ultimate outcome of the proceedings or any other post decision process but do not expect the annual impact to have a material effect on
their oprations or financial condition. LG&E and KU currently reccive recovery of cortain waivers and credits primarily through basc rates increascs, provided, however, that incroascs associated with the FERC's May 18, 2023 order arc expected to be subject to future rate proceedings.

Recovery of Transmission Costs (PPL)

Until December 2022, RTE's transmission facilities were operated in combination with the transmission facilities of National Grid's New England affiliates, Massachusetts Electric Company (MECO) and New England Power (NEP), as a single integrated system with NEP designated as the combined operator.
As of January 1, 2023, RIE operates its own transmission facilities. ISO-NE allocates RIE's costs among transmission customers in New England, in accordance with the ISO Open Access Transmission Tariff (ISO-NE OATT). According to the FERC orders, RTE is compensated for its actual monthly
transmission costs, with its authorized maximum Return on Equity (ROE) of 11.74% on its transmission assets.

The ROE for transmission rates under the ISO-NE OATT s the subject of four complaints that are pending before the FERC. On October 16, 2014, the FERC issued an order on the first complaint, Opinion No. 531-A, resetting the base ROE applicable to transmission assets under the ISO-NE OATT from
11.14% to 10.57% effective as of October 16, 2014 and establishing a maximum ROE of 11.74%. On April 14, 2017, this order was vacated and remanded by the D. C. Circuit Court of Appeals (Court of Appeals). After the remand, the FERC issued an order on October 16, 2018 applicable to all four pending
cases where it proposed a new base ROE methodology that, with subsequent input and support from the New England Transmission Owners (NETO), yielded a base ROE of 10.41%. Subsequent to the FERC's October 2018 order in the New England Transmission Owners cases, the FERC further refined its
ROE methodology in another proceeding and has applied that refined methodology to transmission owners’ ROE in other jurisdictions, and the NETOs filed further information in the New England matters to distinguish their case. Those determinations in other jurisdictions have recently been vacated and
remanded back to the FERC for further proceedings by the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals. The proceeding and the final base rate ROE determination in the New England matters remain open, pending a final order from the FERC. PPL cannot predict the outcome of this matter, and an estimate of the impact
cannot be determined.

Other

Purchase of Receivables Program

(PPL and PPL Electric)
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In accordance with a PAPUC-approved purchase of accounts receivable program, PPL Electric purchases certain accounts receivable from alternative electricity suppliers at a discount, which reflects a provision for uncollectible accounts. The alternative electricity suppliers have no continuing involvement or
interest in the purchased accounts receivable. Accounts receivable (hat are acquired are initially recorded at fair value on the date of acquisition. During 2024, 2023 and 2022, PPL Electric purchased $1.5 billion, $1.5 billion and $1.3 billion of accounts receivable (rom altemative suppliers.

(PPL)

In 2021 and 2022, the RIPUC approved various components of a Purchasc of Receivables Program (POR) in Rhode Island for effect on April 1, 2022. Municipal and lated power producers , Comp liers) are cligible to parti in with RIE's approved
electric tariffs for municipal aggregation and non-regulated power producers. Under the POR program, RIE will purchase the Competitive Suppliers' accounts receivables, including existing. , at di rates, dless of whether RIE has collected the owed monies from customers. The
program is intended to make RIE whole through the implementation of a discount rate or Standard Complete Bill (SCBP) paid by Competitive Suppliers. RIE calculates the SCBP for each customer class and files the calculations with the RIPUC for review and approval by February 15 of each

year. At an Open Meeting on March 26, 2024, the RIPUC approved the SCBP for effect beginning on April 1. 2024, for a one-year period.
8. Financing Activities

Credit Arrangements and Short-term Debt

(All Registrants)

‘The Registrants maintain credit facilities to enhance liquidity, provide credit support and provide a backstop to commercial paper programs. For reporting purposes, on a consolidated basis, the credit fucilities and commercial puper programs of PPL Electric, LG&E and KU also apply to PPL. The amounts
listed in the borrowed column below are recorded as "Short-term debt" on the Balance Sheets. The following credit facilities were in place at:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Letters of Letters of
redit Credit
and and
‘Commercial Commercial
Expiration Paper Paper
Date Capacity Borrowed Issued (d) Unused Capacity Borrowed Issued (d)
PPL
PPL Capital Funding
Syndicated Credit Facility (a) (b) (c) Dec 2028 s 1250 s — 5 138 s 12 s — s 390
Bilateral Credit Facility (a) (b) Feb 2025 100 — — 100 _ —
RBilateral Credit Facility (a) (b) Feb 2025 100 — 15 85 — 13
Total PPL Capital Funding Credit Facilities $ 1450 S — $ 153 s 1297 $ — $ 403
PPL Eleetric
Syndicated Credit Facility (a) (b) Dec 2028 650 — 1 649 — 511
Total PPL Electric Credit Facilities $ 650 s — $ ! S 649 s — s sul
LG&E
Syndicated Credit Facility () (b) Dec 2028 500 - 25 475 — —
Total LG&E Credit Facilities 3§ s00 S — s 3 475 3 — 3 —
KU
Syndicated Credit Facility (a) (b) Dec 2028 400 — 140 260 — 93
Total KU Credit Facilities $ 400 s — $ 140 $ 260 $ — s 9

(a)  Fach company pays customary fees under its respective facility and borrowings generally bear interest at applicable secured overnight financing rates or base rates, phus an applicable margin.

(b) The facilities contain a financial covenant requiring debt to total capitalization not to exceed 70% for PPL Capital Funding, RIE, PPL Electric, LG&E and KU, as calculated in accordance with the facilities and other customary covenants. Additionally, subject to certain conditions, PPL Capital Funding may request that the capacity of one of its bilateral credit facilities expiring in
February 2025 be increased by up to $30 million and that the capacity of its syndicated credit facility be increased by up to $400 million. PPL Electrie. LG&E and KU may each request up to a $250 million increase in its syndicated eredit facility's capacity, subjeet to regulatory approval of the increased capacity. Partiipation in any such increase is at the sole diseretion of each
lender.

(¢)  Includes a $250 million borrowing subli [or RIE and a $1 billion sublimit for PPL Capital Funding al December 31, 2024 and
and RIE had $25 million of commercial paper outstanding. RIE's obligations under the facility are not guaranteed by PPL.

(@) Commercial paper issued reflects the undiscounted face value of the issuance.

. At December 31, 2024, PPL Capital Funding had $138 million of commercial paper outstanding and RIE had no commercial paper outstanding. At December 31, 2023, PPL Capital Funding had $363 million of commercial paper oustanding

(PPL)

In January 2025, PPL Capital Funding amended and restated its existing $1.25 billion syndicated credit facility to extend the termination date from December 6, 2028 to December 6, 2029 and to increase the borrowing capacity under the facility to $1.5 billion.
(PPL and PPL Electric)

In January 2025, PPL Electric amended and restated its existing $650 million syndicated credit facility to extend the termination date from December 6, 2028 to December 6, 2029 and to increase the borrowing capacity under the facility to S750 million.

(PPL and LG&E)

In January 2025, LG&E amended and restated its existing $500 million syndicated credit facility 1o extend the termination date [rom December 6, 2028 to December 6, 2029 and Lo increase the borrowing capacity under the facility to $600 million.
(PPL and KU)

In January 2025, KU amended and restated its existing $400 million syndicated credit facility to extend the termination date from December 6, 2028 to December 6, 2029 and to increase the borrowing capacity under the facility to $600 million.

(All Registrants)
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‘The Registrants maintain commercial paper programs to provide an additional financing source to fund short-term liquidity needs. Commercial puper issuances, included in "Short-term debt" on the Balance Sheets, are supported by the respective Registrant's credit fucilities. The following commercial paper

(a)  PPI Capital Fundings obligations are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by PPI
(b

amount such that all borrowings under the syndicated eredit facility cannot exceed the size of the ercdit facility of $1.25 billion,

(&) Commercial paper issucd refleets the undiscounted face value of the issuance.

(PPL Electric, LG&E and KU)

Sce Note 13 for a discussion of intercompany borrowings.

Long-term Debt (4// Registrants)

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Weighted - Commercial Weighted - Commercial
Average aper Cnused erage aper

Interest Rate Capacity Issuances (c) Capacity Interest Rate Issuances (¢)
PPL Capital Funding () 4.76% s 1350 138 s 1212 5.66% 365
RIE (b) 250 — 250 5.72% 25
PPL Electric 650 — 650 5.67% 510
LG&E 472% 500 25 415 —
KU 471% 400 140 260 5.64% 93

Total S 3,150 303 S 2847

Issuances under the PPL Capital Funding and RIE commercial paper programs are supported by the PPL Capital Funding syndicated credit facility, which, at December 31, 2024, had  total capacity of $1.25 billion and under which they are both borrowers. PPL Capital Funding’s Commercial paper program is also backed by a separate bilateral credit facility for $100 million.
The PPL Capital Funding syndicated credit facility includes a borrowing sublimit for RTE, which at December 31, 2024 was set at $250 million with the remaining $1 billion allocated to PPL Capital Funding. RIE's obligations under the facility are not guaranteed by PPL. The sublimits of cach borrower may be decreased or increased at the borrowers” option up to a prescribed
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December 31,
Welghted-Average
Rate (d) Maturities (d) 2024 2023
PPL
Senior Unsecured Notes 431 % 2026 - 2047 5 4316 S 3066
Senior Secured Notes First Morigage Bonds (a) (b) (¢) 438 % 2025 -2053 10878 10229
Exchangeable Senior Unsecured Notes 288 % 2028 1.000 1.000
Junior Subordinated Notes 725 % 2067 480 480
Total Long-term Debt before adjustments 16674 14.775
Unamortized premium and (discount), net 57 (55)
Unamortized debt issuance costs (114) (108)
Total Long-term Debt 16503 14.612
Less current portion of Long-term Debt 551 1
Total Long-term Debt, noncurrent 5 15952 S 14611
PPL Electric
Senior Secured Notes First Mortgage Bonds (a) (b) 464 % 2027-2053 s 5299 S 4649
Total Longeterm Debt Before Adjustments 5299 4619
Unamortized discount “2) “2)
Unamortized deb issuance costs “3) (40)
Total Long-term Debt 5214 4.567
Less current portion of Long-term Debt — —
Total Long-term Debt, noncurrent $ 5214 S 4567
LG&E
Senior Secured Notes/First Mortgage Bonds (a) (c) 401 % 2025 - 2049 5 2489 S 2489
Total Long-term Debt Before Adjustments 2489 2489
Unamortized discount @ @
Unamortized debl issuance costs (14) (16)
Total Long-term Debt 2471 2469
Less current portion of Long-term Debt 300 —
“Total Longeicrm Debt, noncurrent s 2171 S 2,469
KU
Senior Secured Notes First Mortgage Bonds (a) (¢) 42 % 2025 - 2050 s 3089 S 3,080
Total Longeterm Debr Before Adjustments 3,089 3,080
Unamortized premium 4 5
Unamortized discount ®) ©
Unamortized debt issuance costs (9 1)
Total Long-term Debt 3,066 3.064
Less current portion of Long-term Debt 250 —
“Total Longeterm Debt, noncurrent. s 2816 S 3064
(@) Tncludes PPL Electric's senior secured and first mortgage honds that are secured by the lien of PPL Electric's 2001 Mortgage Indenture, which covers substantially all of PPL Electric’s tangible distribution properties and certain of its tangible transmission properties located in Pennsylvania, subject to certain exceptions and exclusions. The carrying value of PPL Electric's
property, plant and equipment was approximately §13.3 billion and $12.4 billion at December 31, 2024 and 2023
Includes LG&Es first mortgage bonds that are secured by the lien of the LG&E 2010 Mortgage Indenture which creates a lien. subject to certain exceptions and exclusions, on substantially all of LG&E's real and tangible personal property located in Kentucky and used or to be used in connection
with the generation, transmission and distribution of electricity and the storage and distribution of natural gas. The aggregate carrying value of the property subject to the lien was S6.0 billion and $5.9 billion at December 31,2024 and 2023.
Includes KU's first mortgage bonds that ac secured by the licn of the KU 2010 Mortgage Indenture which creates a lien, subject to cetain exceptions and cxclusions, on substantially all of KU's real and tangible personal property located in Kentucky and used or to b used with Nt sion and distribution of clectricity. The ageregate carrying
value of the property subject to the lien was 7.5 billion and $7.3 billion at December 31, 2024 and 2023,
(b)  Includes PPL Electric's series of senior secured bonds that secure its obligations o make payments with respect to each series of Pollution Control Bonds that were issued by the LCIDA on behalf of PPL Electric. These senior secured bonds were issued in the same principal amount, contain payment and redemption prov sions that correspond to and bear the same interes! rate as
such Pollution Control Bonds. These senior secured bonds were issued under PPL Electric’s 2001 Mortgage Indenture and are secured as noted in (s) above. The tax-exempt revenue bonds are subject 1o mandatory redemption upon determination that the interest rate on the bonds would be included in the holders' gross income for federal tax purposes.
(¢) Tncludes LG&T's and KU's series of first mortgage bonds that were issued to the respective trustees of tax-exempt revenue bonds to secure ts respective obligations to make payments with respect to each series of bonds. The first mortgage honds were issued in the same principal amounts, contain payment and redemption provisions that correspond to and hear the same interest

rate as such tax-exempt revenue bonds. These first mortgage bonds were issued under the 1 Gi&F: 2010 Mortgage Indenture and the KU 2010 Mortgage Indenture and are secured as noted in (a) abave. The related fax-exempt revenue bonds were issued by various governmenal entities, principally counties in Kentucky, on behalf of 1. G&F and KU. The related revenue bond.
documents allow LG&E and KU to convert the interest rate mode on the bonds from time to time to a commercial paper rate, daily rate, weekly rate, ferm rate of at least one year o, in some cases, an auction rate or a SOFR index rate. At December 31, 2024, the aggregate tax-exempt revenue bonds issued on behalf of LG&E and KU that were in a term rate mode totaled
$894 million for PPL, comprised of $538 million and $356 million for LG&E and KU. At December 31, 2024, the aggregate tax-exempt revenue bonds issued on behalf of LG&E and KU that were in a variable rate mode totaled $66 million and $33 million for LG&E and KU. These variable rate tax-exempt revenue bonds are subject to tender for purchase by LG&E and KU at
the option of the holder and to mandatory tender for purchase by LG&E and KU upon the occurrence of certain cvents.

(d) “The table refleets principal maturitics only, based on stated maturifics, sinking fund requirements, or carlier put dates, and the weighted-average rates as of December 31, 2024,

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt, based on sinking fund requirements, stated maturities or earlier put dates, for the periods 2025 through 2029 and thereafter are as follows:
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PPL
PPL Electric LG&E KU
2025 $ 551 $ — $ 300 $ 250
2026 904 - 90 164
2027 428 108 260 60
2028 1.350 — — -
2029 116 116 — —
Thereafter 13,325 5,075 1,839 2615
Total $ 16674 $ 5299 $ 2489 $ 3.089
(PPL)

Tn March 2024, RIE issued $500 million of 5.35% Senior Notes due 2034, RIE received proceeds of $496 million, net of discounts and underwriting fees, to be used to repay short-term debt and for other general corporate purposes.
In August 2024, PPL Capital Funding issued $750 million of 5.25% Senior Notes due 2034. PPL Capital Funding received proceeds of 741 million, net of discounts and underwriting fees, to be used to repay short-term debt and for other genral corporate purposes.
(PPL and PPL Electric)

In January 2024, PPL Electric issued $650 million of 4.85% First Mortgage Bonds due 2034, PPL Electric received proceeds of $644 million, net of discounts and underwriting fees, to be used to repay short-term debt and for other general corporate purposes.

(PPL Eleciric, LG&E and KU)

See Note 13 for additional inft ion related to i

Legal Separateness (4!l Registrants)

The subsidiaries of PPL are separate legal entities. PPL's subsidiarics are not liable for the debts of PPL. Accordingly, creditors of PPL may not satisfy their debts from the assets of PPL's subsidiaries absent a specific contractual undertaking by a subsidiary to pay PPL's creditors or as required by applicable
law or regulation. Similarly, other than PPL's guarantee of PPL Capital Funding's obligations, PPL is not liable for the debts of its subsidiaries, nor are its subsidiaries liable for the debts of one another. Accordingly, creditors of PPL's subsidiaries may not satisfy their debts from the assets of PPL or its other
subsidiarics absent a specific contractual undertaking by PPL or its other subsidiarics to pay the creditors or as required by applicable law or regulation.

Similarly, the subsidiaries of PPL Electric are each separate legal entities. These subsidiaries are not liable for the debts of PPL Electric. Accordingly, creditors of PPL Electric may not satisfy its debts from the assets of its subsidiaries absent a specific contractual undertaking by a subsidiary to pay the
creditors or as required by applicable law or regulation. Similarly, PPL Electric is not liable for the debts of its subsidiaries, nor are its subsidiaries liable for the debts of one another. Accordingly, creditors of these subsidiaries may not satisfy their debts from the assets of PPL Electric (or its other subsidiaries)
absent a specific contractual undertaking by PPL Tlectric or any such other subsidiary o pay such creditors or as required by applicable law or regulation.

(PPL)
Distributions and Related Restrictions

In November 2024, PPL declared its quarterly common stock dividend, payable January 2, 2025, at 25.75 cents per share (equivalent to $1.03 per annum). On February 13, 2025, PPL announced a quarterly common stock dividend of 27.25 cents per share, payable April 1, 2025, to sharcowners of record as of’
March 10, 2025. Future dividends will be declared at the discretion of the Board of Directors and will depend upon future earnings, cash flows, financial and legal requirements and other factors.

Neither PPL Capital Funding nor PPL may declare or pay any cash dividend or distribution on its capital stock during any period in which PPL Capital Funding defers interest payments on its 2007 Series A Junior Subordinated Notes due 2067. At December 31, 2024, no interest payments were deferred.
(All Registrants)

PPL relies on dividends or loans from its subsidiaries to fund PPL's dividends to its common shareholders. The net assets of certain PPL subsidiaries are subject to legal restrictions. LG&E, KU, PPL FElectric and RIE are subject to Section 305(a) of the Federal Power Act, which makes it unlawful for a public
utility to make or pay a dividend [rom any [unds "properly included in capital account." The meaning of this limitation has never been clarified under the Federal Power Act. LG&E, KU, PPL Electric and RIE believe, however, that this statutory restriction, as applied to their circumstances, would not be
construcd or applicd by the FERC to prohibit the payment from retained carnings of dividends that arc not excessive and are for lawful and legitimate business purposes. In February 2012, LG&E and KU petitioned the FERC requesting authorization to pay dividends in the future based on retained carnings
balances calculated without giving effect to the impact of purchase accounting adjustments for PPL's 2010 acquisition of LG&E and KU. In May 2012, the FERC approved the petitions with the further condition that each utility may not pay dividends if such payment would cause its adjusted equity ratio to
fall below 30% of total capitalization. Accordingly, at December 31, 2024, net assets of $1.5 billion for LG&E and $2.0 billion for KU were restricted for purposes of paying dividends to LKE, and net assets of 1.8 billion for LG&E and $2.3 billion for KU were available for payment of dividends to LKE.
LG&E and KU belicve they will not be required to change their current dividend practices as a result of the foregoing requirement. In addition, under Virginia law, KU is prohibited from making loans to affiliatcs without the prior approval of the VSCC. There are no comparable statutes under Kentucky law
applicable to LG&E and KU, or under Pennsylvania law applicable to PPL Electric. However, orders from the KPSC require LG&E and KU to obtain prior consent or approval before lending amounts to PPL.

9. Acquisiti D and Di

(PPL)

Acquisitions

Acquisition of Narragansett Electric

On May 25, 2022, PPL Rhode Island Holdings acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of common stock of Narragansett Electric from National Grid U.S., a subsidiary of National Grid ple (the Acquisition). Narragansett Electric, whose service area covers substantially all of Rhode Island, is primarily
engaged in the transmission and distribution of clectricity and distribution of natural gas. The Acquisition expands PPL's portfolio of regulated natural gas and clectricity transmission and distribution asscts, has improved PPL's credit metrics and is expected to enhance long term carnings growth. Following

the closing of the Acquisition, Narraganset lectric provides services doing business under the name Rhode Island Energy (RIE).

The i ion for the Acquisition consisted of i $3.8 billion in cash and approximately $1.5 billion of long-term debt assumed through the transaction. The fair value of the consideration paid for Narragansett Electric was as follows (in billions):
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Aggregate enterprise consideration $ 53
Less: fair value of assumed long-term debt outstanding 15
$ 38

Total cash consideration

The $3.8 billion total cash consideration paid was funded with proceeds from PPL's 2021 sale of its U.K. utility business.

In connection with the Acquisition, National Grid USA Service Company, Inc., National Grid U.S. and Narragansett Electric entered into a transition services agreement (TSA), pursuant to which the National Grid entities agreed to provide certain transition services to Narragansett Electric to facilitate the
transition of the operation of Narragansctt Elcetric to PPL following the Acquisition, as agreed upon in the Narragansctt sharc purchase agreement. The TSA was for an initial two-year term and was completed in the third quarter of 2024, TSA costs of $137 million, $228 million, and $123 million were
incurred for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.

Commitments to the Rhode Island Division of Public Utilities and Carriers and the Attorney General of the State of Rhode Island
As a condition to the Acquisition, PPL made certain commitments to the Rhode Island Division of Public Utilitics and Carricrs and the Attorney General of the State of Rhode Island. As a result:

+  RIE provided a credit to all its electric and natural gas distribution customers in the total amount of $50 million ($40 million net of tax benefit). Based on the relative number of electric distribution customers and natural gas distribution customers as of November 1, 2022, RIE refunded, in the form
of a bill credit, $33 million to electric customers and $17 million to natural gas customers of amounts collected from customers since the Acquisition date. Each electric customer received the same credit, and each natural gas customer received the same credit. A reduction of revenue and a regulatory
liability of $50 million for the amounts refunded were recorded during the quarter ended September 30, 2022. These credits were issued during the fourth quarter of 2022. The amounts refunded did not impact RIE's eamings sharing regulatory mechanism.

«  RIE forgave approximately $44 million ($21 million net of allowance for doubtful accounts) in for | and protected residenti which represents 100% of the arrcarages over 90 days for those customers as of March 31, 2022, PPL deemed these accounts uncollectible
and fully reserved for them as of September 30, 2022, resulting in an increase to "Other operations and maintenance expense” on the Statement of Income of $23 million for the year ended December 31, 2022.

+  RIE will not file a base rate case seeking an increase in base distribution rates for natural gas and/or electric service sooner than three years from the Acquisition date, and RIE will not submit a request for a change in base rates unless and until there is at least twelve months of operating experience

under PPL's exclusive leadership and after the TSA with National Grid terminates.

« RIE will forgo potential recovery of any and all transition costs, which includes (1) the i systems; (2) to physical facilities in Rhode Island; and (3) incurring costs related to severance payments, communications and
branding changes, and other transition related costs. These costs, which are being expensed as incurred, were $307 million, $262 million, and $181 million for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.

+  RIE will not seek Lo recover any transaction costs related (o the Acquisition, which were $28 million through December 31, 2024, including an immaterial amount for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, and $18 million for the year ended December 31, 2022. These amounts were recorded
in "Other operations and maintenance" on the Statement of Income.

«  RIE will not seek to recover in rates any markup charged by National Grid U.S. and/or its affiliates under the TSA which were $10 million, $7 million, and $3 million for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.

+ InJune 2022, RIE expensed $20 million of regulatory assets as of the Acquisition date for the Gas Business Enablement (GBE) project and for certain Cybersecurity/IT investments related to GBE. The expense was recorded to "Other ions and mai " on the of Income for the
year ended December 31, 2022, RIE will not seek to recover these regulatory assets from customers in any future proceedings.

+  RIE will exclude all goodwill from the ratemaking capital structure.

+  RIE will hold harmless Rhode Island customers from any changes to Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes (ADIT) as a result of the Acquisition. RIE reserves the right to seek rate adjustments based on future changes to ADIT that are not related to the Acquisition.

+  RIE will not increase its revenue requirement to a level higher than what would exist in the absence of the Acquisition as a result of any restatement of pension and other post-retirement benefits plan assets and liabilities to fair value after the close of the Acquisition.

+  Rhode Island Holdings contributed $2.5 million to the Rhode Tsland Commerce Corporation's Renewable Energy Fund and will not use any of the $2.5 million to meet its pre-existing renewable energy credit goals in Rhode Tsland or any other state. This contribution was made during the year ended

it of certain di and ent

December 31, 2022 and was recorded in "Other Income (Expense)" on the Statement of Income.

+  RIE will make available up to $2.5 million for the Rhode Island Attorney General to utilize as needed in evaluating PPL's report on RIE's specific decarbonization goals to support Rhode [sland's 2021 Act on Climate or to assess the future of the gas distribution business in Rhode Island. This amount
was accrucd during the year ended Deeember 31, 2022 and was recorded in "Other Income (Expense) - net” on the Statement of Income.

+ Various other operational and reporting commi have been established

Purchase Price Allocation

The operations of Narragansctt Electric arc subject to the accounting for certain types of regulation as prescribed by GAAP. The carrying value of Narragansett Elcetrie’s asscts and liabilitics subjoct to rate-setting and cost recovery provisions provide revenucs derived from costs, including a return on
investment of net assets and liabilities included in rate base. Therefore, the fair values of these assets and liabilities equal their carrying values. Accordingly, neither the assets acquired nor liabilities assumed reflect amy adjustments related to these amounts.

Total goodwill resulting [rom the acquisition was $1,585 million. PPL has elected to not reflect the efTects of purchase accounting in the separate [inancial statements of RIE or PPL's Rhode Island Regulated segment. Accordingly, the Rhode Island Regulated segment includes $725 million of acquired legacy
goodwill. The remaining excess purchase price of $860 million is included in PPL's Corporate and Other category for segment reporting purposes. The goodwill reflects the value paid for the expected continued growth of a rate-regulated business located in a defined service area with a constructive
regulatory environment, the ability of PPL to leverage its assembled workforce to take advantage of those growth opportunities

and the attractiveness of stable, growing cash flows. The tax goodwill is deductible for income tax purposes over a 15 year period, and as such, deferred taxes will be recorded as the tax deductions are taken.

The table below shows the allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed that were recorded in PPL’s Consolidated Balance Sheet as of the Acquisition date. The allocation was subject to change during the one-year measurement period as additional information was obtained
about the facts and circumstances that existed at closing. Adjustments to certain asscts acquired and liabilitics assumed during the year ended December 31, 2023 resulted in a decrcase in goodwill of $1 million since the purchase price allocation as of December 31, 2022.
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Final Purchase Price Allocation

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents s 154
Accounts Receivable (a) 195
Unbilled Revenues 54
Price Risk Management Assets 99
Regulutory Assets 75
Other Current Assets 65
Total Current Assets 642

Noncurrent Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment, net 3.992
Regulatory Asscts 393
Gooduwill 1585
Other Noncurrent Assets 164
Total Noncurrent Assets 6,134
Total Assets S 6776

Current Liabilities
Long-Term Debt Due Within One Year s 14
Accounts Payable 180
Taxes Acerued 44
Regulatory Liabilities 239
Other Current Liabilities 198
“Total Current Liabi 675
Noneurrent Lia
Long-Term Debt 1496
Regulatory Liabilities 643
Other Deferred Credits and Noneurrent Liabilitics 142
Noneurrent Liabilities 2281
Total Purchase Price (Balance Sheet Net Assets) s 3820

(@) Amounts represent fair value as of May 25, 2022, The gross contractuial amount is $255 million. Cash flows not expected to be collected as of May 25, 2022 were $60 million.

Pro Forma Financial Information

The actual RIE Operating Revenues and Net income attributable to PPL included in PPL's Statement of Income for the period ended December 31, 2022, and PPL's unaudited pro forma 2022 Operating Revenues and Net Income (Loss) attributable to PPL, including RIE, as if the Acquisition had occurred
prior to January 1, 2022 are as follows.

Operating Revenues Net Ine

ne (Loss)

Actual RIE results included from May 25, 2022 - December 31, 2022 (a) § 1,038 s (44
PPL Pra Forma for the year ended 2022 8,667 790

(a) et Income (Loss) includes expenses of $98 million (pre-tax) related to commitments made as a condition of the Acquisition.

‘The pro forma financial information presented above has been derived from the historical
Acquisition, primarily for advisory, accounting and legal fees incurred. (b) $223 million (pre-tax) of Acquisition integration costs, (¢) a $50 million reduction of revenue (pre-tax), write-offs of $43 million (pre-tax) of certain accounts receivable and regulatory assets of RIE and $5 million (pre-tax) of
expenses accrued in support of Rhode Island's decarbonization goals, all of which were conditions of the Acquisition, and (d) the income tax effect of these items, which was tax effected at the statutory federal income tax rate of 21%.

financial of PPL and Electric. N ing items included in the 2022 pro forma financial information include: (a) $18 million (pre-tax) of transaction costs related to the

Developments (PPL, LG&E and KU)

Mill Creek Unit 5 Construction

In December 2022, LG&E and KU filed a CPCN with the KPSC requesting approval to construct a 640 MW nct summer rating Natural Gas Combined Cycle (NGCC) combustion turbine at LG&E’s Mill Creck Generating Station. In November 2023, the KPSC issucd an order approving the request as well
as the requested AFUDC accounting treatment for associated financing costs relating to the NGCC. The new NGCC facility will be jointly owned by LG&E (31%) and KU (69%). In February 2024, LG&E and KU entered into agreements to begin construction of Mill Creek Unit 5. Total project costs are
estimated at approximately $1.0 billion, including AFUDC. Commercial operation of the facility is anticipated to begin in mid-2027.

See Note 7 for additional information on the CPCN filing.

Divestitures (PPL)

Sale of Safari Holdings
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On September 29, 2022, PPL signed a definitive agreement to sell all of Safari Holdings membership interests to Aspen Power Services, LLC (Aspen Power). On November 1, 2022, PPL completed the sale (the Transaction).

Final closing adjustments were completed during the year ended December 31, 2023, resulting in an increase to the loss on sale of $6 million (S5 million net of tax), which was recorded in "Other operation and maintenance" on the Statements of Income for the year ended December 31, 2023. A loss on sale
of $60 million ($46 million net of tax benefit) was recorded in "Other operation and maintenance” on the Statements of Income for the year ended December 31, 2022.

In connection with the closing of the Transaction, PPL provided certain guarantees and other assurances. Certain of these and other have been i as of January 8, 2024. See Note 12 to the Financial Statements for additional information.

Discontinued Operations
Results of Di: i Op

On June 14,2021, PPL WPD Limited completed the sale of PPL's U.K. utility business to National Grid Holdings One plc (National Grid U.K.), a subsidiary of National Grid plc. For the year ended December 31, 2022, the operations of the U.K. utility business are included in "Income from Discontinued
Operations (et of income faxes)" on the Statements of Tncome, with the only component being an income tax benefit of $42 million. There were no discontinued operations activities for the years ended December 31, 2024 or 2023.

10. Retirement and Postemployment Benefits
(All Registrants)
Defined Benefits

Certain cmployees of PPL's subsidiarics arc cligible for pension benefits under non-contributory defined benefit pension plans with benefits based on length of scrvice and final average pay, as defined by the plans.

Effective January 1,2012, PPL's primary defined benefit pension plan was closed to all newly hired salaried employees. Effective July 1, 2014, PPL's primary defined benefit pension plan was closed to all newly hired bargaining unit employees. Newly hired employees arc eligible to in the PPL
Retirement Savings Plan, a 401(k) savings plan with enhanced employer contributions.

The defined benefit pension plans of LKE and its subsidiaries were closed to new salaried and bargaining unit employees hired after December 31, 2005. Employees hired after December 31, 2005 receive additional company contributions above the standard matching contributions to their savings plans. The
pension plans sponsored by LKE and LG&E were merged effective January 1, 2020 into the LG&E and KU Pension Plan. The merged plan is sponsored by LKE. LG&E and KU participate in this plan.

The RIE defined benefit plans provide most union cmployees, as well as non-union employees hired before January 1, 2011, with a retirement benefit. Supplemental non-qualified, non-contributory exceutive retirement programs provide additional defined pension benefits for certain executives.

PPL and certain of its i also provide benefits to and other key p! through unfunded nonqualified retirement plans.

Certain employees of PPL's subsidiaries are eligible for certain health care and life insurance benefits upon retirement through contributory plans. Effective January 1, 2014, the PPL Postretirement Medical Plan was closed to all newly hired salaried employees. Effective July 1, 2014, the PPL Postretirement
Medical Plan was closed to all newly hired bargaining unit employees. Effective January 1, 2024, newly hired salaried emp! and cert unit emp of LKE will no longer be eligible for postretirement medical benefits under the LKE Postretirement Plan. Postretirement health benefits
may be paid from 401(h) accounts established as part of the PPL Retirement Plan and the LG&E and KU Pension Plan within the PPL Services Corporation Master Trust, funded VEBA trusts and company funds.

The Rhode Island postretirement benefit plans provide health care and life insurance coverage to eligible retired employees. Eligibility is based on age and length of service requirements and, in most cases, retirees must contribute to the cost of their coverage.
(PPL)

The following table provides the components of net periodic defined benelit costs (credits) for PPL's pension and other postretirement benefit plans for (he years ended December 31.

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits
2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022

Net periodic defined benefit costs (credits):
Service cost $ 35 s 3 s sl s 6 S 6 s 7
Interest cost 183 188 144 29 30 20
Expected returm on plan assets (299) (309) (276) (30) (30) (@8)
Amortization of:

Prior service cost (credit) 3 6 8 1 1 1

Actuarial (gain) loss 10 2 1 (5) (5) (5)
Net periodic defined bencfit cosis (credits) prior to setlements and ermination benefits (65) (79) @2 1 2 )
Settlements (a) — — 2 — - —
Net periodic defined benefit costs (credits) s (68) s (79 s 1 5 1 e s (5)
Other Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit Obligations Recognized in OCT and Regulatory Assets/Liabilities - Gross:
Net (loss)gain allocated at acquisition s — s — $ 33 s — s — $ @9
Scttlement — — 23) — — —
Net (gain) loss 134 193 212 1 © —
Prior service cost (credit) a3) 2 - - — —
Amortization of:

Prior service (cost) credit ) ©6) ®) (O] (O] (O]

Actuarial gain (loss) (10) @ 1) 5 5 5
Total recognized in OC and regulatory asscts/liabilitics 108 187 193 5 ) (45)

5 40 s 108 s 194 $ 6 s — 5 (50)

Total recognized in net periodic defined benefit costs, OCI and regulatory assets/liabilities

(@ Setlement charges incurred s 4 result of the amount of lump sum payment distributions, primarily from the LKE qualified pension plan. Tn accordance with existing regulatory accounting treatment, LG&E and KU have prinarily maintained the settlement charge in regulatory assets 1o be amortized in accordance with existing regulatory practice. The portion of the settlement

attributed to LKIF's operations outside of the jurisdiction of the KPSC has been charged to expense.
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For PPL's pension and postretirement benefits, the amounts recognized in OCI and regulatory assets/liabilities for the years ended December 31 were as follows:
Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits
2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022
ocr $ 25 $ 52 $ 142 $ 2 5 — $ 1
Regulatory assets/liabilities 83 135 s1 3 2 (58)
Total recognized in OCT and . _ R
regulatory assety/labilities $ o8 s 187 5 193 $ s s @ s 45
(PPL)
PPL uscs basc mortality tables issucd by the Society of Actuaries for all defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans. The Pri-2012 basc table and the MP-2020 projection scale with varying adjustment factors bascd on the i ic and iff and expericace
of the plan participants was used for all periods.
The following weighted-average assumptions were used in the valuation of the benefit obligations at December 31.
Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits
2024 2023 2024 2023
PPL
Discount rate 593 % 552 % 591 554 %
Rate of compensation increase 343 % 343 % 3.44 343 %
The following weighted-average assumptions were used to determine the net periodic defined benefit costs for the years ended December 31.
Pension Benefits ‘Other Postretirement Benefits
2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022
PPL
Discount rate 552 % 552 % 335 % 554 % 554 % 3.54 %
Rate of compensation increase 343 % 343 % 374 % 343 % 343 % 284 %
Expected return on plan assets 825 % 825 % 725 % 728 % 738 % 652 %
(@) The expected long-term rates of return for pension and other postretirement benefits are based on management's projections using a best-estimate of expected returns, volatilities and correlations for each asset class. Each plan's specific current and expected asset allocations are also considered in developing a reasonable return assumption.
The following table provides the assumed health care cost trend rates for the years ended December 31
2024 2023 2022
PPL
Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year
— obligations. 7.00 625 % 6.50
—cost 6.25 6.50 % 625 %
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the ultimate trend rate)
— obligations. 5.00 500 % 500
—cost 5.00 500 % 500 %
Year that (he rate reaches the ultimale trend rate
—obligations 2033 2029 2029
—cost 2029 2029 2027
The funded status of PPLs plans at December 31 was as follows:
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Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits
2024 2023 2024 2023
Change in Benefit Obligation
Renefit Obligation, beginning of period § 3454 s 3333 s 538 S 534
Service cost 35 34 6 6
Interest cost 183 188 29 30
Participant contributions — - 8 9
Plan amendments (3) 3 — —
Actuarial (gain) loss a3n 179 @ 18
Settlements - 3 — —
Gross benefits paid (284) (280) (56) (59)
Federal subsidy — — 2 —
Benefit Obligation, end of period 3,244 3,454 523 538
Change in Plan Assets
Plan assets at fair value, beginning of period 3,176 3,149 38 a7
Actual return on plan assels 34 297 25 54
Employer contributions 10 13 14 16
Participant contributions - — 7 7
Transfer out (a) - — (3 —
Settlements - @) — —
Gross benefits paid (284) (280) (54) (56)
Plan assets at fair value, end of period 2,936 3,176 417 438
Funded Status, end of period S (308) 5 278) s (106) S (100)
Amounts recognized in the Balance Sheets consist of:
Noncurrent asset s 19 $ 7 s 8 $ 10
Current liability (10) (10) 13) ()
Noncurrent liability 617) (275) [ ©96)
Net amount recognized, end of period S (308) 5 (278) s (106) s (100)
Amounts recognized in AOCT and regulatory assets/liabilities (pre-tax) consist of:
Prior service cost (credit) s © s 1 59 $ 10
1164 1017 ©0) 96)
S 1158 S 1,028 FGH S (36)
Total accumulated benefit obligation for defined benefit pension plans S 316 $ 3312
(a) Transfer of excess funds from the PPL Bargaining Unit Retiree Health Plan VEBA to be used to pay medical claims of active bargaining unit employees.
For PPL's pension and other postretirement benefit plans, the amounts recognized in AOCI and regulatory assets/liabilities at December 31 were as follows:
Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits
2024 2023 2024 2023
Aocl s 283 § 235 S 16 s 14
Regulatory asscts/liabilitics 875 793 97) (100)
Total § LS8 S 1028 s @1 s (86)
The actuarial gain for pension plans in 2024 was primarily related to a change in the discount rate used to measure the benefit obligations of those plans. The actuarial loss for pension plans in 2023 was related to a change in the discount rate used to measure the benefit obligations of those plans.
The following tables provide information on pension plans where the projected benefit obligation (PBO) or benefit obli; (ABO) exceed the fair value of plan assets:
PBO in excess of plan assets
2024 2023
Projected benefit obligation s 2719 s 2801
Fair value of plan assets 2392 2606
ABO in excess of plan assets
2024 2023
Accumulated benefit abligation 5 2618 s L
Fair value of plan assets 2392 1594
(PPL Electric)
Although PPL Elcctric docs not dircctly sponsor any defined benefit plans, it is allocated a portion of the funded status and costs of plans sponsored by PPL Scrvices based on its participation in those plans, which believes are The determined of current active
employees and retirees are used as a basis to allocate total plan activity, including active and retiree costs and obligations. Allocations to PPL Electric resulted in assets/(liabilities) at December 31 as follows:
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2024 2023
Pension $ (83) $ (65)
Other postretrement beneits (©0) 9
(LG&E)

Although LG&E docs not dircetly sponsor any defined benefit plans, it is allocated a portion of the funded status and costs of plans sponsored by LKE. LG&E is also allocated costs of defined benefits plans from LKS for defined benefit plans sponsored by LKE. Sce Note 13 for additional information on
costs allocated to LG&E from LKS. These allocations are based on LG&E's participation in those plans, which management believes are reasonable. The actuarially determined obligations of current active employees and retired employees of LG&E are used as a basis to allocate total plan activity, including
active and retiree costs and obligations. Allocations to LG&E resulted in assets/(liabilities) at December 31 as follows:

2024 2023
Pension s 29 s 34

Other postretirement bencfits (#4) (44

(KU)

Although KU does not directly sponsor any defined benefit plans, it is allocated a portion of the funded status and costs of plans sponsored by LKE. KU is also allocated costs ol defined benefit plans (rom LKS for defined benefit plans sponsored by LKE. See Note 13 for additional information on costs
allocated to KU from LKS. These allocations are based on KU's participation in those plans, which manag believes arc The i of current active and retired cmp s of KU arc used as a basis to allocate total plan activity, including active and
retiree costs and obligations. Allocations to KU resulted in assets/(liabilities) at December 31 as follows.

2024 2023
Pension $ 46 $ sl

Other postretirement bencfits (8) ©)

Plan Assets - Pension Plans
(PPL)
All of PPL's qualified pension plans are invested in the PPL Services Corporation Master Trust (the Master Trust) that also includes 401(h) accounts that are restricted for certain other postretirement benefit obligations of PPL, RIE and LKE. The investment strategy for the Master Trust is to achieve a risk-

adjusted return on a mix of assets that, in combination with PPL's funding policy, will ensure that sufficient assets are available to provide long-term growth and liquidity for benefit payments, while also managing the duration of the assets to complement the duration of the liabilities. The Master Trust
benefits from a wide diversification of assct types, investment fund strategics and external investment fund managers, and therefore has no signiticant concentration of risk.

The investment policy of the Master Trust outlines inves bjectives and defines the ibilities of the EBPB, external investment managers, investment advisor and trustee and custodian. The investment policy is reviewed annually by PPL's Board of Directors.
The EBPB created a risk management framework around the trust assets and pension liabilities. This framework considers the trust assets as being composed of three sub- s: growth, i izing and liquidity portfolios. The growth portfolio is comprised of investments that generate a return at a
reasonable risk, including equity securities, certain debt securities and ive i The izing portfolio consists of debt securities, generally with long durations, and derivative positions. The immunizing portfolio is designed to offset a portion of the change in the pension liabilities due to

changes in interest rates. The liquidity portfolio consists primarily of cash and cash equivalents.

Target allocation ranges have been developed for each portfolio based on input from external consultants with a goal of limiting funded status volatility. The EBPB monitors the investments in cach portfolio and secks to obtain a target portfolio that emphasizes reduction of risk of loss from market volatility.
In pursuing that goal, the EBPB establishes revised guidelines from time to time. EBPB investment guidelines as of the end of 2024 are presented below.

The asset allocation for the trust and the target allocation by portfolio at December 31 are as follows:

Percentage of trust assets 2024
Target Asset
2024 2023 Allocation
Growth Portfolio 55 % 54 % 55 %
Fauity securities 30 % 3%
Dcbt sccuritics (a) 13 12 %
Alternative investments 12 1 %
Immunizing Portolio 5 % 43 % 8%
Debt securities (a) 35 % 36 %
Derivatives (b) 8 % 7 %
Liquidity Portfolio 2 % 3 % 2 %
Total 100 % 100 % 100 °

(a) Includes commingled debt funds, which PPL treats as debt securities for asset allocation purposes.
(b)  Includes posted collateral to support derivative instruments subject to counterparty risk.

(PPL)

The fair value of net assets in the Master Trust by asset class and level within the fair value hierarchy was:
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December 31, 2024 December 31,2023
Fair Value Measurements Using Falr Value Measurements Using
Total Lovel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Lovel 2 Level 3

PPL Services Corporation Master Trust

Cash and cash equivalents s $ 212 s — s — s 226 s 26 s — s —
Iiquity securiies:
USS. Equity 63 & — — 36 36 — —
U.S. Equity fnd measured at NAV (a) 461 - - — 542 — — —
Intornational cquity fund at NAV (a) 376 — — — 431 — — —
Commingled debt measured at NAV (a) 461 — — — 528 — — —
Debr securities:
USS. Treasury and U.S. government sponsored
agency 150 149 1 - 159 159 — —
Corporate 867 - 48 19 915 — 906 9
Other 13 — 13 — 14 — 13 1
Alternative investments:
Real cstate measured at NAV (a) 72 - - — 61 — — —
Private equity measured at NAV (a) N4 — — — 105 — — —
Private eredit partnerships measured at NAV (2) 16 — — — 13 — — —
Hedge funds measured at NAY (1) 181 — — - 192 — — _
Derivatives G8) — (8) — 93 — 93 —
PPL Services Corporation Master Trust assets, at
fair value 2,948 s 4 5 84 S 19 3315 s 4 s 1012 5 10
Receivables and payables, net (b) 02 16
401(h) accounts restricted for other
postretircment benefit obligations (114) (129
Total PPI. Services Corporation Master Trust s ﬁ

(@ In accordance with accounting guidance, certain investments that are measured at fair value using the ner asset value per share (NAV), or its equivalent, have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in the table are infended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the amounts presented in the statement of financial position.
(b)  Receivables and payables, net represents amounts for investments sold/purchased but not ye seitled along with inerest and dividends eamed but not yet received.

A reconciliation of the Master Trust assets classificd as Level 3 at December 31, 2024 is as follows:

Corporate
debt
Balance at beginning of period s 10
Actual return on plan assets:
Relating to assets still held at the reporting date @
Relating to assets sold during the period 7
Purchases. sales and settlements 4

Balance at end of period

A reconciliation of the Master Trust assets classified as Level 3 at December 31, 2023 is as follows:

Corporate
debt
Balance at beginning of period $ 16
Actual return on plan assets:
Relating to assets still held at the reporting date
Relating to assets sold during the period 4
Purchases, sales and setllements ®
Balance at end of period S 10

Cash and cash equivalents include deposits in banks, collateral accounts with brokers, and short-term investment funds, for which the carrying amounts disclosed approximate fair value based on their short-term nature.

The market approach is used to measure fair valuc of equity sccuritics. The fair value measurements of cquity sccuritics (excluding commingled funds), which arc gencrally classified as Level 1, are based on quoted prices in active markets. These sccuritics represent actively and passively managed
investments that are managed against various equity indices.

Investments in commingled equity and debt funds are categorized as equity securities. Investments in commingled equity funds include funds that invest in U.S. and i ional equity securities. in i debt funds include funds that invest in a diversified portfolio of emerging market
debt obligations, as well as funds that invest in i grade long-d fixed-is

securities.

The fair value measurements of debt securities are generally based on evaluations that reflect observable market information, such as actual trade information for identical securities or for similar securities. adjusted for observable differences. The fair value of debt securities is generally measured using a
‘market approach, including the use of pricing models. which incorporate observable inputs. Common inputs include benchmark yields, relevant trade data, broker/dealer bid/ask prices, benchmark securities and credit valuation adjustments. When necessary, the fair value of debt securities is measured using
the income approach, which incorporates similar observable inputs as well as payment data, future predicted cash flows, collateral performance and new issue data. For the Master Trust, these securities represent investments in securities issued by U.S. Treasury and U.S. government sponsored agencies;

investments securitized by residential mortgages, auto loans, credit cards and other pooled loans; in inves grade and di

across several

s in debt securities issued by foreign governments and corporations.
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Investments in real estate represent an investment in a partnership whose purpose is to manage investments in U.S. real estate properties diversified geographically and across major property types (¢.g. office, industrial, retail. etc.). The partnership has limitations on the amounts that may be redeemed based
on available cash to fund redemptions. Additionally, the general partner may decline to accept redemptions when necessary to avoid adverse consequences for the partnership, including legal and tax implications, among others. The fair value of the investment is based upon a partnership unit value.

Investments in private equity represent interests in partnerships in multiple carly-stage venture capital funds and private equity fund of funds that use a number of diverse investment strategies. The partnerships have limited Tives of at least 10 years, after which liquidating distributions will be received. Prior

to the end of each partnership's life, the investment cannot be redeemed with the partnership; however, the interest may be sold to other parties, subject to the general partner's approval. Fair value is based on an ownership interest in partners' capital to which a proportionate share of net assets is attributed.

Investments in private credit represent pools of actively managed loans that span capital structure and borrower type. Strategies carry different types and levels of risk. Returns from those strategies will vary in terms of yield, fees generated, loan loss rates and the pace of principal repayment. Investments
have limited lives of approximately 2-8 years. The investment cannot be redeemed with the general partner; however, the interest may be sold to other parties, subject to the general partner’s approval. Fair value is based on an ownership interest in partners’ capital to which a proportionate share of net assets
is attributed.

Al December 31, 2024, the Master Trust had unfunded commitments of $59 million that may be required during the lives of the real estate, private equity and private credit partnerships.
Investments in hedge funds represent investments in a fund of hedge funds. Hedge funds seck a return utilizing a number of diverse investment strategics. The strategies, when combined, aim to reduce volatility and risk while attempting to deliver po
investment strategies for the fund of hedge funds include long/short equity, tactical trading, event driven, and relative value. Shares may be redeemed with 45 days prior written notice. The fund is subject to short term lockups and other restrictions. The fair value for the fund has been estimated using the net

asset value per share.

ve returns under most market conditions. Major

The fair value measurements of derivative instruments utilize various inputs that include quoted prices for similar contracts or market-corroborated inputs. In certain instances, these instruments may be valued using models, including standard option valuation models and standard industry models. These
sceuritics primarily represent investments in treasury futures, total return swaps, interest rate swaps and swaptions (the option to enter into an interest rate swap), which arc valued bascd on quoted prices, changes in the value of the underlying exposurc or on the swap details, such as swap curves, notional
amount, index and term of index, reset frequency, volatility and payer/receiver credit ratings,

Plan Assets - Other Postretirement Benefit Plans.

The investment strategy with respect to other postretirement benefit obligations is to fund VEBA trusts and/or 401(h) accounts with voluntary contributions and to invest in a tax efficient manner. Excluding the 401(h) accounts included in the Master Trust, other postretirement benefit plans are invested in a
mix of assets for long-term growth with an objective of earning returns that provide liquidity as required for benefit payments. These plans benefit from diversification of asset types, i fund strategies and investment fund managers and, therefore, have no significant concentration of risk. Equity
securities include investments in a large-cap commingled fund and a global equity exchange-traded fund. Ownership interests in commingled funds that invest entirely in debt securities are classified as equity securities, but treated as debt securities for asset allocation and target allocation purposes.
Ownership interests in money market funds are treated as cash and cash equivalents for asset allocation and target allocation purposes. The asset allocation for the PPL VEBA trusts and the target allocation, by asset class, at December 31 are detailed below.

Target Asset
Percentage of plan assets Allocation
2024 2023 2024

Asset Class
Equity securities. a5 % 6 % 45 v,
Debt securities (a) 49 % 48 % 49 %
Cash and cash equivalents (b) 6 % 6 % 6 %

Total 100 % 100 % 100 °
(@) Includes commingled deb funds and debt sccurities.
(b) Includes moncy market funds.
The fair value of assets in the other postretirement benefit plans by asset class and level within the fair value hierarchy was:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Fair Value Measurement Using Fair Value Measurement Using
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Money market funds s 19 5 19 s — s — 5 20 s 20 s — s —
Equity securities:

Large-cap equity fund measure at NAV (a) 71 — — — 76 — — —

Commingled debt fund mezsured at NAY () 78 — — — 84 — — —

Global equity exchange-traded fund 70 70 — — 72 7 — —

Long-term bond exchange-traded fund 74 74 — — 74 74 — —
Total VEBA trust assets, at fair value 312 S 163 5 — s — 326 § 166 § — § —
Receivables and payables, net (b) © a2y
401(h) account assets 114 124

§ 417 3 438

Total other postretirement benefit plan assets

(@) In accordance with accounting guidance certain investments that are measured at fair value using the net asset value per share (NAV), or its equivalent, have not been classificd in the fair valuc hicrarchy. The fair value amouats prescoted in the table are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hicrarchy to the amounts presented in the statement of financial position.
(b)  Reccivables and payables represent amounts for investments sold/purchased but not yet seitled along with interest and dividends camed but not yet received.
Tnvestments in money market funds represent investments in funds that invest primarily in a diversified portfolio of investment grade money market instruments, including, but not limited to, ial paper, notes, rep and other evidences of indebtedness with a maturity not exceeding

13 months from the date of purchase. The primary objective of the fund is a level of current income consistent with stability of principal and liquidity. Redemptions can be made daily on this fund.

Investments in large-cap equity securities represent investments in a passively managed equity index fund that invests in securities and a combination of other collective funds. Fair value measurements are not obtained from a quoted price in an active market but are based on firm quotes of net asset values
per share as provided by the trustee of the fund. Redemptions can be made daily on this fund.

Investments in commingled debt sccuritics represent investments in a fund that invests in a diversi portfolio of i grade | duration fixed income sccuritics. Redemptions can be made daily on these funds.

Tnvestments in global cquity exch: ded fund represents a passivel, ged pooled S vehicle that invests in developed market cquitics and is designed to track the performance of the MSCT World Index. Fair value measurements can be obtained from a quoted price on the exchange.
Redemptions can be made daily on this fund.

https://app.wdesk.com/s/fs-viewer/a/QWNjb3VudB8xMDA3N;Y4MTg1Ng/xbrl/report/56e9dc4a-e0f0-4400-a7dd-70ebc754 2ac9/generation/f9c62ed2-1a28-4f7c-83c5-70eealc23efa/artifact/bf6b4568-...  83/274



Case No. 2025-00114

Attachment to Filing Requirement
Tab 41 - 807 KAR 5:001 Section 16(7)(k)

4/9/25, 5:49 PM FERC Form

Expected Cash Flows - Defined Benefit Plans (PPL)

PPL does not plan to contribute to its pension plans in 2025, as PPL's defined benefit pension plans have the option to utilize available prior year credit balances to meet current and future contribution requirements.

$13 million of postretirement benefit plan payments for these employees in 2025.

‘The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid by the plans and the following federal subsidy payments are expected to be received by PPL.

PPL sponsors various non-qualified supplemental pension plans for which no assets are segregated from corporate assets. PPL expects to make approximately $10 million of benefit payments under these plans in 2025.
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Hnestaments n long-term bond exchunge-traded fund epresents a pussvely-managed pooled inestment vehicle tht is designed totrack the performanc of the Bloombers U.S. Long Government Credit Float Adjusted ndex, which includes all medium and lrger fssues of UsS. Govemmen, investment-
grade corporate and i d inated bonds that have maturities of greater than 10 years. Fair value measurements can be obtained from a quoted price on the exchange. Redemptions can be made daily on this fund.

PPL is not required to make contributions to its other postretirement benefit plans that are funded through VEBA trusts and 401(h) accounts. However, postretirement benefits for certain non-union employees are not funded in such trusts. PPL pays for these benefits from its general assets and expects to make

Other Postretirement

Expeeted
Benefit Federal
Pension Payment Subsidy

2025 304 $ 50 —
2026 297 49 —
2027 288 49 —
2028 282 48 —

276 47 —_
2030-2034 298 218 —
Savings Plans (41l Registrants)

all emp of PPL's i are eligible to participate in deferred savings plans (401(k)s). Employer contributions to the plans were:
2024 2023 2022
PPL 53 $ 48 36
PPL Elcetric 9 8 6
LG&E 8 8 7
KU 6 6 5
11. Jointly Owned Facilities
(PPL, LG&E and KU)
At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Balance Sheets reflect the owned interests in the gencrating plants listed below.
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December 31,2024
Trimble County Unit |
Trimble County Unit 2

December 31,2023
Irimble County Unit |

“Trimble County Unit 2

December 31. 2024
E.W. Brown Units 6-7
Paddy’s Run Unit 13 & EW. Brown Unit 5
‘Trimble County Unit 1
Trimble County Unit 2
Trimble County Units 5-6
Trimble County Units 7-10
Cane Run Unit 7
EW. Brown Solar Unit
Solar Share
Mercer Solar
Mill Creek §

Brown Wind

December 31. 2023
E.W. Brown Units 6-7
Paddy’s Run Unit 13 & E.W. Brown Unit 5
‘Trimble County Unit 1
Trimble County Unit 2
“Trimble County Units 5-6
Trimble County Units 7-10
Cane Run Unit 7
E.W. Brown Solar Unit
Solar Share
Mercer Solar
Mill Creck §

Brown Wind

December 31, 2024
E.W. Brown Units 6-7
Paddy’s Run Unit 13 & E.W. Brown Unit 5
Trimble County Unit 2
Trimble County Units 5-6
Trimble County Units 7-10
Cane Run Unit 7
E.W. Brown Solar Unit
Solar Share
Mercer Solar

Mill Creek 5
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Ownership Accumulated
Interest Electric Plant Depreciation

Construction

7500 % s a62 s 124
7500 % 549 323
75.00 % s 464 s 110
7500 % 1490 300
3800 % s 5 $ 29
53.00 % 52 30
7500 % 462 124
1425 % a7 79
2900 % 37 19
37.00 % 82 4
2200 % 137 27
3900 % 10 4
4400 % 3 —
37.00 % 10 -
300 % - -
3600 % — -
3800 % s 5 s 27
5300 % 52 29
7500 % 464 1o
1425 % 47 74
2900 % 37 1”7
3700 % 82 39
2200 % 127 25
39.00 % 10 3
4400 % 3 —
3700 % 7 -
3100 % — _
3600 % . o
6200 % s 87 s 48
4700 % 6 2
6075 % 1077 224
7100 % 87 44
63.00 % 136 6
7500 % 85 95
6100 % 16 6
5600 % 4 1
63.00 % 16 -
69.00 % - —
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Brown Wind 6400 % 1 — .

December 31. 2023

E.W. Brown Units 6-7 6200 % s 87 5 45 5 —
Paddy’s Run Unit 13 & E.W. Brown Unit 5 4700 % 46 25 -
Trimble County Unit 2 60.75 % 1,043 27 24
Trimble County Units 5-6 TLO0 % 86 41 —
Trimble County Units 7-10 63.00 % 135 65 -
Cane Run Unit 7 TBO0 % 449 90 10
E.W. Brown Solar Unit 61.00 % 16 5 —
Solar Share 56.00 % 4 — —
Mercer Solar 63.00 % 12 — 1
Mill Creek 5 69.00 % — — 3
Brown Wind 64.00 % 1 — —
Each subsidiary owning these interests provides its own funding for its share of the facility. Each receives a portion of the total output of the ing plants equal to its hip. The share of fuel and other operating costs associated with the plants is included in the corresponding operating

expenses on the Statements of Income.

12. Commitments and Contingencies
Energy Purchase Commitments
(PPL, LG&E and KU)

LG&E and KU enter into purchase contracts to supply the coal and natural gas requirements for generation facilities and LG&E' retail natural gas supply operations. These contracts include the following commitments:

Maximum Maturity

Contract Type.

Natural Gas Tuel 2026

Natural Gas Retail Supply 2005

Coal 2030

Coal Transportation and Fleeting Services 2033

Natural Gas Transportation 2055

LG&E and KU have a PPA with OVEC expiring in June 2040. See footnote (d) to the table in "G: and Other " below for ion on the OVEC power purchase contract. Future obligations for power purchases from OVEC are demand payments, comprised of debt-service payments

and contractually-required reimbursements of plant operating, maintenance and other expenses, and are projected as follows:

LG&E KU Total
2025 $ 25 s 1 $ 36
2026 27 12 39
2027 27 12 39
2028 25 i 36
2029 2 " 36
Thereafter 177 79 256
Total $ 306 $ 136 § 442
LG&E and KU had total energy purchases under the OVEC PPA for the years ended December 31 as follows:
2024 2023 2022
LG&E $ 21 $ 20 $ 21
KU 9 9 9
Total $ 30 $ 29 $ 30

(PPL)
RIE enters into purchase contracts to supply electricity for electricity distribution operations and for the delivery, storage and supply of natural gas for RIE’s retail natural gas operations.

These contracts include the following commitments:

Maximum Maturity
Contract Type

Electric power 2027

Gas-related Beyond 2030

RIE’s commitments under these long-term contracts subsequent to December 31, 2024 are summarized in the table below.
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Total 2025 2026-2027 2028-2029 Thereafter

Energy Purchase Obligations 5 936 s 24 $ 240 s 122 s 300

Long-te [of for Energy (PPL)

Scveral of the obligations included in the table above relate to certain long-term contracts for rencwable energy, including:

«  the Deepwater Wind PPA, involving a proposal for a small-scal energy project of up to eight offshore wind turbines with an aggregate nameplate capacity of up to 30 MW to benefit the Town of New Shoreham and an underwater cable to Block Island, which entered into
service in October 2016;

+  the Three-State Procurement, involving six clean energy long-term contracts pursuant to the Rhode Island Long-Term Contracting Standard (LTCS) of which 36.427 MW is currently operational and with respect to which RIE collects 2.75% remunerations in the annual payments pursuant to the
LTCS; and

+  the Offshore Wind Energy Procurement, pursuant to a 20-year PPA with Deep Water Wind Rev I, LLC (Revolution Wind), with an expected nameplate capacity of 408 MW expected to be operational in 2026; this contract was approved without remuneration but allows RIE to seek costs incurred
under the agreement.

In addition, RIE is obligated under the LTCS (as amended in 2014) to anaually solicit for renewable projects until 90 MW of renewable contracting capacity has been secured. The RIPUC-approved solicitations currently in service include: (i) a 15-year PPA with Orbit Energy Rhode Island, LLC fora 3.2
MW nameplate anacrobic digester biogas project located in Johnston, Rhode Island, placed in scrvice in 2017, (ii) a 15-ycar PPA with Black Bear Development Holdings, LLC for a 3.9 MW nameplate run-of-river hydrocleetric plant located in Orono, Maine, placed in service in 2013, (iii) a 15-ycar PPA with
Copenhagen Wind Farm, LLC for an 80 MW nameplate land-based wind project located in Denmark, New York, placed in service in 2018, and (iv) a 15-year PPA with Rhode Island LFG Genco, LLC for a 32.1 MW nameplate combined cycle combustion turbine generating facility fucled by a landfill gas
project located in Johnston, Rhode Island, placed in service in 2013. On October 7, 2024, RIE issucd an RFP soliciting 20 MW through 150 MW of capacity of ing capacity; this soli i driven by a terminated PPA and is required in order to fulfill the 90 MW under LTCS.

In addition to the LTCS, RIE has conditionally awarded 200 MW under the 2023 Rhode [sland Offshore Wind RFP for newly developed offshore wind energy projects, under the Affordable Clean Energy Security Act (ACES), as amended in 2022. RIE is currently in the contract negotiation period. RIE must
negotiate in good faith to achieve a commercially reasonable contract and may file such contract with the RIPUC for approval once negotiations are complete, which is tentatively scheduled for March 2025.

As approved by the RIPUC, RIE is allowed to pass through commodity-related/purchased power costs to customers and collect remuneration equal to 2.75% for long-term contracts approved prior to January 1, 2022, pursuant to LTCS as amended in 2022, and that have achieved commercial operation. For
long-term contracts approved pursuant to LTCS or ACES, both as amended, on or after January 1, 2022, RIE is entitled to financial remuneration equal to 1.0% through December 31, 2026, for those projects that are commercially operating. For long-term contracts approved pursuant to LTCS or ACES on or
afier January 1, 2027, RIE is not cntitled to any financial remuncration, unless otherwise granted by the RIPUC. Also, the 2022 amendments to LTCS and ACES added a provision, which provides that for any calendar year in which RIE’s actual return on equity cxcecds the return on equity allowed by the
RIPUC in the last general rate case, the RIPUC may adjust any or all remuneration to assure that such remuneration does not result in or contribute toward RIE earning above its allowed return for such calendar year.

Legal Matters

(All Registrants)

PPL and its subsidiaries are involved in legal proceedings, claims and litigation in the ordinary course of business. PPL and its subsidiaries cannot predict the outcome of such matters, or whether such matters may result in material liabilities, unless otherwise noted.
Narragansett Electric Litigation (PPL)

Energy Efficiency Programs Investigation
Narragansctt Elcctric, while under the ownership of National Grid, performed an internal investigation into conduct associated with its cnergy cfficiency programs. On Junc 27, 2022, the RIPUC opened a new docket (RIPUC Docket No. 22-05-EE) to investigate RIE’s actions and the actions of cmployces of
National Grid USA and affiliates during the time RIE was a National Grid USA affiliate being provided services by National Grid USA Service Company, Inc. relating to the manipulation of the reporting of invoices affecting the calculation of past energy efficiency sharcholder incentives and the resulting

impact on customers. The Rhode Island Attorney General and National Grid USA intervened in the docket and the Rhode Island Division of Public Utilities and Carriers (the Division) is an automatic party in the docket.

On January 19, 2023, the Division filed a motion to dismiss RIPUC Docket No. 22-05-EE without prejudice. As grounds for its motion, the Division stated that sufficient evidence exists in the docket to warrant an independent summary investigation by the Division. If the Division finds sufficient grounds,

the Division may proceed to a formal hearing regarding the matters under ion. Upon the ion of its the Division will provide the RIPUC with a report outlining the Division’s findings and final decision. On January 30, 2023, the Rhode Island Attorney General filed an objection
to the Division’s motion to dismiss; RIE and National Grid USA each filed responses with the RIPUC requesting that any additional action taken by the RIPUC or the Division be considered after National Grid USA completes its internal investigation report, which National Grid USA filed with the RIPUC
on March 10, 2023. On February 24, 2023, the Division initiated the i summary i that it had refc in its motion to dismiss. The RIPUC held a hearing on March 28, 2023 to hear oral arguments regarding the Division’s motion to dismiss and subsequently denied the motion. On

November 27, 2023, the Division filed testimony recommending the RIPUC disallow a portion of the performance incentive awarded from 2012 through 2021. On January 19, 2024, the Division and the Rhode Tsland Attorney General filed their respective briefs recommending that the RIPUC assess
financial penalties on the company. The Division also recommended that the RIPUC consider further regulatory investigations and analysis within each of the energy efficiency dockets from 2012 through 2020, to confirm the accuracy of claimed savings and to document all conduct and actions that would
trigger penalties. On April 2, 2024, the RIPUC issued an amended order that expressly expands the scope of the proceeding to address issues of accountability and the question of whether statutory penalties should be assessed against RIE relating to the manipulation of the reporting of invoices affecting the
recovery of past shareholder incentives and the resulting impact on RIE’s customers. This RIPUC proceeding remains open and, in parallel, the Division’s summary investigation remains ongoing. In the RIPUC proceeding, RIE and National Grid USA filed testimony on June 14, 2024, supporting their
position that the appropriatc amount to be refunded to the encrgy cfficiency program is less than $1 million. The Division’s current position is that $11 million is the appropriatc amount to be refunded to the energy efficiency program. This testimony docs not address potential statutory penaltics and the
Division’s testimony on potential statutory penalties is due February 28, 2025. The Division’s testimony on accountability and potential statutory penalties is currently due February 21, 2025, and RIE’s and National Grid’s reply testimony will occur at the evidentiary hearings scheduled for March 2025. At
this time, it is not possible to predict the final outcome, or determine the total amount of any additional liabilities that may be incurred by RIE in connection with this matter or the Division’s summary investigation. RIE does not expect this matter will have a material adverse effect on its results of operations,
financial position or cash flows.

E.W. Brown Envi 1t (PPL and KU)

KU is undertaking extensive remedial measures at the .W. Brown plant including closure of the former ash pond, implementation of a groundwater remedial action plan and performance of a corrective action plan including aquatic study of adjacent surface waters and risk assessment. The aquatic study and
risk assessment are being undertaken pursuant to a 2017 agreed Order with the Kentucky Energy and Environment Cabinet (KEEC). KU conducted sampling of Herrington Lake in 2017 and 2018. In June 2019, KU submitted to the KEEC the required aquatic study and risk assessment, conducted by an
independent third-party consultant, finding that discharges from the E.W. Brown plant have not had any significant impact on Ilerrington Lake and that the water in the lake is safe for recreational use and meets safe drinking water standards. On May 31, 2021, the KEEC approved the report and released a
response to public comments. On August 6, 2021, KU submitted a

Supplemental Remedial Alternatives Analysis report to the KEEC that outlines proposed additional fish, water, and sediment testing. On February 18, 2022, the KEEC provided approval to KU to proceed with the proposed sampling, which commenced in the spring of 2022. On November 17, 2022, KU
submitted a Supplemental Performance Monitoring Report to the KEEC finding that there are no significant unaddressed risks to human health or the environment at the plant. KU revised the Supplemental Performance Monitoring Report on June 8, 2023, in response to KEEC comments from April 24,
2023. On September 1, 2023, the KEEC requested KU to propose additional monitoring or remedial measures. KU submitted a revised Supplemental Performance Monitoring and Corrective Action Completion on December 28, 2023. In August 2024, KU submitted a proposed environmental covenant to the
KEEC specifying certain site restrictions. Discussions between KU and the KEEC are ongoing.

Water/Waste (PPL, LG&E and KU)

ELGs
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In 2015, the EPA finalized ELGs for wastewater discharge permits for new and existing steam electricity generating facilities. These guidelines require deployment of additional control technologies providing physical, chemical and biological treatment and mandate operational changes including "zero
discharge” requi for certain The impl date for individual generating stations was (o be determined by the states on a case-by-case basis according o criteria provided by the EPA. Tn September 2017, the TPA issued a rule (o postpone the compliance date for certain
requirements. In October 2020, the EPA issued revisions to its best available technology standards for certain and potential to dates (the i ion Rule). On May 9, 2024, the EPA issued a final rule modifying the 2020 ELG revisions. The rule increases the
stringency of previous control technology and zero discharge requirements, revises certain exemptions for generating units planned for retirement, and requires -+ imitations for legacy based on the best professional judgment of the state regulators. Legal challenges to the final rule

have been consolidated before the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit. The final rule is currently under evaluation by PPL, LG&E, and KU, but could p i result in signi i changes and additional controls for LG&E and KU plants. The ELGs are expected to be implemented by
the states or applicable permitting authorities in the course of their normal permitting activities. Certain costs are included in the Registrants' capital plans and expected to be recovered from customers through rate recovery mechanisms, but additional costs and recovery will depend on further regulatory
developments at the state level.

CCRs

In 2015, the EPA issued a final rule governing management of CCRs which include fly ash, bottom ash and sulfur dioxide scrubber wastes (2015 CCR Rule). The 2015 CCR Rule imposed extensive new i for certain CCR imps and landfills, including public notifications, location
restrictions, design and operating standards, groundwater monitoring and corrective action requirements, and closure and post-closure care requirements, and specifies restrictions relating to the beneficial use of CCRs. In January 2022, the IPA issued several proposed regulatory determinations, facility

and public which indicate increased scrutiny by the EPA to determine the adequacy of measures taken by facility owners and operators to achieve closure of CCR surface impoundments and landfills. In particular, the agency indicated that it will focus on certain practices which it
views as posing a threat of continuing groundwater contamination. On May 8, 2024, the EPA issued a final rule (2024 CCR Rule) establishing regulatory requirements for inactive surface impoundments at inactive electricity generation facilities (legacy impoundments). The 2024 CCR Rule also establishes
identification, groundwater monitoring, corrective action, closurc, and p 1 carc for all CCR units, as defined in the rule, at regulated CCR facilitics regardless of how or when the CCR was placed. The rule also requires LG&E and KU to complete applicability
determinations, implement site security measures, initiate weekly i ions and monthly monitoring of the create a website, and complete hazard assessments and reports for its legacy i iti the rule could y subject CCR units that have p
completed remedial action and closure and certain beneficial use projects to additional federal regulator Legal to the rule have been filed in the D.C. Circuit Court, and oral argument is expected in the second half of 2025.
In connection with the 2015 CCR Rule, LG&E and KU recorded adjustments to existing AROs beginning in 2015. In connection with the 2024 CCR Rule, in the second quarter of 2024, LG&E and KU ARO related to risk facility evaluati feasibility studies

and sampling. See Note 18 for additional information. The results of those evaluations, as well as future guidance, regulatory deter and other devel, could require revisions to current LG&E and KU compliance plans including

additional monitoring and remediation at surface impoundments and landfills, the cost of which could be material. PPL, LG&E and KU are unable to predict the outcome of the ongoing litigation, r and inations or potential impacts on current LG&E and KU compliance plans.
PPL, LG&E and KU are currently finalizing or revising closure plans and schedules in accordance with applicable regulations and further material changes to AROs, current capital plans or operating costs may be required as estimates are refined based on closure developments, groundwater monitoring
results, and regulatory or legal proceedings. Costs relating to this rule are expected to be subject to rate recovery.

LG&E and KU received KPSC approval for a compliance plan associated with the 2015 CCR Rule providing for the closure of impoundments at the Mill Creek, Trimble County, E.W. Brown, and Ghent stations, and ion of process water facilities at those plants. In addition Lo the
foregoing measures required for compliance with the federal CCR Rule, KU also reccived KPSC approval for its plans to close impoundments at the retired Green River, Pineville and Tyrone plants to comply with applicable statc law. LG&E and KU have completed planned closure measurcs at most of the
subject i and have post closure g i as required at those facilities. LG&E and KU generally expect to complete all impoundment closures within five years of commencement, although a longer period may be required to complete closure of some facilities.
Associated costs arc expeceted to be subject to rate recovery.

Superfund and Other Remediati

(All Registrants)

The Regi are i ible for investigating and fati ination under the federal Superfund program and similar state programs. Actions are under way at certain sites including former d gas plants in P ia. Rhode Island and Kentucky previously owned or
operated by, or currently owned by predecessors or affiliates of, PPL subsidiaries.

Depending on the outcome of invesligations at identified sites where investigations have not begun or been completed, or developments at sites for which information is incomplete, additional costs of remediation could be incurred. PPL, PPL Electric, LG&E and KU lack sufficient information about such
additional sitcs to cstimatc any potential liability or range of rcasonably possible losscs, if any, related to these sites. Such costs, however, arc not currently cxpected to be significant.

The EPA is evaluating the risks iated with lic aromatic t and chemical by-prod of gas plant i As a result, individual states may establish stricter standards for water quality and soil cleanup, that could require several PPL subsidiaries to take
more extensive assessment and remedial actions at former d gas plants. The i cannot estimate a range of possible losses, if any, related to these matters.
(PPL and PPL Electric)

PPL Electric is a potentially responsible party for a share of clean-up costs at certain sites. Cleanup actions have been or are being undertaken at these sites as requested by governmental agencies, the costs of which have not been and are not expected to be significant to PPL Electric.
At December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, PPL Electric had a recorded liability of $8 million and $8 million, representing its best estimate of the probable loss incurred to remediate these sites.

(PPL)

RIE is a potentially responsible party for a share of clean-up costs at certain sites including former manufactured gas plant facilities formerly owned by the Blackstone Valley Gas and Electric Company and the Rhode Tsland gas distribution assets of the New England Gias division of Southern Union Company
and electric operations at certain RIE facilities. RIE is currently investigating and remediating, as necessary, those sites and certain other properties under agreements with governmental agencies, the costs of which have not been and are not expected to be significant to PPL.

At December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, RIE had a recorded liability of $98 million and S99 million, representing its best estimate of the remaining costs of envii iation activities. These costs are expected to be incurred over approximately 30 years and to be subject to rate
recovery. However, remediation costs for each site may be materially higher than estimated, depending on changing technologies and regulatory standards, selected end uses for each site, and actual environmental conditions encountered. RIE has recovered amounts from certain insurers and potentially
responsible parties, and, where appropriate, may seek additional recovery from other insurers and potentially responsible parties, but it is uncertain whether, and to what extent, such efforts will be successful.

The RIPUC has approved two settlement agreements that provide for rate recovery of qualified remediation costs of certain contaminated sites located in Rhode Tsland and R ibutions for electric ions of approxi $3 million are added annually to RIE's
Environmental Response Fund, cstablished with RIPUC approval in March 2000 to address such costs, along with intcrest and any recoverics from insurance carricrs and other third-partics. In addition, RIE recovers approximately $1 million annually for gas operations under a distribution adjustment charge
in which the qualified remediation costs are amortized over 10 years. See Note 7 for additional information on RIE's recorded environmental regulatory assets and liabilities.

Regulatory Issues

Sce Note 7 for information on regulatory matters related to utility rate regulation.

Electricity - Reliability Standards

The NERC s responsible for establishing and enforcing mandatory reliability standards (Reliability Standards) regarding the bulk electric system in North America. The FERC oversees this process and independently enforces the Reliability Standards.
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The Reliability Standards have the force and effect of law and apply to certain users of the bulk clectric system. including electric utility companics. generators and marketers. Under the Federal Power Act, the FERC may assess civil penalties for certain violations.

PPL Electric, LG&E, KU and RIE monitor their compliance with the Reliability Standards and self-report or self-log potential violations of applicable reliability requirements whenever identified, and submit accompanying mitigation plans, as required. The resolution of a small number of potential violations
is pending. Penalties incurred to date have not been significant. Any Regional Reliability Entity determination concerning the resolution of violations of the Reliability Standards remains subject to the approval of the NERC and the FERC.

In the course of implementing their programs to ensure compliance with the Reliability Standards by those PPL affiliates subject to the standards, certain other instances of potential non-compliance may be identified from time to time. The Registrants cannot predict the outcome of these matters, and an
estimate or range of possible losses cannot be determined.

Gas - Security Directives (PPL and LG&E)

In May and July of 2021. the Department of Homeland Sccurity’s (DHS) Transportation Security Administration released two sceuriy directives applicable to certain notified owners and operators of natural gas pipeline facilites (including local

distribution ies) that the T ion Security Admis has ined to be critical. The Tr ion Security Administration has ined that LG&E is within the scope of the directive, while RIT has not been notified of this distinction. The first security directive required notified
stoi incident reporting to the DHS, designate a cyberseeurity coordinator, and perform a gap assessment of current entity cybersccurity practices against certain voluntary T fon Sccurity istration sccurity guidelines and report relevant results and
prnpnsed ‘mitigation to applicable DHS agencies. The second security directive, revised in July of 2024, requires refi of the ity ion plan and the cy ity plan. LG&E does not believe the security directives have had or will have a significant impact on LG&E’s

operations or financial condition.
Other
Guarantees and Other Assurances
(All Registrants)

Tn the normal course of business, the Registrants enter into agreements that provide financial performance assurance to third parties on behalf of certain subsidiaries. Examples of such agreements include guarantees, stand-by letters of credit issued by financial institutions and surety bonds issued by insurance

companies. These agreements are entered into primarily to support or enhance the credi iness attributed to a subsidiary on a stand-alone basis or to facilitate the commercial activities in which these subsidiaries engage.
(PPL)

PPL fully and ditionall all of the debt obligations of PPL Capital Funding.

(All Registrants)

The table below details guarantees provided as of December 31, 2024. "Exposure” represents the estimated maximum potential amount of future payments that could be required to be made under the guarantee. The Registrants believe the probability of expected payment/performance under each of these
guarantees is remote, except for the guarantees and indemnifications related to the sale of Safari Holdings, which PPL believes are reasonably possible but not probable of occurring. For reporting purposes, on a consolidated basis, the guarantees of PPL include the guarantees of its subsidiary Registrants.

Expiration
Exposure at December 31,2024

PPL

Indemnifications related to certain tax liabilities related to the sale of the UK. utility business LS00 @ 2028

PPL guarantee of Safari payment obligations under certain sale/leaseback financing transactions related fo the sale of Safari Holdings $ 100 (@) 2028

Indemnifications for losses suffered related to items not covered by Aspen Power's representation and warranty insurance associated with the sale of Safari Holdings H Various

LG&E and KU

LG&E and KU obligation of shortfall related to OVEC @

(a) PPLWPD Limited entered inlo a Tax Deed dated June 9, 2021 in which it agreed 10 a tax indemnity regarding certain potential tax liabilities of the entities sold with respect to periods prior to the completion of the sale, subject (o customary exclusions and limitations. Because National Grid Holdings One ple, the buyer, agreed to purchase indemnity insurance, the amount of the

cap on the indemnity for these liabilities is £1, except with respect to certain surrenders of tax losses, for which the amount of the cap on the indemnity is £50 million.

(b)  PPL guaranteed the payment obligations of Safuri under certain salefleaseback financing wransactions executed by Safari, These guarantees will remain in place until Safari exercises its option to buy-out the projects under the sale/leaseback financings by the year 2028, Safari will indemify PPL for any payments made by PPL or claims against PPL under the sale/leaseback
transaction guarantees up to $25 million.

(&) Aspen Power has obtained representation and warranty insurance, therefore, PPI. generally has no liability for ts ions and warranties under t texcept for losses suffered refated to ftems nat covered. Fxpiratian of these indemnifications range from 18 months to 6 years from the date of the closing of the transaction, and PPL's aggregate liability for these
claims will not exceed §140 million subject to certain adjustments plus the support obligations provided by PPL under sale-leaseback financings and PPAs that will be replaced by Aspen Power. PPL's support obligations related to the PPAs were replaced by Aspen Power and terminated on January 8, 2024.

(d) Pursuant to the OVEC power purchase contract, LG&E and KU are obligated to pay for their share of OVEC™ debt service, d costs, as well as any shortfall from amounts included within a demand charge designed and expected to cover these costs over the term of the contract. PPL's proportionate share of OVEC's outstanding debt was
$81 million at December 31, 2024, consisting of LG&E's share of $56 million and KU's share of $25 million. The maximum exposure and the expiration date of these potential obligations are not presently determinable. See "Encrgy Purchase Commitments” above for additional information on the OVEC power purchase contract.

The provide other through contracts entered into in the normal course of husmess These guarantees are primarily in the form of indemnification or warranties related to services or equq\menl and vary in duration. The amounts of these guarantees often are not explicitly

stated, and the overall maximum amount of the obligation under such cannot be bly estimated. ically, no signi payments have been made with respect to these types of and the of p performance under these guarantees is remote.

PPL, on behalf of itself and certain of its subsidiaries, maintains insurance that covers liability assumed under contract for bodily i
contractual arrangements.

jury and property damage. The coverage provides maximum aggregate coverage of $231 million. This insurance may be applicable to obligations under certain of these

13. Related Party Transactions

Wholesale Sales and Purchases (LG&F and KU)

LG&E and KU jointly dispatch their generation units with the lowest cost generation used to serve their retail customers. When LG&E has excess generation capacity after serving its own retail customers and its generation cost is lower than that of KU, KU purchases electricity from LG&E and vice versa.
These transactions arc reflected in the Statements of Income as "Elcctric revenuc from affiliate” and "Encrgy purchases from affiliate" and arc recorded at a price cqual to the scller's fucl cost plus any split savings. Savings realized from such intcrcompany transactions arc shared equally between both
companies. The volume of energy cach company has to sell to the other is dependent on its retail customers' needs and its available generation.

Support Costs (PPL Electric, LG&E and KU)

PPL Services and LKS provide the Registrants, their respective subsidiaries and each other with administrative, management and support services. For all services companies, the costs of directly assignable and attributable services are charged to the respective recipients as direct support costs. General costs
that cannot be directly attributed Lo a specilic entity are allocated and charged to the respective recipients as indirect support costs. PPL Services and LKS use a three-factor methodology that includes the applicable recipients' invested capilal, operation and maintenance expenses and number ol employees Lo
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allocate indirect costs. PPL Services may also use a ratio of overall direct and indirect costs or a weighted average cost ratio. PPL Services and LKS charged the following amounts for the years ended December 31, including amounts applied to accounts that are further distributed between capital and expense
on the books of the recipients, based on methods that are believed to be reasonable.

2024 2023 2022
PPL Electric from PPL Services $ 227 $ 222 s 241
LG&E from LKS 105 115 153
LG&E from PPL Services 66 42 13
KU from LKS, 130 150 171
KU from PPL Services 65 48 i

In addition to the charges for services noted above, LKS makes payments on behalf of LG&E and KU for fuel purchases and other costs for products or services provided by third parties. LG&E and KU also provide services to each other and to LKS. Billings between LG&E and KU relate to labor and
overheads associated with union and hourly employees performing work for the other company, charges related to jointl d ing units and other charges. Tax settl between PPL and LG&E and KU arc reimbursed through LKS.

Intercompany Borrowings
(PPL Electric)

CEP Reserves maintains a S800 million revolving linc of credit with a PPL Electric subsidiary. At December 31, 2024, CEP Rescrves had $222 million of borrowings outstanding. At December 31, 2023, CEP Reserves had no borrowings outstanding. The interest rates on borrowings are cqual to onc-month
SOFR plus a spread. Interest income is reflected in "Interest Income from Affiliate" on the Income Statements.

(LG&E and KU)

LG&E participates in an i money pool whereby LKE and/or KU make available to LG&E funds up to the difference between LG&E's FERC borrowing limit and LG&E's commercial paper limit at an interest rate based on the lower of a market index of commercial paper issues and
two additional rate options based on SOFR. At December 31, 2024, LG&E's money pool unused capacity was $682 million. At December 31, 2024 LG&E had borrowings outstanding of $43 million from KU and/or LKE. At December 31, 2023, LG&E's borrowings outstanding from KU and/or LKE were
not significant.

KU parti inani y money pool ag whereby LKE and/or LG&E make available to KU funds up to the difference between KU's FERC borrowing limit and KU's commercial paper limit at an interest rate based on the lower of a market index of commercial paper issues and two
additional rate options based on SOFR. At December 31, 2024, KU's money pool unused capacity was $437 million. At December 31, 2024 KU had borrowings outstanding of $73 million from LG&E and/or LKE. At December 31, 2023, KU's borrowings outstanding from LGKE and/or LKE were not
significant.

VEBA Funds Receivable
(PPL Electric)

In 2018, PPL received a favorable private letter ruling from the IRS permitting a transfer of excess funds from the PPL Bargaining Unit Retiree Health Plan VEBA to a new subaccount within the VEBA, to be used to pay medical claims of active bargaining unit employees. In October 2024, additional excess

funds were removed from the PPL Bargaining Unit Retiree Health Plan VEBA and deposited into the existing subaccount within the VEBA to be used to pay medical claims of active bargaining unit employees. Based on PPL Electric’s ion in PPL’s Other Benefit plan, PPL Electric
was allocated a portion of the excess funds from PPL Services. These funds have been recorded as an intercompany receivable on PPL Electrics balance sheets. The receivable balance decreases as PPL Electric pays incurred medical claims and is reimbursed by PPL Services. The intercompany reccivable
balance associated with these funds was S7 million at December 31, 2024, of which $4 million was reflected in "Accounts receivable from affiliates" and $3 million was reflected in "Other noncurrent assets” on PPL Electric's balance sheets, There was no i balance associated with

these funds at December 31, 2023, as the initial allocation from the 2018 private letter ruling was depleted.

Other (PPL Electric, LG&E and KU)

See Note 1 for di: ions regarding the i tax sharing (for PPL Electric, LG&E and KU) and i ions of stock-based expense (for PPL Electric). For PPL Electric, LG&E and KU, see Note 10 for di: ions regarding
associated with defined benefits.

14. Other Income (Expense) - net
(PPL)

The components of "Other Income (Expense) - net" for the years ended December 31, were:

2024 2023 2022
Defined benefit plans - non-service credits (Note 10) s 4 s 40 s 47
Interest income 33 2 4
ATUDC - equity component 47 30 2
Charitable contributions ) ®) 4
Talen litigation (a) @ (124) 1
Miscellancous ) (13) ©)
Other Income (Expense) - net s 114 S (40) S 54

(a) PPLincurred legal expenses related to litigation associated with its former afliliate, Talen Montana, LLC. and certain affiliated entities (collectively, Talen), which was settled in December 2023.

(PPL Eleciric)

The components of "Other Income (Expense) - net" for the years ended December 31, were:
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2024 2023 2022
Defined benefit plans - non-service credits (Note 10) s 17 s 20 s 15
Interest income 8 8 3
AFUDC - equity component 23 16 16
Charitable contributions “ 3 (0]
Miscellancous 1 @) (1)
Other Income (Expense) - net 5 45 s 39 s 30
(LG&KE)
The components of "Other Income (Expense) - net" for the years ended December 31, were:

2024 2023 2022
Defined benefit plans - non=service credits (Note 10) s 3 s — s 3
AFUDC - cquity component 3 3 1
Charitable contributions ) 0] [0}
Miscellancous 2 1 1
Other Income (Expense) - net s 12 5 3 s 4
(KU)
The components of "Other Income (Expense) - net" [or the years ended December 31, were:

2024 2023 2022

Defined benefit plans - non-service credits (Note 10)

v
©

AFUDC - equity component

9 3 1
Charitable contributions W o —
Miscellaneous 0 — @
Other Income (Expense) - net s 15 5 8 s 8

15. Fair Value Measurements

(All Registrants)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly ion between market partici at the date (an exit price). A market approach (generally. data from market transactions), an income approach (generally, present value techniques and
option-pricing models), and/or a cost approach (generally, replacement cost) are used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability, as appropriate. These valuation i inputs such as observable, independent market data and/or unobservable data that management believes are predicated

on the assumptions market participants would use to price an asset or liability. These inputs may incorporate, as applicable, certain risks such as nonperformance risk, which includes credit risk. The fair value of a group of financial assets and liabilities is measured on a net basis. See Note 1 for information on
the levels in the fair value hierarchy.

Fair Value

The assets and liabilities measured at fair value were:
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December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Cash and cash cquivalents s 306 s 306 s — s — s 31 s 331 s — s —
Resiricted cash and cash equivalents (a) 33 33 — — 51 51 — —
Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash (b) 339 339 — — 382 382 — —
Special use funds (a):
Money market fund 1 1 — — 1 1 — —
Commingled debt fund measured at NAV (c) 10 — — — 9 — — —
Commingled equity fund measured at NAV (c) 3 — — — 3 — . —

Total special use funds 19 1 — — 18 1 — —

Price risk management assets (d):

Gas contracts 9 — 4 5 1 — 1 —
Total assets s 367 S 340 s 4 s 5 s 401 S 38 s 1 s —
Liabilities

Price risk management liabilities (d):

Interest rate swaps $ 3 s — s 3 s — s 7 - 57 s —
Gas contracts 13 — 10 3 50 — 41 19
Total price risk management liabilities, $ 16 5 — s 13 $ 3 s 67 $ = 5 48 s 19
PPL Electric
Assets

Cash and cash oquivalents 5 24 s 24 s — s — s sl s sl s — s —
“Total assets s 24 5 24 5 — s — Bl s sl s — 5 —
LG&E
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents s 8 s 8 s — s — s s 518 s — s —
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (x) 16 16 — — 2 2 — —
Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash (b) 24 24 — — 44 44 — —
Total assets. $ o § 1 5 — - S a1 $ a4 $ — $ —
Liabilitics

Price risk management lisbilities:

Interest rate swaps $ 3 s — s 3 s — s 7 s — s 7 5 —
“Total price risk management liabilities s 3 5 — s 3 s — s 7 s — 5 7 5 —
KU
Assets

Cash and cash cquivalents s 13 $ 13 s — s — s 14 s 14 s — s —
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (a) 16 16 — — 2 24 — —
“Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash (b) 29 29 — — 38 38 — —
Total assets s 29 E 5 — s — BED D s — s —

(a) Current portion is included in "Other current asscts” and noncurrent portion is included in "Other noncurrent assets” on the Balance Sheets.
(b) Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash provides a reconeiliation of these items reported within the Balance Sheets to the sum shown on the Statements of Cash Flows.
(¢) Inaccordance with accounting guidance. certain investments thal are measured at fuir value using nel asset value per share (NAV), or its equivalent, Tave not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The fa

(

value amounts presented in the table are intended (o permit reconciliation of the fuir value hierarchy 10 the amounts presented in the statement of financial position.
1) Current portion is included in "Other current assets” and "Other current liabilities” and noncurrent portion is included in "Other noncurrent assets” "Other deferred credits and noncurrent liabilities” on the Balance Sheets.

z

A reconciliation of net assets classified as Level 3 for the year ended December 31 is as follows:

Gas Contracts

2024

Balance at beginning of period $ (19
Total unrealized gains (losses) recognized as Regulatory Assets/Regulatory Liabilities 2
Settlements

Balance at end of period

Special Use Funds (PPL)
The special use funds are investments restricted for paying active union employee medical costs. In 2018, PPL received a favorable private letter ruling from the IRS permitting a transfer of excess funds from the PPL Bargaining Unit Retiree Health Plan VEBA to a new subaccount within the VEBA to be
used to pay medical claims of active bargaining unit cmployees. In 2024, additional excess funds were removed from the PPL Bargaining Unit Retirce Health Plan VEBA and deposited in the existing subaccount within the VEBA to be used to pay medical claims of active bargaining unit employces. The

funds are invested primarily in commingled debt and equity funds measured at NAV and are classified as investments in equity securities. Changes in the fair value of the funds are recorded to the Statements of Income.

Price Risk Assets/Liabilities
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Interest Rate Swaps (PPL, LGKE and KU)

To manage interest rate risk, PPL, LG&T and KU use interest rate contracts such as forward-starting swaps, floating-to-lixed swaps and fixed-to-floating swaps. An income approach is used (o measure the fair value of these contracts, utilizing readily observable inputs, such as forward interest rates (e.g.,
SOFR and government security rates), as well as inputs that may not be observable, such as credit valuation adjustments. In certain cases, market information cannot practicably be obtained to value credit risk and therefore internal models are relied upon. These models use projected probabilities of default
and estimated recovery rates based on historical observances. When the credit valuation adjustment is significant to the overall valuation, the contracts are classified as Level 3.

Gas Contracts (PPL)
To manage gas commodity price risk associated with natural gas purchascs, RIE utilizes over-the-counter (OTC) gas swaps contracts with pricing inputs obtained from the New York Mercantile Exchange (NYMEX) and the Intercontinental Exchange (ICE), except in cases where the ICE publishes scasonal

averages or where there were no transactions within the last seven days. RIE may utilize discounting based on quoted interest rate curves, including consideration of non-performance risk, and may include a liquidity reserve caleulated based on bid/ask spread. Substantially all of these price curves are
observable in the marketplace throughout at least 95% of the remaining contractual quantity, or they could be constructed from market observable curves with correlation coefficients of 95% or higher. These contracts are classified as Level 2.

RIE also utilizes gas option and purchase and capacity transactions, which are valued based on internally developed models. Industry-standard valuation techniques, such as the Black-Scholes pricing model, are used for valuing such instruments. For valuations that include both observable and unobservable
inputs, if the unobservable input is determined to be significant to the overall inputs, the entire valuation is classified as Level 3. This includes derivative instruments valued using indicative price quotations whose contract tenure extends into unobservable periods. In instances where observable data is
unavailable, consideration is given to the assumptions that market participants would use in valuing the asset or liability. This includes assumptions about market risks such as liquidity, volatility, and contract duration, Such instruments are classified as in Level 3 as the model inputs generally are not
obscrvable. RIE considers non-performance risk and liquidity risk in the valuation of derivative instruments classificd as Level 2 and Level 3

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the gas derivative instruments are implied volatility and gas forward curves. A relative change in commodity price at various locations underlying the open positions can result in significantly different fair value estimates.

Financial Instruments Not Recorded at Fair Value (4// Registrants)

The carrying amounts of long-term debt on the Balance Sheets and their estimated fair values are sct forth below. Long-term debt is classified as Level 2. The effeet of third-party credit enhancements is not included in the fair value measurement.

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Carrying Carrying
Amount (a) Fair Value Amount (a) Fair Value
PPI S 16,503 S 15,562 $ 14612 s 14031
PPL Elctric 5214 4862 4567 4475
LG&T 2471 2205 2469 2369
KU 3,066 2,750 3,004 2.861

(a) Amounts are net of debt issuance costs.

The carrying amounts of other current financial instruments (except for long-term debt due within one year) approximate their fair values because of their short-term nature.

16. Derivative and Hedging A

Risk Management Objectives

(All Registrants)

PPL has a risk management policy approved by the Board of Directors to manage market risk associated with commodities, interest rates on debt issuances (including price, liquidity and volumetric risk) and credit risk (including non-performance risk and payment default risk). The Risk Management
Committee, comprised of scnior management and chaired by the Vice President-Financial Strategy and Chicf Risk Officer, oversces the risk management function. Key risk control activitics designed to ensure compliance with the risk policy and detailed programs include, but arc not limited to, credit review
and approval, validation of transactions, verification of risk and transaction limits, value-at-risk analyses (VaR, a statistical model that attempts to estimate the value of potential loss over a given holding period under normal market conditions at a given confidence level) and the coordination and reporting of
the Enterprise Risk Management program.

Market Risk

Market risk includes the potential loss that may be incurred as a result of price changes associated with a particular financial or commodity instrument as well as market liquidity and volumetric risks. Forward contracts, fulures contracts, options, swaps and structured transactions are utilized as part of risk
management strategics to minimize unanticipated fluctuations in carnings caused by changes in commodity prices and interest rates. Many of these contracts meet the definition of a d tive. All s arc d on the Balance Sheets at their fair valuc, unless NPNS is clected.

The following summarizes the market risks that affect PPL and its subsidiaries.
Interest Rate Risk

+ PPLand its subsidiaries are exposed to interest rate risk associated with forecasted fixed-rate and existing floating-rate debt issuances. PPL and LG&E utilize over-the-counter interest rate swaps to limit exposure to market fluctuations on floating-rate debt. PPL, LG&E and KU utilize forward starting
interest rate swaps to hedge changes in benchmark interest rates, when appropriate, in connection with future debt issuance.

« PPLand its subsidiaries are exposed to interest rate risk associated with debt securities and derivatives held by defined benefit plans. This risk is significantly mitigated to the extent that the plans are sponsored at, or sponsored on behalf of, the regulated uti

ies due to the recovery methods in place.

Commodity Price Risk

PPL is exposed to commodity price risk through its subsidiarics as deseribed below.

+ PPL Electric i required to purchase electricity to fulfill its obligation as a PLR. Potential commaodity price risk is mitigated through its PAPUC-approved cost recovery ism and full supply to serve its PLR customers which transfer the risk to energy suppliers.
* LG&E's and KU's rates include certain mechanisms for fuel, fuel-related expenses and energy purchases. In addition, LG&E's rates include a mechanism for natural gas supply costs. These mechanisms generally provide for timely recovery of market price fluctuations associated with these costs.
«  RIE utilizes derivative instruments pursuant to its RIPUC-approved plan to manage dity price risk associated with its natural gas purchases. RIE's ity price risk strategy is to reduce fluctuations in firm gas sales prices (o its customers. RIE's costs associated with derivatives
instruments are recoverable through its RIPUC- approved cost recovery mechanisms. RIE is also required to purchase electricity to fulfill its obligation to provide Last Resort Service (LRS). Potential commodity price risk is mitigated through its RIPUC-approved cost recovery mechanisms and full
i service to serve LRS customers, which transfer the risk to energy suppliers. Additionally, RTE is
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required to contract through long-term agreements for clean energy supply under the Rhode Island Renewable Energy Growth program and Long-term Clean Energy Standard. Potential commaodity price risk is mitigated through its RIPUC-approved cost recovery mechanisms, which true-up cost
differences between contract prices and market prices.

Volumetric Risk

Volumetric risk is the risk related to the changes in volume of retail sales due to weather. economic conditions or other factors. PPL is exposed to volumetric risk through ubsidiaries as described below:

*  PPL Electric, LG&E and KU are exposed to volumetric risk on retail sales, mainly due to weather and other economic conditions for which there is limited mitigation between rate cases.
+ RIE is exposed to volumetric risk, which is significantly mitigated by regulatory mechanisms. RIE's clectric and gas distribution rates both have a revenue decoupling mechanism, which allows for annual adjustments to RIE's dclivery rates.

Equity Securities Price Risk

+ PPLand its subsidiaries are exposed to equity securities price risk associated with the fair value of the defined benefit plans
+ PPLis exposed to equity securities price risk from future stock sales and/or purchases.

s risk is significantly mitigated due to the recovery methods in place.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the potential loss that may be incurred due to a counterparty's non-performance.

PPL is exposed to credit risk from "in-th " with ies, as well as additional credit risk through certain of its subsidiaries, as discussed below.

In the event a supplier of PPL, PPL Electric, LG&E or KU defaults on its 1 obligation, those Regi would be required to seck replacement power or replacement fuel in the market. In general, subject to regulatory review or other processes, appropriate incremental costs incurred by these
licable rate thereby mitigating the financial risk for these entities.

entities would be from custc through

PPL and its subsidiaries have credit policies in place to manage credit risk, including the use of an established credit approval process, daily monitoring of counterparty positions and the use of master netting or provisions. These generally include credit mitigation provisions, such as
margin, or collateral requi PPL and its subsidiaries may request additional credit assurance, in certain circumstances, in the event that the counterparties' credit ratings fall below investment grade, their tangible net worth falls below specified percentages or their exposures exceed an
eslablished credit limit.

Master Netting Arrangements (PPL, LG&E and KU)
Net derivative positions on the balance sheets are not offsct against the right to reclaim cash collateral (a reccivable) or the obligation to return cash collateral (a payable) under master netting arrangements.
PPL, LG&E and KU had no cash collateral posted or obligation to return cash collateral under master netting arrangements at December 31, 2024 and 2023.

See "Offsetting Derivative Instruments" below for a summary of derivative positions presented in the balance sheets where a right of setoff exists under these arrangements.
Interest Rate Risk

(All Registrants)

PPL and its subsidiaries issue debt to finance their operations, which exposes them to interest rate risk. A variety of financial derivative instruments are utilized to adjust the mix of fixed and floating interest rates in their debt portfolios, adjust the duration of the debt portfolios and lock in benchmark interest
rates in anticipation of future financing, when appropriate. Risk limits under PPL's risk management program arc designed to balance risk exposure to volatility in intcrest expense and changes in the fair value of the debt portfolio duc to changes in benchmark interest rates. In addition, the interest ate risk of
certain subsidiaries is potentially mitigated as a result of the existing regulatory framework or the timing of rate cases.

Cash Flow Hedges (PPL)

Interest rate risks include exposure to adverse interest rate movements for outstanding variable rate debt and for future anticipated financings. Financial interest rate swap contracts that qualify as cash flow hedges may be entered into to hedge floating interest rate risk associated with both existing and
anticipated debt issuances. PPL had no such contracts at December 31, 2024,

Cash flow hedges are discontinued if it is no longer probable that the original forecasted transaction will occur by the end of the originally specified time period and any amounts previously recorded in AOCI are reclassified into earnings once it is determined that the hedged transaction is not probable of
oceurring.

For 2024, 2023 and 2022, PPL had no cash flow hedges reclassified into earnings ated with di inued cash flow hedges.

At December 31, 2024, the amount of accumulated net unrecognized after-tax gains (losses) on qualifying derivatives expected to be reclassified into earnings during the next 12 months is insignificant. Amounts are reclassified as the hedged interest expense is recorded.

Economic Activity (PPL and LG&E)

LG&E cnters into interest rate swap contracts that cconomically hedge interest payments. Because realized gains and losses from the swaps, including terminated swap contracts, arc recoverable through regulated rates, any subsequent changes in fair value of these derivatives arc included in regulatory asscts
or liabilities until they are realized as interest expense. Realized gains and losses are recognized in "Interest Expense” on the Statements of Income at the time the underlying hedged interest expense is recorded. At December 31, 2024, LG&E held contracts with a notional amount of $64 million that mature in
2033,

‘Commodity Price Risk (PPL)

Economic Activity,

RIE enters into derivative contracts that economically hedge natural gas purchases. Realized gains and losses from the derivatives are recoverable through regulated rates, therefore subsequent changes in fair value are included in regulatory assets or liabilities until they are realized as purchased gas. Realized
gains and losses are recognized in "Energy Purchases" on the Statements of Income upon settlement of the contracts. See Note 7 for amounts recorded in regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities at December 31, 2024, Al December 31, 2024, RIE held contracts with notional volumes of 49 Bef that range in
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All derivative instruments are recorded at fair value on the Balance Sheet as an asset or liability unless the NPNS is elected. NPNS contracts include certain full-requirement purchase contracts and other physical purchase contracts. Changes in the fair value of derivatives not designated as NPNS are
recognized in carnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met and designated as such, except for the changes in fair values of LG&E's interest rate swaps that arc recognized as regulatory asscts or regulatory liabilitics. See Note 7 for amounts recorded in regulatory asscts and regulatory liabilitics at

December 31, 2024 and 2023.
See Note 1 for additional information on accounting policies related to derivative instruments.
(PPL)

The following table presents the fair value and location of derivative instruments recorded on the Balance Sheets:

December 31, 2024 December 31,2023
Derivatives designated as Derivatives not designated ri 's designated as Derivatives not designated
edging instruments as hedging instruments ‘hedging instruments as hedging instruments
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Current:
Price Risk Management
Assets/Liabilities (a):
Interest rate swaps (b) 5 — — 5 — s — 5 — $ — $ — s 1
Gas contracts. — — 7 10 — — 1 51
Total current — — 7 0 — — 1 52
Noncurrent:
Price Risk Management
Assets/Liabilities (a):
Interest rate swaps (b) — — — 3 — — — 6
Gas contracts — — 2 3 — — — 9
Total noncurrent — — 2 6 — — — 15
Total derivatives s — — s 9 s 16 s — s — s ! s 6
(a)  Current portion is included in "Other current assets" and "Other current liabilities” and noncurrent portion is included in "Other noncurrent assels” and "Other deferred credits and noncurrent liabilities" on the Balance Sheets.
(b) Excludes accrued interest, if applicable.
The following tables present the pre-tax effect of derivative instruments recognized in income, OCI or regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities:
Location of Gain (Loss)
Derivative Derivative Gain Recognized in Income Gain (Loss) Reclassified
Relationships. (Loss) Recognized in OCI on Derivative from AOCI into Income
2024
Cash Flow Hedges:
Interest rate swaps s Interest Expense RO
Total § — s ()
2023
Cash Flow [Tedges:
Interest rae swaps S —  lnterest Expense s 0
Total s — s ()
2022
Cash Flow Hedges:
Interest rate swaps $ —  Interest Expense
Total
i ves Not Designated as of Gain (Loss) Rece
Hedging Instruments Income on Derivative 2024 2023 2022
Interest rate swaps Interest Expense — 2)
Gas contracts Frergy Purchases (40) 19 41
Other income (expense) - net — s s —
Total $ (40) $ @0 $ 39
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Deri Not Designated as Location of Gain (Loss) Recognized as
Tledging Instruments Regulatory Liabilities/Assets 2024 2023 2022
Gas contracts Regulatory assets - current s 48 s 9 E)
Regulatory assels - noncurrent 7 ®) -
Interest rate swaps Regulatory assets - noncurrent 4 — 1
5 59 s 1 S 50

Total

The following table presents the effect of cash flow hedge activity on the Statement of Tncome for the year ended December 31, 2024:

Location and Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in Income

on Hedging Relationships
Tnterest Expense
Total income and expense line items presented in the income statement in which the effeet of cash flow hedges are recorded s 738
The effects of cash flow hedges:
Gain (Loss) on cash flow hedging relarionships:
Interest rate swaps:
Amount of gain (loss) reclissified from AOC] 1o income &)

The following table presents the effect of cash flow hedge activity on the Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2023:

Location and Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in Tncome
on Tledging Relationships

Tnterest Expense
Total income and expense line items presented in the income statement in which the effect of cash flow hedges are recorded S 666
The effects of cash flow hedges:
Gain (Loss) on cash flow hedging relationships:
Interest rate swaps:
Amount of gain (loss) reclassified from AOC] to income @

The following table presents the effect of cash flow hedge activity on the Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2022:

Location and Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in Income
on Hedging Relationships

Interest Expense

Total income and expense line items presented in the income statement in which the effect of cash flow hedges are recorded s 513
The eflects of cash flow hedges:
Gain (Loss) on cash flow hedging relationships:

Inferest rate swaps:

Amount of gain (loss) reclassified from AOCI to income 3)
(LG&E)
The following table presents the fair value and the location on the Balance Sheets of derivatives not as hedging i
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Assets Liabilitics “Assets Liabilities
Current:

Price Risk Management
Assets/Liabilities:

Tnterest rate swaps

Total current —

Noncurrent:
Price Risk Management
Assets/Liabilities

Interest rate swaps

3 6
Total noncurrent — 3 — 6
3 7

Total derivatives $

The following tables present the pre-tax effect of derivatives not designated as cash flow hedges that are recognized in income or regulatory assets:

Derivative Instruments Location of Gain (Loss) 2024 2023 2022

Tnterest rate swaps Interest Fxpense s — s — s @

Derivative Instruments Location of Gain (Loss) 2024 2023 2022

Tnterest rare swaps Regulatory assets - noncurrent S 4 5 — s 1

(PPL, LG&E and KU)

Offsetting Derivative Instruments
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PPL, LG&E and KU or certain of their subsidiaries have master netting arrangements in place and also enter into agreements pursuant to which they purchase or sell certain energy and other products. Under the upon termination of the as a result of a default or other termination event,

the non-defaulting party typically would have a right to set off amounts owed under the agreement against any other obligations arising between the two parties (whether under the agreement or not), whether matured or contingent and irrespective of the currency, place of payment or place of booking of the
obligation.

PPL, LG&E and KU have elected not to offset derivative assets and liabilities and not to offset net derivative positions against the right to reclaim cash collateral pledged (an asset) or the obligation to return cash collateral received (a liability) under derivatives The table below izes the
derivative positions presented in the balance sheets where a right of sefoff exists under these arrangements and related cash collateral received or pledged.

Assets Liabilities
Eligible for Offset Eligible for Offset
Cash
Derivative Collateral Derivative Collateral
Gross Instruments Received Net Gross Instruments Pledged Net

December 31,2024
Derivatives

s 9 s s s — s 4 § 16 s s s — s o1

. — — — 3 — — 3

51 s — s — st 5 6 s — 5 — 5 67

- - - - 7 - — 7

Credit Risk-Related Contingent Features

Certain derivative contracts contain credit risk-related contingent features which, when in a net liability position, would permit the counterparties to require the transfer of additional collateral upon a decrease in the credit ratings of PPL. LG&E and KU or certain of their subsidiaries. Most of these features.
would require the transfer of additional collateral or permit the counterparty to terminate the contract if the applicable credit rating were to fall below investment grade. Some of these features also would allow the counterparty to require additional collateral upon each downgrade in credit rating at levels that
remain above investment grade. In either case, if the applicable credit rating were to fall below investment grade, and assuming no assignment Lo an investment grade affiliate were allowed, most of these credit contingent features require either immediate payment of the net liability as a termination payment
or immediatc and ongoing full ization on derivative i in net liability positions.

Additionally, certain derivative contracts contain credit risk-related contingent featurcs that require adequate assurance of performance be provided if the other party has reasonable concerns regarding the performance of PPL's, LG&E's and KU's obligations under the contracts. A counterparty demanding
adequate assurance could require a transfer of additional collateral or other security, including letters of credit, cash and guarantees from a creditworthy entity. This would typically involve negotiations among the parties. However, amounts disclosed below would represent assumed immediate payment or
immediate and ongoing full i for derivative i in net liability positions with "adequate assurance" features.

(PPL)

At December 31, 2024, derivative contracts in a net liability position that contain credit risk-related contingent features was $3 million. The aggregate fair value of additional collateral requirements in the event of'a credit downgrade below investment grade was $4 million,

17. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill
(PPL)

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment were:

Kentucky Corporate and
Regulated Rhode Island Regulated Other Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Balance at beginning of period (a) s 662 s 662 s 725 s 725 s 860 s 861 5 2247 s 2248
Goodwill recognized during the period (b) — — — — — [0 — )
Total $ 662 § 662 § 725 $ 725 $ 860 S 860 $ 2247 § 2247

(a) There were no accumulated impairment losses related to goodwill
(b)  Recognized as a result of purchase price allocation adjustments related to the acquisition of RIE. See Note 9 for additional information.

Other Intangible Assets
(PPL)

The gross carrying amount and the accumulated amortization of other intangible assets were:
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December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
ross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Subjeet to amortization:
Contracts (a) $ 125 $ 116 s 125 s 107
Renewable Encrgy Credits 20 — 15 -
Land rights and easements 432 147 4n 143
Licenses and other 2 - 2 =
‘Total subject to amortization 579 263 553 250
Not subject to amortizati
Land rights and easements 18 — 18 -
Total not subject to amortization due to indefinite life 18 — [ —
Total s 597 S 263 s 71 s 250
(@) Gross carrying amount in 2024 and 2023 includes the fair value at the acquisition date of the OVEC power purchasc contract with terms Favorable to markel recognized as a result of the 2010 acquisition of LKE by PPL.
Current intangible assets are included in "Other current assets" and long-term intangible assets are included in "Other intangibles” on the Balance Sheets.
Amortization expense was as follows:
2024 2023 2022
Intangible assets with no regulatory offset s 5 55 s 5
Tntangible assets with regulatory offset 3 9 9
“Total s 13 s 14 s 14
Amortization expense for cach of the next five years is cstimated to be:
2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
Intangible assets with no regulatory offset s 4 $ 4 s 4 s 4 s 4
Intangible assets with regulatory offset 8 2 — — —
Total s 12 5 6 s 4 s 4 s 4
(PPL Electric)
The gross carrying amount and the accumulated amortization of other intangible assets were:
December 31, 2024 December 31,2023
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Subject to amortization:
Land rights and easements s 39 s 141 s 389 s 138
Licenses and other 2 1 2 1
Total subject to amortization 398 142 391 139
Not subject to amortization due to indefinite
Land rights and casements. 18 — 17 —
Total s 416 s 142 s 408 § 139
Intangible assets are shown as "Intangibles" on the Balance Sheets.
Amortization expense was as follows:
2024 2023 2022
Intangible assets with no regulatory offset s 4 5 4 s 4
Amortization expense for each of the next five years is estimated to be:
2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
Intangible assets with no regulatory offset s 4 s 4 s 4 s 4 s 4
(LG&E)
The gross carrying amount and the accumulated amortization of other intangible assets were:
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December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Subject to amortization:
Land rights and easements 57 s 2 s s 2
OVEC power purchase agreement (a) 86 7 86 73
s 93 $ 81 s 93 s 75

“Tatal subject to amortization

(@) Gross carrying amount represents the fair value at the acquisition date of the OVEC power purchase contract recognized as a result of the 2010 acquisition by PPL. An offsetting regulatory liability was recorded related to this contract, which is being amortized over the same period as the intangible asset, eliminating any income statement impact. See Note 7 for additional

information.

Long-term intangible assets are presented as "Other intangibles” on the Balance Sheets.
Amortization expense was as follows:

2024 2023 2022
Intangible assers with regulatory offset S 6 $ 6 $ 6
Amortization expense for each of the next five years is estimated to be:
2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
Tntangible assets with regulatory offs s 6 51 5 — s — s —
(KU)
The gross carrying amount and the accumulated amortization of other intangible assets were:
December 31, 2024 December 31,2023
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount ‘Amortization Amount Amortization
Subject to amortization:
Land rights and easements $ 29 s 4 $ 17 s 4
OVEC power purchase agreement (a) 39 36 39 33
$ 68 $ 40 § s6 $ 37

Total subject to amortization

on date of the OVEC power purchase contract recognized as a result of the 2010 acquisition by PPL. An ofletting regulatory liability was recorded related to this contract, which s being amortized over the same period s the infangible asset, eliminating any income statement impact. See Note 7 for additional

(@) Gross carrying amount represents the fair value al the acqui
information.

Long-term intangible assets are presented as "Other intangibles” on the Balance Sheets.

Amortization expense was as follows:
2024 2023 2022

Intangible assets with regulatory offset

Amortization expense for each of the next five years is estimated to be:
2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Intangible assets with regulatory oflset

18. Asset Retirement Obligations

(PPL and PPL Electric)

These assets are located on rights-of-way that allow the grantor to require PPL Electric to relocate or remove the assets. Since

PPL Electric has identified legal retirement obligations for the retirement of certain transmission assets that could not be reasonably estimated due to indeterminable settlement dates.
this option is at the discretion of the grantor of the right-of-way, PPL Electric is unable to determine when these events may occur.

(PPL. LG&E and KU)
PPL's, LG&E's and KU's ARO liabilities are primarily related to CCR closure costs. See Note 12 for information on the CCR rule. LG&E and RIE also have AROs related to natural gas mains and wells. LG&E's and KU's transmission and distribution lines largely operate under perpetual property easement

agreements, which do not generally require restoration upon removal of the property. Therefore, no material AROs arc recorded for transmission and distribution asscts. For LG&E, KU, and RIE , all ARO accrction and depreciation expenscs are reclassified as a regulatory assct or regulatory liability. ARO
regulatory assets associated with certain CCR projects are amortized to expense in accordance with regulatory approvals, For other AROs, deferred accretion and depreciation expense is recovered through cost of removal,

The changes in the carrying amounts of AROs were as follows:
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ARO at beginning of period
Accretion
Obligations incurred
Changes in estimated timing or cost
Obligations settled
Other

ARO at end of period

19.A Other Compt

(PPL)

PRI

December 31, 2021

Amounts arising during the year
Reclassifications from AOCI
Net OCI during the year

December 31,2022

Amounts arising during the year
Reelassifications from AOCI
Net OCT during the year
December 31,2023

Amouns arising during the year
Reclassifications from AOCT
Net OCI during the year
December 31,2024
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‘The after-tax changes in AOCI by component for the years ended December 31 were as follows:

FERC Form
PPL LG&E KU
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
S s 177 S 85 S 86 S 66 s 82
8 9 4 4 4 5
9 2 3 1 6 1
4 15 3 1 1 6
Ien) (39) an an ) (28)
2 (©) — ©) —
$ 157 $ IS8 $ 84 $ 8 $ 64 $ 66
Income (Loss)
Defined benefit plans
Forcign
currency Equity Prior Actuarial
translation investees' service ain
adjustments costs (loss) Total
§ — 51 3 — s (6 s (152) s (157)
— — 2 ) " [B
— 2 — 2 17 21
— 2 2 1 2% 3
s — B e s () s (124) s (124
— — 1 — (4n (40)
— 3 - 1 ) '
= 3 1 1 (44) (39)
s — 5 6 S 3 s (4 S (168) s (163)
— — 1 — (22) @n
— 3 — 1 ) —
= 3 1 1 (26) @1
s — 59 s 4 s () s (194) s (184)

‘The following table presents PPL's gains (losses) and related income taxes for reclassifications from AOCI for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022. The defined benefit plan components of AOCI are not reflected in their entirety in the statement of income; rather, they are included in the
computation of net periodic defined benefit costs (credits) and subject to capitalization. See Note 10 for additional information.

PPL
Affected Line Item on the
Details about AOCK 2024 2023 2022 Statements of Income

Qualifying derivatives

Interest rate swaps. s () s () S () Interest Expense
Total Pre-tax 8] ) @)
Income laxes — — ]
Total After-tax ) ) @
Defined benefit plans

Prior service costs 0 &) @

Net actuarial loss 4 3 (24)
Total Pre-tax 3 1 [EX))
Tncome Taxes — ! 8
Total After-tax. 3 2 (19)

Total reclassifications during the year s — s s @y
20. New Accounting Guidance Pending Adoption
(All Registrants)
Improvements to Income Tax Di
In December 2023, the FASB issued guidance which requires public business entities to provide additional income tax discl including a rate il as well as i ion on income taxes paid.
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